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Notice of 2018 Annual General Meeting
to be held at the Banquet Hall of the Royal Lake Club on Sunday, 9 December 2018 at 10:00am

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2018 Annual General Meeting of the Royal Lake Club Kuala Lumpur will be held at 
the Banquet Hall of the Club at 10.00am on Sunday, 9 December 2018.

Agenda
1. To confirm Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Sunday, 10 December 2017.

2. To confirm Minutes of the Adjourned Annual General Meeting held on Sunday, 25 March 2018.

3. To receive the Report of the General Committee.

4. To receive and, if approved, pass the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

5. To receive the Audit Committee’s Report.

6. To appoint Scrutineers for the Ballot at 11.30am (balloting shall take place from 12.00pm to 3.00pm).

7. To elect a President for a term of one year.

8. To elect a Vice-President for a term of one year.

9. To elect eleven Members to the General Committee for a term of one year.

10. To elect an Audit Committee for a term of one year.

11. To elect Auditors for the financial year ending 30 June 2019 and to authorize the General Committee to fix their 
remuneration.

12. To elect Trustees for a term of one year.

13. To transact any other business of which due notice has been given in accordance with Rule 25.10.

14. To receive the report of the Legal Committee.

15. To receive the report of the Turnaround Committee. 

16. To consider and approve the proposed amendments to the Club’s Constitutional Rules.

17. To declare the results of the Election.

Notes
i) NO MATTER or RESOLUTION shall be brought before the meeting unless the same has been previously notified in 

writing to the Secretary not later than midnight on *Sunday, 25 November 2018.

ii) NOMINATIONS for office, duly signed by the Candidate, Proposer and Seconder, shall be handed to the Secretary not 
later than midnight on *Sunday, 2 December 2018.

iii) BALLOTING for Items 7, 8, 9 & 10 shall be limited to Voting Members being present in person and having registered 
and will be from 12.00noon to 3.00pm.

*  As 25 November 2018 and 2 December 2018 falls on Sundays, the Duty Manager shall be available to receive 
resolutions and nominations respectively at the Reception.

By Order of the General Committee,

NURZURAIDA S ABDULLAH
Secretary
Royal Lake Club Kuala Lumpur
31 October 2018
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General Committee 2017/2018

Audit Committee 2017/2018

Sitting from left:
Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah, Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel (Vice President), Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon (President), Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan, 
Mr Lim Beng Jin

Standing from left: 
Ms Amuthambigai Tharmarajah, Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap, Dr Surindar Singh, Mr Loke Wai Mun, Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong

Not in picture:
Dato’ Nik Gee Siew Yee, Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev, Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram

Members of the Audit Committee 

Chairman
Mr L T Kulasingham

Members
YBhg Dato’ Syed Mustaffa Syed Ali
Mr Leng Joon Huat, Stanley

Management
Mrs S Sivaneswary  (Executive Secretary)

Sitting from left:
Mrs S Sivaneswary (Executive Secretary), YBhg Dato’ Syed Mustaffa Syed Ali,
Mr L T Kulasingham (Chairman), Mr Leng Joon Huat, Stanley
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President’s Message

Dear members,

The problems of the Club in recent years especially the Audit Committee’s statement that 
based on the last few years’ losses, the Club’s funds can only sustain the operations for 
another 2 to 3 years coupled with the 5 years of Qualified/Disclaimed Accounts was the 
reason I offered myself for election as President of the Club again to solve the problems 
which I did before in 2008/2009 after the 30 June 2008 Accounts were qualified by the 
Auditors. This was compounded by the problem that the Audited Accounts of the Club 
for 30 June 2017 were not ready to be presented to the members at the last AGM and 
the Monthly Accounts were 6 months behind time.

As such, the priority was to clean and get our books up-to-date, and improve our cash 
position which has all been done successfully. The Audited Accounts for 30 June 2017 
were completed and passed at an Adjourned AGM held on 25 March 2018. At the same 
time the Monthly Accounts were brought up-to date by May 2018. 

I am happy to report that the Accounts without any qualification for 30 June 2018 are 
now ready to be presented at the forthcoming AGM, and the results of the operations 
have shown a vast improvement with the total income increasing by RM791,566 and the 
deficit reduced from RM3,756,407 in 2017 to RM488,850 in 2018. This was achieved 
through very strict monitoring and control of the expenditures. The cash position has 
also improved by an additional RM1,300,000 placed into Fixed Deposit.

The Slot Machine Room’s operations have improved resulting in a profit of RM282,843 
(2017 : RM113,657). However, after providing for the additional Gaming Tax levied 
on the Club starting from last year, for which we have appealed to the Ministry of 
Finance, the results only show a profit of RM23,198 (2017 : Deficit of RM258,987). 
This dispute arose from the interpretation of the term “gross collection”. After our 
appeal, the Ministry of Finance has agreed that we calculate the Gaming Tax after the 
withdrawals but not the machine payouts with effect from July 2018. Very much now 
hinges on the success of our appeal to the Ministry of Finance. Otherwise, the Club will 
have great difficulty in earning profits from the Slot Machines.

Other than Finance, the Food and Beverage Operations continue to be the biggest 
challenge. Nevertheless, we have managed to maintain the operations and shown an 
improved earnings of RM3,800,521 (2017 : RM3,493,128). 

Maintenance & repairs of our buildings, machinery and equipment, most of which are 
about 30 or more years can be problematic because despite regular maintenance, they 
can still breakdown with age. However, we have been able to overcome all the problems 
and we have had no issues with the Fire, Safety and Health Authorities during our tenure.

The Collective Agreement for 2018/2020 with the Club Employees Union Peninsular 
Malaysia has been successfully concluded and the agreement would be signed soon. 
A lot of time was spent in the recruitment for the various Managerial and Executive 
positions. We took a bit more time in this as we only wanted to employ those who have 
the correct knowledge and experience for the respective positions. 

Membership, Library & Publications, Information Technology and Sports & Recreation 
continued to operate with some improvements. 

The Special Functions Sub-Committee was tasked to concentrate on studying the 
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President’s Message (continued)

various reports prepared in the past by the various consultants and the Audit Committee and to make recommendations 
to the General Committee on the actions to be taken for the betterment of the club. Now that I have some time, I will be 
studying the recommendations in detail and hopefully the necessary actions can be taken.

Over and above the operations of the Club, it was quite a challenge to keep the General Committee intact for the whole 
tenure. For this I thank all the members of the General Committee for their tolerance and acceptance of the differing views 
and opinions expressed and debated.

On behalf of all the members of the General Committee 2017/2018, I would like to thank all the members, especially the 
members who have volunteered to serve on the various sub-committees, and who have in one way or another given me 
your assistance, support and advice during my term. 

The major problems have been sorted out but more has to be done to sort out the remaining problems and to improve the 
various systems. I wish we could have done more in the last 10 months but the constraint of time and the lack of money 
have prevented us from carrying them out. Nevertheless, all sections of the Club are running well, though not perfect. I 
wish the members of the next General Committee all the best and look forward to them bringing the club to a higher level.

Thank you.

Chiam Tow Loon, Patrick
President, 2017/2018
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Report of the General Committee 2017/2018

The General Committee has great pleasure in submitting this Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Club for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2018 together with the Report of the Auditors.

The General Committee was elected at the Annual General Meeting held on 10 December 2017. Up to the date of this 
Report, the General Committee held 15 meetings and the attendance of its members are as follows:

President
Patrick Chiam Tow Loon 15/15

Vice-President
Lt. Col. (R) Johan Van Geyzel Bin Abdullah 13/15

General Committee Members
Dato’ Nik Gee Siew Yee 05/05 (on leave of absence from June 2018)
Prithviraj Singh Sachdev 11/15
Pansy Lee Mew Kwan 15/15
Daniel Thuraiappah 14/15
Lim Beng Jin  15/15
Dr Surindar Singh Jeswant Singh 12/15
Loke Wai Mun 15/15
Tommy Chin Kean Neap 13/15
Hildah Lee Hung Fong 14/15
Sailendra Kanagasundram 13/15
Amuthambigai Tharmarajah 12/15

Finance
At the last Annual General Meeting, the Audited Financial Statements of the Club for the Financial Year ended 30 June 
2017 together with the Report of the Auditors were not ready to be presented to the members. As such, the first task 
of this General Committee was to work with the Auditors to complete the Audited Accounts as soon as possible. This 
was accomplished by 28 February 2018 and an Adjourned Annual General Meeting was held on 25 March 2018 to pass 
the Audited Financial Statements of the Club for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2017 together with the Report of the 
Auditors.

After 4 years of Qualified Opinion of the Auditors and 1 year of Disclaimed Opinion of the Auditors, we are happy to report 
that the Auditors Report for 30 June 2018 is without any qualification, and the results of the operations have shown a vast 
improvement:
  2018 2017
  RM RM

Operating Income 10,651,474  10,250,924
Other Income 1,062,685  671,669 

 11,714,159  10,922,593
Operating Expenditure without Depreciation (11,917,812) (14,475,840)

Deficit before Depreciation & Taxation (200,653)  (3,553,247)
Taxation (288,197)  (203,160)

Deficit after Taxation (488,850)  (3,756,407)

The above deficit includes the provision made for the Gaming Tax of RM259,645 (2017 : RM372,644) which is under 
appeal to the Ministry of Finance and excludes Depreciation of RM1,672,875 (2017 : RM1,838,691) which is a non-cash 
expenditure. 
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Report of the General Committee 2017/2018 (continued)

When this General Committee took Office in Mid-December 2017, the Monthly Accounts were 6 months behind time. 
Therefore the next task was to bring the Monthly Accounts up-to date which we succeeded by May 2018. With the Accounts 
up-to-date, we now have a clearer picture of our financial standing and where we are heading.

Furthermore, last year’s Audit Committee’s Report stated that based on the last few years’ losses, the Club’s funds can only 
sustain the operations for another 2 to 3 years. As such, this year’s General Committee had no choice but to implement 
very strict monitoring and control, and prioritize the expenditures to reduce the losses and to refill our coffers for future 
operations. In respect of this, we not only did not withdraw any money from the Fixed Deposit Accounts but we placed an 
additional sum of RM1,300,000 into Fixed Deposit.

Slot Machine Room
The Slot Machine Room’s operations have improved resulting in a profit of RM282,843 (2017 : RM113,657). However, 
after providing for the additional Gaming Tax imposed on the Club in November 2017 on the Machine Room operating 
period from September 2016 onwards, which we have disputed and appealed to both the Ministry of Finance and the 
Finance Minister, the results only show a profit of RM23,198 (2017 : Deficit of RM258,987).

This dispute arose from the interpretation of “gross collection” which in the past so many years was interpreted as the 
amount actually earned by the Club which excludes amounts withdrawn by players and the machine-paid amounts to the 
players. The new interpretation by the Ministry of Finance staff was that “gross collection” was the amount deposited into 
the machines without deducting the withdrawals and machine payouts. After our appeal the Ministry of Finance has agreed 
that we calculate the Gaming Tax after the withdrawals but not the machine payouts with effect from July 2018.

Very much now hinges on the success of our appeal to the Ministry of Finance. Otherwise, the Club will have great difficulty 
in earning profits from the Slot Machines as the Club would have to pay gaming tax on non-existent earnings.

Membership
During the year 247 members were admitted to the Club of whom 104 of them are still serving their temporary 
membership. The Club had also extended its hospitality to Head of Foreign Missions and welcomed the Ambassadors and 
High Commissioners from Brunei Darussalam, Bangladesh, India and the Republic of Egypt as well as the UN Resident 
Coordinator.

During this period, the Club had also established a new reciprocal arrangement with the MIG Cricket Club located in 
Mumbai, India.

Food & Beverage Operations
Other than Finance, the Food and Beverage Operations continue to be the biggest challenge to this General Committee. 
It is no longer easy to find and maintain good Operators for the Poolside Stalls and Caterers who are willing to abide by 
our Rules and our requirements on pricing which would be acceptable to the members, now that there are an abundance 
of opportunities for them to find a place to operate in the Klang Valley. When this General Committee took Office in 
Mid-December last year, a few Poolside stalls were without Operators. Nevertheless, we have managed to fill all the 
stalls including the Japanese Food Corner and shown an improved earnings from the Food & Beverages operations of 
RM3,800,521 (2017 : RM3,493,128). 

House & Grounds
Maintenance and repairs of our buildings, machinery and equipment, most of which are about 30 or more years can 
be problematic because despite regular maintenance, they can still break down with age. However, the Sub-Committee 
and the staff have been able to overcome all the problems and we have had no issues with the Fire, Safety and Health 
Authorities during our tenure.

Human Resources
We have successfully concluded the Collective Agreement with the Club Employees Union of Peninsular Malaysia and the 
agreement would be signed soon.
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Some of us have spent a lot of time sieving through the applicants and interviewing them for the various Managerial and 
Executive positions. We took a bit more time in this as we only wanted to employ those who have the correct knowledge 
and experience for the respective positions. To this end we have employed an Accounts Manager, Sports & Recreation 
Manager and a Senior Human Resources Executive. For the remaining positions, we have re-advertised and since our term 
is coming to an end, in a few weeks, we will leave it to the next General Committee to pick their choice candidates.

Library & Publications
The Main Library and the Children’s Library were run as in the past with lots of activities for the children in the Children’s 
Library on many Saturdays. The publication of the Club’s Bi-Monthly Newsletter was done in-house thus saving some money 
on the design cost. By using the website and electronic mail to disseminate the Newsletter whilst printing a small quantity 
for those who wanted a printed copy, there was savings in cost of printing, stationery and postages. 

Information Technology
The Information Technology Sub-Committee worked closely with the other sections and departments to assist them and to 
keep members informed of the weekly events and promotions through the weekly blasts to members by email.

For the first time the IT Department has worked with the relevant departments to streamline processes by integrating 
Finance and HR which has led to reduced labour intensive work and errors.

Sports & Recreation
The various sports and recreation activities have continued as in the past. During the Merdeka weekend we have revived 
the Merdeka Snooker Invitational Tournament and the Merdeka Darts Invitational Tournament which was well participated 
and successfully held. For this we must acknowledge the time and efforts put in by the various Chairmen, Convenors, Sub-
Committee members and Organising Committee members of the various sports and recreation sections to see through 
the various events during the year.

Special Functions Sub-Committee

Since there is a House appointed Legal Committee handling the on-going litigation with a legal firm, this year the Special 
Functions Sub-Committee was tasked to concentrate on studying the various reports prepared in the past by the various 
consultants and the Audit Committee and make recommendations to the General Committee on the actions to be taken 
for the betterment of the Club.

Thank you
On behalf of all the members of the General Committee 2017/2018, I would like to thank all the members, especially the 
members who have volunteered to serve on the various Sub-Committees, who have in one way or another given us your 
assistance, support and advice during our term. 

There were more we could have done but the constraint of time and the lack of money have prevented us from carrying 
them out. Nevertheless, all sections of the Club are running well, though not perfect. We wish the members of the next 
General Committee all the best and look forward to them bringing the club to a higher level.

Chiam Tow Loon, Patrick
President, 2017/2018
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Patron, Honorary Members and Life Members

Patrons
Duli Yang Maha Mulia Tuanku Syed Sirajuddin Ibni Al-Marhum Tuanku Syed Putra Jamallulail, Raja Perlis 
Indera Kayangan

Duli Yang Maha Mulia Al-Wathiqu Billah Tuanku Sultan Mizan Zainal Abidin Ibni Almarhum Sultan Mahmud 
Al-Muktafi Billah Shah, Sultan Terengganu Darul Iman

Duli Yang Maha Mulia Sultan Sharafuddin Idris Shah Ibni Al-Marhum Sultan Salahuddin Abdul Aziz Shah 
Alhaj, Sultan Selangor Darul Ehsan

Duli Yang Maha Mulia Tuanku Muhriz Ibni Al-Marhum Tuanku Munawir, Yang Dipertuan Besar Negeri 
Sembilan, 

Duli Yang Maha Mulia Sultan Nazrin Muizzuddin Shah ibni Almarhum Sultan Azlan Muhibbuddin Shah Al-
Maghfur-Lah, Timbalan Yang Di-Pertuan Agong Malaysia.

YABhg Tun Dr Mahathir bin Mohamad 

YABhg Tun Abdullah Haji Ahmad Badawi

YAB Dato’ Sri Mohammad Najib Tun Haji Abdul Razak

Honorary Members
DYMM Raja Raja

TYT Yang DiPertua-Yang DiPertua Negeri

DYTM Tunku Haji Abdul Malik Ibni 
Al-Marhum Sultan Badlishah

DYTM Tunku Syed Faizuddin Putra Ibni 
Yang Maha Mulia Tuanku Syed Sirajuddin 
Jamalullail

DYTM Tengku Amir Shah Ibni Sultan 
Sharafuddin Idris Shah

YABhg Tun Hajjah Rahah binti Tan Sri Haji 
Mohd Noah

YBhg Toh Puan Zainon Dato’ Hussein

Life Members
Major D R Bridges

Mr Chan Hua Eng

Mr E M Talbot-Weiss

Mrs Arulsothy Thurairatnam

Mr Maurice Samson

YBhg Datin Lye Mei Kum

YABhg Toh Puan Dato’ Seri 
Dr Aishah Ong

YBhg Datin Jeannie Lim

YBhg Datuk M Feisol Hassan

Mdm Ng Kwai Lan

YBhg Dato’ Y Sivaloganathan

Mr Cheah Chip Fun

En Abdul Rahim Ismail

Mr Goh Joon Hai

Mr Nadarajah Kandiah

Mr L T Kulasingham

En Mohd Kamar Mohamed

Mr C Ayadurai

Dr James Liew Yat Hoe

Mdm Quah Kim Si

Mr Tim Moey Chee Seng

Mr Michael Godfrey

YBhg Dato’ Dr Gurmukh Singh

Mr Lim Teng Eng

YBhg Dato’ Nik Hussain Nik Ali

Mr David Yap Boo Heong 

Mr Ho Sai Kong

Mr Risha A Rajadurai 

YBhg Dato’ Ir Pang Leong Hoon 

YBhg Datuk Ir A. Sani Karim

YBhg Dato’ Mustafa Mohd Ali

Dr V V Nadkarni

Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon

YBhg Dato’ D J Puthucheary
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Past Presidents

1890 - 91 G W Welman 
1891 - 92 F G West    
1892 - 94 A R Venning 
1894-97 E M Alexander   
1897 A R Venning
1897-99 A J W Watkins
1899-1900 C Wray    
1900-01 C E Spooner
1901-02 A J W Watkins
1902  A T D Berrington   
1902  Sir Laurance Jackson
1902-03 A R Venning
1903-08 J L Tabbot
1908  Sir H Conway Belfield
1908-09  A G Watson
1909-11  Sir Archibald F G Law
1911-14  W F Nutt    
1914-15  Sir Thomas De M Braddell  
1915-16  W Eyre Kenny
1916  J R Innes    
1916-17  A K E Hampshire   
1917-18  W F Nutt    
1918-19  A K E Hamphire
1919-20  R M Skinner
1920-21  Sir Michael W Whiteley
1921-22  W L Conlay
1922-23  J Argyll Robertson   
1923-24  W L Conlay
1924-25  D H Hampshire   
1924-26  R F Gray
1925-26  F B Ivens
1926-27 D H Hampshire
1926 W S Gibson
1927-28 F B Ivens 
1928-29 D C Macaskill
1929-30 R W BLAIR
1930-31 J C G Spooner
1931 A K Cosgrave
1931-32 F W Foxworthy
1932 J C G Spooner
1932-33 D C Macaskill
1933-34 J C G Spooner
1934-35 D H Hampshire
1935 G Shelton Agar
1935-36 W J Williams
1936-37 H M Pendlebury
1937 L Vaughan
1937-38 M Rex
1938-40 I G Cameron
1940-41 J M O Connor George
1941-42 N R Jarett

1947-48 J Whyte
1948-49 Sir Harold Willan
1949-50 I Macintosh
1950  W B Cruickshank
1950-51 C Mills
1951-52 H H Facer 
1952-53 D T Waring
1953-54 T R W Allin
1954-55 H A Campbell
1955-56 E J Emery
1956-57 N A Marjoribanks
1957-58 W T Malling
1958-59 G E M Jones
1959-60 G S Patterson
1960-61 D G Rawson
1961-62 H G Owen
1962-63 H I Ashley
1964-65  C A J Potter
1965-67  E J C Gardner
1965-67 YM Tunku Tan Sri Mohamed bin Tunku 
 Besar Burhanuddin
1967-76 YAB Tun Haji Abdul Razak bin 
 Dato’ Hussein
1977-81  YBhg Tan Sri Haji Nik Ahmed Kamil 
1977-81 YAB Tun Hussein Onn
1984-86  YABhg Tun Dato’ Haji 
 Omar Yoke Lin Ong
1984-86 YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Haji 
 Abdul Majid Ismail
1986-90 Y Sivaloganathan 
 (YBhg Dato’ Y Sivaloganathan wef 2003)
1990-92 Dr Lim Say Wan
 (YBhg Dato’ Dr Lim Say Wan wef 2000)
1992-94  Dr T Thurairatnam 
1994-96  Dr Lim Chee Shin 
 (YBhg Datuk Dr Lim Chee Shin wef 2007)
1996-98 YBhg Datuk M Feisol Hassan   
1998-2000 David Yap Boo Heong
2000-02 A Rahim Ismail 
2002-03 C T Annathurai
2003-05 Manjeet Singh Dhillon
2005-06 Peter Geh Cheng Thye
2006-07 Goh Joon Hai 
2007-08 YBhg Dato’ Dominic Joseph 
 Puthucheary 
2008-09 Patrick Chiam Tow Loon 
2009-12 YBhg Datuk Ir A Sani Karim
2012-14 Teoh Cheng Hai
2014-16 Jon Azman
2016-17 YBhg Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff
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Minutes of 2017 Annual General Meeting
Held at the Banquet Hall of the Royal Lake Club on Sunday, 10 December 2017 at 9.00am

Present:

Name Membership No. Designation

YBhg Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff b Kamil Mushir Ariff 14283 President
Mr Bernard Foong Khee Seng 12403 Vice President
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev 15673 Committee Member
Mr Lim Beng Jin 12120 Committee Member
Mr Loke Mun Kit 13233 Committee Member
Mr Loke Wai Mun 11053 Committee Member
En Shaik Rizal Sulaiman 11544 Committee Member
Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong 9697 Committee Member
En Abdul Rashid Abdul Majid 10825 Committee Member
Mr K A Kumar 13512 Committee Member
Mr Lee King Loon 14374 Committee Member
Mr Chew Teck Hong 12666 Committee Member
En Ahmed Zakki Abdul Jabbar 13879 Committee Member

and 700 other Voting Members as shown in the attached list (Pages 47 to 52)

In Attendance

Mr Francis Xavier – Secretary

[1.0] Chairman of the Meeting

 The President, YBhg Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff presided as the Chairman of the 2017 Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM” or “the Meeting”) of the Royal Lake Club Kuala Lumpur (“RLC” or “the Club”) pursuant to Rule 25.6 of the 
Constitutional Rules and Club Byelaws of the Club.

[2.0] President’s Address 
 The Chairman welcomed and thanked the Members for their presence. He introduced the recording secretary, 

Q&R Transcripts.

[3.0] Confirmation of Quorum by the Club Secretary

 The Secretary confirmed that a quorum was present as the requisite number of the Members present pursuant to 
Rule 25.13 of the Constitutional Rules of the Club.

[4.0] Notice of the AGM

 The Secretary read out the Notice and Agenda of the AGM.

[5.0] Mark of Respect for Deceased Members 
5.01 The Chairman called upon the Members to rise and observe a minute of silence as a mark of respect to the 

Members who had passed away. He corrected the date of death of YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Abdullah Ahmad as 
12 June 2016.



Annual Report 2018

Kelab Taman Perdana DiRaja Kuala Lumpur  |  13

Minutes of 2017 Annual General Meeting (continued)

5.02 The list of Members who had passed away prior to the 2017 AGM held on 10 December 2017 was as 
follows:

 The late:

No Name Membership Number

1 Mr Lim Man Noon 13722
2 Mr Tami Lim Tai Ming 14899
3 Mr Mahadavan Chelliah 11058
4 Mr Lim Kooi Chang 11023
5 Mr Chew Soo Ngee 6994
6 Mr Goh Hua Kiew 7486
7 Mr Eddie Chia Sen Hua 4945
8 Mr Chan Keng Meng 13350
9 Mr Ronald Choong Yip Yuen 14781
10 Mdm Chuah Mei Lin 15563
11 Mdm Santha Bhaskara Menon 6086
12 Ms Rohini Cecelia May a/p Kandiah Ayadurai L0497
13 Mr Chiam Teong Tee 6080
14 Mr Benny Loh Kee Seng 10554
15 Mr Derek Loo Siew Kwong 10350
16 Mr Cheam Tat Pang 6712
17 YBhg Datuk Dr S Kandiah 8276
18 Mr Steven Ong Thiam Aik 8441
19 Mr Wong Kong Young 6622
20 Mr Fred Chan Swee Fatt 8591
21 Mdm Chew Mei Lee 10454
22 Mr M Mahalingam 7379
23 Mr S Shanmugalingam 5738
24 Ms Soh Zhi Min L1970
25 Mr Soh Kay Kok 12033
26 YBhg Dato’ Eddie Teo Swee Cheng 15356
27 Mr Lim Chon Ying 13329
28 Mrs Grace Ponniah 10210
29 Mrs Thong Kuo Sin 7877
30 Dr Thilla Chelliah 8593
31 YBhg Dato’ Sri Lee Kong Lam 13078
32 Dr Ting Wen Poh 5006
33 Mr S H Thavaraj 8133
34 Mr Chin Yew Meng 8067
35 Tan Sri (Dr) Yeoh Tiong Lay 8752
36 Mdm Leong Choy Ying 15570
37 Dr Francis Morsingh 13866

Arwah:

No Name Membership Number

1 En Mohamad Afzal Bin Mohamad Hussain 11097
2 En Rusli Bin Habib 9018
3 En Mohd Shayariz Bin Abu Kassim 16627
4 Lt Gen (R) Dato’ Hj Abdul Jamil 8692
5 YBhg Dato’ Abdul Manan Othman 5991
6 En Mohd Ali Bin Ismail 10955
7 YM Tunku Datuk Seri Adnan Tunku Besar Burhanuddin 4485
8 YBhg Datuk Haji Harun Din 9681
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Minutes of 2017 Annual General Meeting (continued)

9 YBhg Dato’ Zulkafli B Md Nor 5866
10 Pn Haja Sithi Jaleena 5476
11 YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Abdullah Ahmad 4152
12 YBhg Tan Sri Dato’ Wan Sidek Bin Wan Abd Rahman 3827
13 YBhg Datuk Maznah Abd Hamid 10828
14 En Ku Abdul Rahman Ku Sulaiman 9924
15 En Nor Zainal Abd Rahman 10037
16 YA Dato’ Faiza Tambi Chik 6463
17 YBhg Tan Sri Raja Aznam Raja Hj Ahmad 8555
18 Dr Mohamed Iwaz Abdul Karim 8675
19 YBhg Dato’ Wan Jaafar @ Wan Mohd bin Abdullah 9205
20 YBhg Datin Mariam @ Sabariah bt Buyong 8506
21 YBhg Dato’ Murad M Hashim 4647

 
[6.0] Item 1 of the Agenda:
 Confirmation of the Minutes of the AGM held on Sunday, 27 November 2016.

6.01 On a point of order, Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon (E7828) raised three points. Firstly, he sought confirmation 
from the Chairman that the AGM that day had been convened within the provisions of the Club’s Constitution. 
Secondly, he had heard that minutes had been altered and sought the assurance that minutes should reflect 
what had transpired with the appointment of a professional recording secretary. Thirdly, he was made to 
understand that the GC members were expected to take an oath in office. He held the view that such oath 
taking was not necessary as the GC members were expected to give their best performance once elected 
into office.

6.02 The Chairman responded that there was no oath-taking during his term of office, but could not comment 
what transpired in the past. He reminded everyone to state their name and membership number when 
speaking on the floor so that the recording secretary could take down the correct details. He also reminded 
everyone to observe decorum and to address the Chair rather than fellow members. Where possible, the 
Chairman said that he would endeavour to answer questions, and when needed, he would call upon his 
fellow GC members to make the necessary clarifications.

6.03 In respect of the notice convening the AGM, the Chairman informed the House that the GC had, at its 
meeting on 22nd September, discussed possible dates of 10th December or 20th December. At that time, 
the GC had realised that the audited accounts could not be ready on time for presentation at the AGM. 
The Chairman, together with the General Manager/Secretary, had then met the Director of the Registrar of 
Societies (ROS), En Zafuan bin Abdul Gafar on 20th October. They were advised by the ROS that the Club’s 
AGM must be held before the 31st December and to present the audited accounts on another day when 
ready in 2018. This was conveyed to the GC at its meeting held on 25th October. 

 Some of the GC members then had wanted another meeting with the ROS but an appointment could not be 
made. The Chairman managed to get the mobile number of the Registrar and had a tele-conversation with 
him and he said he was assured once again to have the AGM before 31st December and to present the 
audited accounts in 2018. With that information from ROS, the Chairman said that he made the decision to 
have the AGM on 10th December and proceeded to send the email to inform the GC of the AGM date and 
to instruct the GM/Secretary to make preparation for the AGM. In arriving at the date of 10th December, 
the Chairman had considered that there was 5 Sundays in the month of December with Christmas and New 
Year’s Eve holidays taken up two weekends. 17th December was too close to Christmas where members 
would start their year-end holidays which left 10th December the most suitable date. 5 out of the 13 GC 
members disassociated themselves from the decision to have the AGM on 10th December which meant 
the majority of the GC had agreed to proceed accordingly. The Chairman again apologized for the manner 
in which the decision was made on the AGM date but it was made to protect the interest and members of 
the Club. The Chairman also presented a letter from the ROS and stated that if the AGM was held in March 
or April 2018, it would give less time to the incoming GC to perform their duties. 



Annual Report 2018

Kelab Taman Perdana DiRaja Kuala Lumpur  |  15

Minutes of 2017 Annual General Meeting (continued)

6.04 Dr KJ John (7116) read out his letter which he had earlier sent to the GC as a respond to the Chairman’s 
letter.

6.05 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed (E7669) proposed that the House accepts the meeting as duly and legally 
convened. He also agreed with some of the sentiments raised by Dr KJ John on the election. 

6.06 YBhg Dato’ Y Sivaloganathan (E7019) cited Rule 25 of the Club’s Constitution and pointed out that the 
AGM of the Club has to be convened before 31st December of each year and the GC shall fixed a date 
accordingly. He commended the President in making the decision to hold the AGM in spite of a divided GC. 
He also pointed out that the ROS had sanctioned for the AGM to be held before the audited accounts were 
ready. If the GC had decided to defer the AGM to April or May next year when the audited accounts would 
be completed by then, the current GC may have overstayed its welcome, which would not pose a problem 
in itself, but it would be problematic with a divided GC. He proposed that the House accepts the date of the 
AGM and that the President’s decision was consistent with the Club’s Constitution. 

6.07 Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li (11529) seconded the proposal.

6.08 A vote was called and the motion was passed without any objection.

6.09 The Chairman informed the House and he, being the Chairman of the Finance Sub-Committee (FSC) since 
April and his deputy, Mr Lee King Loon would be responsible in presenting the account in early next year. 
He then sought the approval of the House for both of them to sign the audited accounts.

6.10 Dr KJ John questioned how the incoming GC would deal with any legally incriminating issues involving past 
GC members. He also questioned who would sign the audited accounts when it is ready for presentation to 
the House next year.

6.11 YBhg Dato’ Sivaloganathan reminded everyone that the AGM was a meeting of the members of the Club, 
and the minutes approved thereof were the views of the House and not the GC. In the event the Club 
President refuses to sign the minutes, the House could appoint anyone to sign the said minutes. In the 
past, he had suggested that the most senior member to do so and had even volunteered himself to sign 
the minutes if no one else would. The same concept would apply to the audited accounts. 

6.12 Mr Stanley Tan Chuen Keat (6645) highlighted that there were 3 AGMs in the past which were held past the 
date of 31st December, hence he was confused why the same could not be done for this instant. With the 
election to be concluded at the end of the proceedings that day, Mr Tan expressed his concern that the 
incoming GC may disassociate themselves from the undertakings made by the Chairman who would by 
then a Past President.

6.13 The Chairman clarified that the management accounts had been submitted to the external Auditor, M/S 
Azman, Wong & Salleh (AWS). AWS had assured the GC that the audited accounts would be ready by mid-
January 2018. The Chairman was positive that the incoming President and his GC would ensure the audited 
accounts were duly completed and presented for approval at the next general meeting. The Chairman said 
that there was no reason for disallowing him to sign off the audited accounts then.

6.14 Mr Stanley Tan Chuen Keat appealed to the GC to stay until the audited account has been completed and 
presented to the House before relinquishing their office.

6.15 The Chairman said that the House had earlier decided to move on and proceed with the AGM.

6.16 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed echoed the Chairman’s view. He also wanted accountability to be taken into 
consideration with the audited account.

6.17 Dr KJ John wanted to know if the current conditions were sufficient to proceed with the AGM and sought 
the clarification on Rule 25.1 from YBhg Dato’ Sivaloganathan.

6.18 The Chairman reminded everyone that the House had already decided on the matter and that the proceedings 
would go on.
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6.19 If she got voted in, Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li said that she would be able to support the audit accounts if it 
was duly audited, fair and correct. 

6.20 Mr Soma Sundram s/o Krishnaswamy (13536) called upon fellow members to follow the agenda of the 
meeting and respect the Chair. 

6.21 Whilst he respected the views held by Dr K J John, Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that Rule 31 provides for 
the House to be the ultimate decision-maker and the House had earlier decided to proceed with the AGM. 
In respect of the Club’s accounts, Dato’ Sivaloganathan held that the accounts and what was happening in 
the Club were an on-going process where one Committee would take over from another Committee which 
had left it incomplete.

6.22 With that, the Chairman continued the proceedings and informed the House that he would halt discussions 
at 12 noon to go through the election process. Voting would commence from 1.00pm and conclude at 
3.30pm.

6.23 In respect of the Minutes of the AGM held on 27 November 2016, the Chairman explained that the printer 
had inadvertently inserted the electronic signature of the former President, En Jon Azman. The printer had 
submitted its apologies over the mistake and the Chairman assured everyone that there was no malice 
intended. The Chairman also highlighted several errors and omissions contained in the Annual Report.

6.24 En Jon Azman (9960) wanted to put record his and his GC’s members dissatisfaction with regards of the 
minute of the AGM dated 27 November 2016 that was published and circulated to all the voting members 
of the club. He thought that the minutes did not accurately reflect what transpired at the AGM as there 
were numerous errors and omissions. He requested the verbatim transcripts from the President but it was 
not answered. He held the view that the verbatim transcripts of the AGM dated 27 November 2016 should 
be rightly given to him and the members of the GC to look through for the purpose of accuracy. He also 
informed the House that he had lodged a police report in regards to his signature being printed on the 
minutes to protect himself from forgery. 

 He proposed a resolution in accordance to Rule 25.10 to defer the confirmation of the 2016 AGM Minutes 
to an EGM next year when the audited accounts would be ready, pending the handover of the verbatim 
transcript together with the audio recording of the meeting to each members of GC of 2015/2016. He also 
noted that there was no mention that he did not sign the draft of the minutes in the CD that was distributed 
to the members of the club. He stated that the minutes should be accurate and fair.

6.25 The Chairman stated that the GM’s Office had invited past president, En Jon Azman and his GC members to 
listen to the tape recording of the proceedings in line with the Club’s practice for time immemorial. Anyone 
could make an appointment with the Secretary to do so.

6.26 Mr Philip Mathews (14023) disassociated himself from En Jon Azman’s statement that the GC of 2016 
had requested for the verbatim transcript as he had no knowledge of the said letter and the resolution as 
proposed by En Jon Azman. 

6.27 En Jon Azman stated it was the majority of the GC of 2015/2016 as well as other non-GC members 
wanting to redo the minutes of the AGM. He also stated that he had listened to the tape recordings of the 
meeting many times before and it was painful to do so as the recordings were not clear.

6.28 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed suggested to putting the proposal by En Jon Azman to a vote. He also wanted 
to put on record that he was not asked to sign the second EGM that he chaired and thought that it was 
wrong. He thought he should have signed the minutes.

6.29 Mr Allan Guy Goonting (13283) stated that the verbatim recording of the minutes was not allowed to be 
taken out of the Club as it had been the practice of the Club. He also stated that everyone was given ample 
time to review the minutes and come back with any comments and if En Jon Azman did not choose to do 
so, that was his problem. He also reminded everyone that the Club spends a lot of money to hold AGM and 
EGM.
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6.30 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon agreed with Mr Allan Guy Goonting that everybody has had a chance to review the 
minutes but he also sympathized with En Jon Azman as the document carried his name. He held the view 
that there was nothing to lose to allow En Jon Azman to look at the minutes and verify it. 

6.31 In response to the comments made by Mr Allan Guy Goonting, En Jon Azman responded that he and his 
2015 GC members wanted the hardcopy of the verbatim transcript of the AGM prepared by the external 
secretary to be made available.

6.32 Mr Bernard Foong, the Vice President informed the house that the verbatim transcript of the first AGM of 
2016 was done by an external firm recommended by Mr K C Chan and reassured the House that there was 
no omission.

6.33 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon asked the Vice President if he referred to the same Mr K C Chan with whom the 
Club that got issues with, to which Mr Bernard Foong confirmed so.

6.34 Mr Bernard Foong also added that the verbatim transcript of the minutes of the second AGM of 2016 was 
done by another external secretary.

6.35 Referring to Page 162, Mr Teoh Cheng Hai (8510) said that Mr Loke Yoon Hoe was incorrectly named as 
the Deputy Chairman of Table Tennis.

6.36 The Chairman said that he had wanted to go through amendments of the minutes.

6.37 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that the procedure that was adopted by the Club for the past 40 years that he 
has been a member was that soon after a meeting was held, the minutes were drafted and posted to the 
members for their comments and/or amendments. He further said that the verbatim minutes had never been 
made available as the printing cost would be high. He held the view that everyone abides by the same rules in 
respect of the minutes of proceedings. He informed the House that some 30 years ago, recording tapes that 
were given out to members were tampered with when returned to the Club. Dato’ Sivaloganathan suggested 
that the Chairman put the motion to vote and asked the House to reject it so that other members would not 
come up with fanciful motions before the House. Dato’ Sivaloganathan also thought it was wrong for En Jon 
Azman to lodge a police report after the printer had admitted its mistake and submitted an apology.

6.38 Mr C Ayadurai (E5444) lent support to Dato’ Sivaloganathan whom he held in high esteem as he had his 
facts before him when he speaks during general meetings.

6.39 With that, the Chairman put the resolution that the House to defer the passing of the minutes of the 2016 
AGM, proposed by En Jon Azman and seconded by Mr Mahinder Singh Randhawa (5192), to a vote. 

6.40 A vote was carried out and the motion defeated.

6.41 The Chairman continued going through the minutes of the AGM dated 27 November 2016, page-by-page.

6.42 Mr Mahinder Singh Randhawa noticed an item had been omitted from the minutes whereat around 11.30am 
on 27 November 2016, En Yusof Khan had mentioned twice the words “They are masturbating each other”. 
Mr Mahinder Singh Randhawa asked that the words, as spoken, be recorded in the minutes.

6.43 The Chairman took note of Mr Mahinder S. Randhawa’s comment.

6.44 Dato’ Sivaloganathan referred to Page 20, item 7.34, which mentioned that he was subjected to a 
disciplinary complaint after supporting Dr Molly Cheah in the EGM and had said certain things. He sought to 
introduce a resolution so that any members’ comment would be privileged and protected unless the House 
decides to subject the said member to disciplinary action. He held that such power should be removed 
from the General Committee. Dato’ Sivaloganathan also pointed out that Colonel Johan had told members 
that he had misled the House when told that he was subjected to disciplinary proceedings. However, 
he was exonerated when Mr Vishnu Kumar, who was the Chairman of the Investigation Committee (IC), 
informed the House that the complaint was deliberated by the IC and the IC found no merits and dismissed 
it. Dato’ Sivaloganathan said that it was Colonel Johan who had misled the House and asked the House to 
exercise caution because Colonel Johan was running for the office of the Vice President of the Club.
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6.45 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon requested members to maintain some decorum in the House. He also commented 
that the matters discussed in the DC and IC levels should stay secret and not be used against or for certain 
candidates. 

6.46 Lt Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel (7280) maintained his position that Dato’ Y. Sivaloganathan had misled the 
House when he said that he had been referred to the Disciplinary Committee (DC). Mr Vishnu Kumar had 
confirmed the said complaint was submitted to and deliberated by the IC and the IC dismissed it.

6.47 YBhg Datuk Muhd Feisol Hassan (E4830) requested the Chairman to proceed with the meeting.

6.48 En Jon Azman repeated that he had wanted the verbatim transcripts of the minutes so as to make the 
minutes as accurate as possible.

6.49 The Chairman said the motion was defeated and the House would move on with the proceedings.

6.50 Mr Vishnu Kumar (15172) commented that no one was misleading the House.

6.51 The Chairman asked for proposer and seconder for the minutes to be accepted if there were no further 
corrections to be made.

6.52 YBhg Dato’ Ir Pang Leong Hoon (E4970) wanted an amendment to be made. He referred to Page 30 
wherein it was minuted that he had made some comments but his name did not appear on the attendance 
list.

6.53 The Chairman took note of the comments made by Dato’ Is Pang Leong Hoon.

6.54 Datuk Muhd Feisol Hassan proposed that the House confirm the minutes of the AGM held on 27 November 
2017. 

6.55 The proposal was seconded by Dr A Pathmanathan (4224).

6.56 A vote was called and the Chairman declared that the minutes of the AGM held on 27 November 2017 duly 
confirmed.

[7.0] Item 2 of the Agenda:
 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Adjourned AGM held on Sunday, 4 December 2016.

7.01 Mr Mahinder Singh Randhawa referred to Page 66, item 3 and commented that it should include his 
statement of serious allegations that had been made against him last Sunday. The said allegation had been 
proven and he takes it very seriously. 

7.02 The Chairman took note of the amendment as proposed by Mr Mahinder Singh Randhawa.

7.03 Mr Khoo Choong Keow (6051) referred to Page 99, item 5.171 and said he did not make that statement and 
had written to the Secretariat accordingly. He had no knowledge of the person who made the statement.

7.04 The Chairman took note of Mr Khoo’s comments and asked for a proposer and seconder to resolve that 
the House accepts and confirm the minutes of the Adjourned AGM dated 4 December 2017, subject to the 
amendments as aforesaid mentioned.

7.05 The resolution was proposed by Mr Teoh Cheng Hai and seconded by Mr Yap Yok Foo (11186).

[8.0] Item 5 of the Agenda:
 To receive the Audit Committee’s Report

8.01 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed put the motion on the floor that the Audit Committee’s Report to be moved up 
for discussion in the agenda. He said there were a number of issues listed therein which would reflect what 
happened to the Club last year. He also commented that people who were the part of the problem was 
standing for election again. He also was devastated at the state of the Club and said nobody wanted to 
look at the main, fundamental issue. He added that the young members who serve the club for the first time 
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were disillusioned and the GC was split into factions. He reminded everyone that the issues highlighted by 
the Audit Committee should be looked at if we want the club to survive. 

8.02 The motion was seconded by Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon and Dato’ Sivaloganathan.

8.03 The Chairman put the motion to a vote and declared it being carried.

8.04 The Chairman proceeded to introduce the members of the Audit Committee (AC) namely Mr L T Kulasingham, 
YBhg Dato’ Syed Mustaffa and Mr Stanley Leng.

8.05 Mr Stanley Tan Chuen Keat recorded a vote of thanks and his deepest appreciation to the Audit Committee. 
He commended the manner the Report was prepared.

8.06 Mr L T Kulasingham (E4904) informed the House that the AC had met up over 20 times as compared to 
normal Audit Committees that meet up for about 3 to 4 times. They had spent a lot of time with the staffs 
of the Club so as to get to know what tasks and duties they were doing. He then invited Dato’ Syed Mustaffa 
to take through the Report.

8.07 Dato’ Syed Mustaffa Syed Ali (13670) proposed and the House accepted to discuss critical issues faced 
by the Club as it would take a lot of time to go through everything in the Report. He added that the biggest 
and most critical issue of the Club were:

(i)  Budget deficit which averaged RM5 million deficit for the past four years and commented that the Club 
will close down in three to four years. 

(ii)  The Club was not able to submit a clean financial report for the past four years.
(iii)  There was problem with spending not in accordance to budget’s approval. 
(iv)  High turnover of senior and trained junior staffs were affecting the efficient running of the Club. 
(v)  There were breaches in the tender committee’s policies and procedures. 
(vi)  The slow situation in service and deteriorating state of the club facilities due to poor maintenance.
(vii)  The quality of the food outlets.
(viii)  The machine room had suffered losses for the past three years compared to an average of RM800,000 

per year profits for seven years before that. This year, the machine room will be losing close to 
RM400,000 and the Club must pay a sum of RM500,000 due to short-paid taxes. 

 He traced the problems of the Club to the poor performance of the GC, particularly at the leadership and 
urged the floor to appoint someone that can lead the GC. He also mentioned that there were no long-
term plans to improve the Club and there were also personal agenda involved that took precedent over the 
Club matters. He added that some important decisions made by the GC were not informed decisions and 
many of the GC members were not familiar with the Club’s procurement and budgeting processes or even 
the Club’s Constitution. He added that the GC had no respect for the tender process and disregarded the 
house’s directions on the subject. The GC members were also interfering with management and breaching 
procedures. He also questioned the quality of the meetings. He noted there was no continuity between GCs. 
He highlighted the poor performance of Sub-Committees (SC) with unclear responsibilities and poor planning. 
The expertise of the SC members was not utilised. The Special Functions SC that was established seven 
years ago was discontinued and not used as mandated. He also attributed the Club’s problem to the high 
turnover of senior management and ineffective GM, particularly the last three GMs. Outdated processes and 
SOPs were also a problem. He also touched on the poor support system. He commented he had not gone 
into details but was willing to discuss certain issues but urged the House to look at the big picture and how to 
move forward and how to help the Club to overcome its weaknesses. He insisted that the critical issue was 
the quality of the GC and the management and that this must be looked at seriously in the future. 

8.08 Mr Mahinder Singh Randhawa congratulated the AC for their concise and accurate Report He also noted 
that the Club’s facilities and surroundings looks rundown and that the current GC members should feel 
ashamed for not being able to work together where consensus by majority should be followed. 

8.09 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa (9857) felt depressed after reading the Audit Committee’s Report. He suggested that 
the Club do something drastic and suggested that incoming GC and its SC be schooled in governance 
through workshops. They should also sign a pledge that they would abide by good governance codes and 
standards.
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8.10 Mr Allan Guy Goonting commented that the rot did not start with just the current GC and it had probably 
started a few years earlier according to the AC Report. He added that he had served in the GC for four 
years and sat in seven SC, mostly as a deputy. He had spent a lot of time learning during his first year and 
for the subsequent three years, the GC then had a plan and, in his opinion, the plan worked. He also added 
that the Club in a nutshell did not have enough money and without money, could not hire good managers 
to manage the Club properly. He reminded the GC that they should be body governing the policies and 
let the managers manage the Club. He commented the food in the Club was not very good and it was 
because the condition of kitchens was wanting and the Club was unable to carry out improvement works 
due to tightening of the budget. He mentioned that there was an SOP prepared by Mr Radha several years 
ago but it was never tabled to the GC. He was also of the view that the problem with rising staff costs was 
not addressed. He suggested that instead of focusing on concessionaires and outlets which gives 20% of 
earnings to the Club, the Club should consider an increase in subscriptions. Finally, the Club should focus 
its energies into increasing income instead of cutting costs as its long-term solutions.

8.11 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed said that it was time for the Club to be realistic and think outside the box. He 
suggested postponing the election and let the Club be managed by a 5-man task force until the issue has 
been sorted out. He also challenged the GC members to come up with solutions to solve the Club’s deficit 
budget. He also suggested to get head-hunters for filling up the vacant positions of the Club. However, 
he disagreed with Mr Allan Guy Goonting that the Club does not have money but instead, the Club was 
not spending it wisely. He said one of the reason people do not come to the Club anymore, especially the 
younger crowd was that the standard of the food in the Club has fallen compared to outside. 

8.12 Dr K J John said that the AGM should proceed as the House had earlier on voted on it. He moved a motion, 
as provided for under Para 161 of the AC Report, that the Club establish a special committee of 5 senior 
members to produce a turnaround plan for approval of the House. 

8.13 Datuk Muhammad Feisol Hassan supported the motion of establishing a special committee to sit down with 
the AC to study, review and come up with the proposal to improve the Club’s finances.

8.14 Mr Manohar Pandian Mahalingam (16222) informed the House that the same issue was highlighted 3 years 
ago and said the Club cannot continue with the same old processes. The Club requires a total business 
process review and re-engineering exercise. He said that the Club needed a separate and independent 
team outside of the GC, to introduce new processes for the Club.

8.15 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa sought clarification on the suggestion made by Datuk Muhd Feisol Hassan and Dr K J 
John to suspend the election of office bearers and the Club to be by a team of 5 people. He also wanted 
clarification on the position of the GC as he was worried that there might be an overlapping of powers and 
could potentially cause new sets of problems. 

8.16 The Chairman informed the House that the election of office bearers shall proceed as planned. He further 
opined that the 5-man special committee recommended by the AC could run independently, looking at the 
bigger picture whilst the GC deals with the day-to-day management issues. He saw no conflict in it. 

8.17 Mr Ng Peng Kong (8723) wanted the GC to adopt the concept of collective responsibility and was 
disappointed that there was a resolution tabled by Vice President of the GC and supported by another 
Committee member on an issue already voted by the GC. He thought the two members should resign. 

8.18 Dato’ Sivaloganathan suggested that the Club buildings needed some improvement works so as to make it 
attractive for people to visit. He had, in the past, brought up the issue to the Committees but was ignored. 
Some of these issues were:

(i)  Matters relating to rules, manners and attire were slowly changing but the Club was slow in adapting 
to such changes. He quoted a survey carried out among younger members at RGSC and one person 
commented that she was not allowed to come to the Club in her choice of dressing but the Club had 
likened itself to being an extension of her home. As such, she rather patronises other places outside 
the Club. 
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(ii)  The last subscription increase was 10 years ago. He also noted that some of the Presidents of the 
Club has been re-classifying entrance fee from the fixed deposit to operating income to massage the 
account’s figures. Such practices should stop as it gave a lopsided account of the Club’s finances.

(iii)  He also commented on an outdated Rule. He told the House that 40% of the Club’s members pays for 
60% of the members because of the Rule that provided for members above the age of 70 and been a 
member of the Club for 25 years would not need to pay subscription. With better health care, people 
were now enjoying better quality life in their 70’s and 80’s.

(iv)  He also commented that the reason why young people don’t come to the Club anymore despite the 
advantages in facility and prices over places outside was because the Club was no longer a fun place. 

8.19 Mr Saw Teng Chuan (7547) wanted the House to remain focus and discuss the items as highlighted in the 
AC Report. He also wanted to talk about the karaoke session of the Club but the Chairman held off the issue 
until when the subject matter comes up in the Agenda later on. 

8.20 Back to the AC Report, Mr Soma Sundram s/o Krishnaswamy held the view that one of the reasons the 
Club faces the same problem every year was because the Club do not hold people responsible for their 
misdoings. He referred to Page 3, Item 15 and expressed his shock with the details involving the machine 
room losses, defective police reports and so on. He wanted the people involved to be responsible and 
not eligible for election, and perhaps arrested. He wanted the House to further deliberate on these issues 
before talking about electing a committee. 

8.21 The Chairman reminded the house that it was soon be 12 o’clock where he would like to start the introduction 
of candidates for election.

8.22 Madam Amu Tharmarajah (9845) wanted to know who was responsible for the operations of the Machine 
Room and asked both its chairman and deputy chairman to stand up. She asked why have the report said 
SC had done very well when the Club received a letter from MOF asking for RM500,000 in unpaid tax. She 
asked why they were even seeking for re-election in such circumstances. She then focused on Item 299 of 
the AC Report on the issue of action to be taken against past president and GC for non-compliance. She 
reminded the House that the candidates were going to introduce themselves for the election and it was part 
of the constitutional process and called upon members not to derail that process.

8.23 The Chairman once again reminded the house that it was noon and wanted to take a break and do the 
introduction for the election. 

8.24 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed reminded everyone that there was a proposal on the floor and it was wrong to 
not discuss and decide on it. Nevertheless, he would leave it to the House to vote on it although he was of 
the view that there would be a conflict of interest with GC and a special committee operating at the same 
time. 

8.25 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon suggested everyone to spoil their votes for the election. 

8.26 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa requested the House to discuss the implication of the 5-man special committee. 
He held the view that it would be a disaster to have GC and the special committee running in parallel. He 
agreed with Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon that the point must be voted on before proceeding any further.

8.27 Having listened to all views expressed by fellow members, Dato’ Sivaloganathan proposed that the House 
to decide whether to suspend the election process and elect a 5-man special committee to manage the 
Club. He was of the view that electing both the General Committee and a special committee might not be 
workable.

8.28 The Chairman noted that such a proposal was highly unusual and new to him.

8.29 Mr M Ganesh Kumar A/L V Marimuthu (16854) said that he was newly elected to membership and having 
heard the discussion so far had frightened him. He agreed that the House should proceed to elect a 5-man 
special committee to manage the Club and proposed Mr Allan Guy Goonting and Mr Ng Peng Kong as its 
members.
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8.30 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa requested Dato’ Sivaloganathan to explain further on the resolution that he had just 
proposed, whether the special committee members were to be nominated or voted in.

8.31 YBhg Dato’ Mustafa Mohd Ali (E3888) thought the general election should go on because notice has 
already given. He also thought the roles of the GC and the special committee were different and both 
Committees should be able to exist together. 

8.32 The Chairman thanked the House for all the suggestions and views put forth. However, he said that he 
was duty-bound to comply with the Club’s Constitution which provided for the election of the members of 
the General Committee. Failing to do might invite lawsuits against the Club. He held that the House could 
proceed to elect a 5-man special committee and provide them with an agreed terms of reference. He 
agreed with Dato’ Mustafa Mohd Ali that both the GC and the special committee should be able to co-exist.

8.33 Ms Lee Mew Kwan (14661) referred the House to Rule 20.1 of the Constitution which said that the Club 
shall be managed by the GC and not a 5-man special committee.

8.34 The Chairman agreed that the 5-man special committee should look into the bigger picture and turn around 
the Club whilst the GC shall manage the day-to-day affairs of the Club. In accordance with the Agenda, he 
informed the House that he would shortly call upon the candidates to introduce themselves.

8.35 Mr Peter Geh Cheng Thye (12647) endorsed what the Chairman and Dato’ Mustaffa said and urged the 
House to proceed as provided for in the Agenda.

8.36 Mr Soma Sundram expressed his concern that there were members who were seeking for re-election were 
being sued themselves and some of them could not work with each other. As such, he urged the House to 
choose wisely.

8.37 The Chairman said he had already made a ruling to proceed with the election of the General Committee. 
He asked for a seconder in support of the resolution to elect a 5-man special committee as put forth by 
En Mohd Kamar Mohamed. Datuk Muhd Feisol Hassan seconded the resolution. The Chairman asked the 
House to nominate members for the 5-man special committee.

8.38 Dr. K J John proposed En Mohd Kamar Mohamed as the Chairman of the 5-man special committee. 
However, En Mohd Kamar Mohamed declined.

8.39 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa proposed that the House to put forth more than 5 names so that it could be voted 
upon. He proposed Dato’ Sivaloganathan as one of the candidates. 

8.40 The Chairman commented that the process of nominating names for the 5-man special committee and 
then voting them in would be taking a considerable amount of time. He reminded the House of the need to 
proceed with the election of the General Committee at 1.00pm when a member from the floor held that the 
Chairman was insensitive and rushing the election process.

8.41 Madam Amu Tharmarajah reminded the House that the election process had to be carried out in compliance 
with the Club’s Constitution as otherwise the AGM might be declared null and void. She nominated Mr Ng 
Peng Kong for the 5-man special committee.

8.42 Dato’ Sivaloganathan declined his nomination for the 5-man special committee as he was already a member 
of the Legal Committee elected last year. He proposed that the House to consider En Zait Bin Mohd Isa and 
Dr K J John. He also seconded the nomination of Mr Ng Peng Kong. 

8.43 Mr Ng Peng Kong declined the nomination as he would be away overseas most of the time.

8.44 Ms Caroline Elane Chiam J T Ling (11193) proposed that the House to proceed with the election process 
and continue with electing the 5-man special committee later.

8.45 The Chairman halted further discussion on the proposal for a 5-man special committee and proceeded with 
the election process. 
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8.46 For the position of the Audit Committee, the Chairman declared that its incumbent three members had 
accepted their nomination to continue for the incoming year. He thanked them for a job well done to a round 
of applause from the House.

8.47 The Chairman then declared that the House had accepted the AC Report as presented.

[9.0] Item 6 of the Agenda
 To appoint Scrutineers for the Ballot 

9.01 The Chairman informed the House that Mr Mohanram Kumar Nagaraj (7423) had volunteered his services 
and shall serve as the Chief Scrutineer. 

9.02 The following volunteered to be Scrutineers:

1)  Pn Fatimah Atan (12246)
2)  Ms Giam Chui Lean (11253)
3)  Ms Serena Tan (11318) 
4)  Ms Irene Ng (8270)
5)  Ms Leona Lee Oi Chan (10462) 
6)  Ms Wendy Wong Bee Yun (10393) 
7)  Ms Caroline Chiam (11193)
8)  Ms Winnye Wong (7338)
9)  Pn Betty Hawa (12766)
10)  Ms Elizabeth Tan (10458)
11)  Ms Janet Woo (13761)
12)  Ms Lim Swee Yin (15477)
13)  Mr Manohar Pandian (16222)
14)  Mr Yew Chor Huat (12654)
15)  Ms Lian Godfrey (E6756) 
16)  Mr Tan See Meng (16110)
17)  Ms Annette Ng (7892)
18)  Ms Kristine Thow (7192)
19)  Mr P Sivan (15186)

9.03 The Chairman invited and introduced YBhg Datuk M Ali (11022), the Chairman of the Elections Committee 
2017. 

9.04 YBhg Datuk M Ali addressed the House and pledged to conduct the election as best as possible. He sought 
the cooperation of all voting members. He then introduced the members of the Elections Committee 
comprising of:

1)  YBhg Datin Jeannie Lim (E5797)
2)  Dr K Vijaya Raghavan (10596)
3)  Dr Matthew Wong Kim Seong (12597)
4)  Mr Kevin Tan Kean Hin (13659)

9.05 The Chairman thanked the Elections Committee for their effort. He also confirmed that the ballot boxes 
were empty. Datuk Muhd Feisol Hassan re-confirmed.

9.06 Mr Ng Peng Kong observed that there were members who did not follow the rules and regulations. He 
referred to clause 10(d) of the Elections Committee Byelaws which stated that the candidates should 
furnish the original bankruptcy search obtained from the Malaysian Department of Insolvency to the Club 
Secretary at least seven days before the date of AGM. He wanted assurance from the Chairman of the 
Elections Committee and the Club Secretary that the said clause had been complied with.

9.07 Madam Amu Tharmarajah replied that Mr Ng Peng Kong had referred to a byelaw but the Club’s Constitution 
requires a member to inform the Club if one was a bankrupt. She sought confirmation from the Vice 
President Bernard Foong who drafted a letter to inform all members of the constitutional requirement of 
having to let the Club know if one was a bankrupt.
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9.08 Mr Bernard Foong stated that he was not clear of Madam Amu Tharmarajah’s question.

9.09 Madam Amu Tharmarajah sought clarification from Mr Bernard Foong what was the constitutional rule on 
bankruptcy.

9.10 Mr Bernard Foong stated that if one was a bankrupt, it did not come to the knowledge of the Membership 
Sub-Committee.

9.11 Madam Amu Tharmarajah reiterated that if one was a bankrupt, one is required to inform the Club and she 
sought Mr Bernard Foong’s assistance to find out the exact clause since he did the constitutional review.

9.12 Mr Bernard Foong replied that he was not in a position to cite the exact clause at that point in time.

9.13 Madam Amu Tharmarajah stated that the byelaw which Mr Ng Peng Kong quoted was superseded by the 
constitutional rule.

9.14 Mr Bernard Foong assured the House that the Club Secretary had carried out an online search with the 
Insolvency Department for every candidate before posting their names on the Notice Board.

9.15 Madam Amu Tharmarajah said that Mr Bernard Foong had missed the point. She said her point was if a 
member of the Club was a bankrupt, nobody would have a clue and the onus was placed on the member 
to inform the Club. She then informed the House that Mr Ng Peng Kong was reading a byelaw and not the 
Constitution itself.

9.16 Datuk Ali gave his assurance that every candidate who submitted the nomination had also submitted the 
required documents and made the necessary declaration. In the absence of such process, the GM had 
ensured a search was done before posting the nominations on the notice board.

9.17 Ng Peng Kong said that he knew it was a byelaw and that it did not override the constitution. He also 
wanted the GC to ensure that rules were followed.

9.18 Madam Amu Tharmarajah reminded the GC against drawing up byelaws which would be in conflict with the 
Club’s Constitution.

9.19 The Chairman took note of the comments made by Mr Ng Peng Kong and Madam Amu Tharmarajah. He 
then requested for the ballot boxes to be moved to the balloting centre.

9.20 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that Rule 19 of the Club’s Constitution provided for the cessation of membership 
and the name of member shall be upon his death, resignation, bankruptcy and so on. He said that there was 
no conflict between the byelaw and the constitution as to how to furnish the details of member’s bankruptcy 
status.

9.21 As there was no further questions on the election process, the Chairman invited the candidates seeking for 
election to introduce themselves.

9.22 There were four (4) candidates vying for the position of President:

(i) Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon 
(ii) Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li
(iii) Mr Bernard Foong Khee Seng
(iv) Dr K J John

9.23 There were four (4) candidates vying for the position of Vice President:

(i) Mr K A Kumar
(ii) Dr Yap Chung Mui
(iii) Lt Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel
(iv) Mr Phillip Soo Hing Lin
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9.24 There were twelve (12) candidates vying for 11 positions in the General Committee:

(i)  Dato’ Nik Gee Siew Yee
(ii)  Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev
(iii)  Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan
(iv)  Mr Daniel Amarasingam Thuraiappah
(v)  Mr Lim Beng Jin
(vi)  Dr Surindar Singh Jeswant Singh
(vii)  Mr Loke Wai Mun
(viii)  Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap
(ix)  Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong
(x)  Mr Sailendra a/l V Kanagasundram
(xi)  Ms Amuthambigai Tharmarajah
(xii)  Mr Chew Teck Hong

9.25 The Chairman announced that the incumbent Audit Committee members will return for another year 
unopposed and invited them to say a few words.

9.26 Mr L T Kulasingham expressed his thanks and hoped to get support from the new GC. 

9.27 Dato’ Syed Mustaffa hoped to work together with the new GC to improve the Club rather than fault-finding.

9.28 Mr Stanley Leng said that it had been a pleasure working with the other two other members of the Audit 
Committee, hence he agreed to stay on for another year.

9.29 Having completed all introductions, the Chairman announced the commencement of balloting at 1.00pm. 

9.30 The Chairman adjourned the meeting at 1.04pm and the meeting to be resumed at 2.15pm.

[10.0] Item 5 of the Agenda:
 To receive the Audit Committee’s Report (continuation)

10.01 The Chairman reconvened the meeting at 2.19pm and called for more names to be nominated for the 
5-man special committee.

10.02 Madam Amu Tharmarajah wanted to go into the audit report in greater detail before nominating more 
names. 

10.03 Mr Jagjit Singh Kaurah (4245) agreed with Madam Amu Tharmarajah. He adds that the Club should look 
into how to improve, attract the young and what to do in the near future. He said that the 5-man special 
committee would have to look at a broader perspective.

10.04 Dato’ Sivaloganathan agreed with the statements made by the two speakers. He said that the matter 
should be brought up earlier when the hall had more people. He suggested to go ahead with the election 
of the 5-man special committee and convene another meeting to specifically tackle the issue. He wanted 
to spend time to discuss more important things like constitutional amendments.

10.05 Mr Saw Teng Chuan agreed that the premise of the 5-man special committee must be clearly stated and 
who do they report to.

10.06 The Chairman said that the 5-man special committee would report to the house.

10.07 Mr Saw Teng Chuan agreed that the special committee must work independently.

10.08 The Chairman also suggested that the President of the GC to sit in the 5-man special committee. 

10.09 Dato’ Syed Mustaffa said that there were eight issues in the audit report that he wanted to highlight. 
However, he said that there was no need to debate on the sources of the problem because it was already 
covered in the report. He held that the House should leave it to the 5-man special committee with their 
expertise to look into it.
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10.10 Dr K J John referred to para 160 on page 17 of the audit report, which contained the list of all the problems. 
He proposed to adopt the entire paragraph and make a small modification to it so that the 5-man special 
committee will have the GM sitting in it as its secretary. He also volunteered to sit in the 5-man special 
committee if he was not voted in as the President. If he was voted as the next President, he said that he 
would disqualify himself.

10.11 The Chairman then asked for more nomination for the 5-man special committee.

10.12 Mr Sailendra A/L V. Kanagasundram (15437) asked whether the three members of the Audit Committee 
would be in the 5-man special committee.

10.13 The Chairman said they would not as they were retuned unopposed as the Audit Committee and would 
continue serving the Club in that same capacity.

10.14 Dato’ Syed Mustaffa assured the house that the two committees would work closely and the Audit 
Committee would offer input and assistance.

10.15 Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong (9697) proposed Mr Loke Mun Kit. However, Mr Loke Mun Kit declined.

10.16 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa volunteered to serve on the 5-man special committee.

10.17 Dr K J John suggested that members below age of 40 and could spare the time and energy to sit in the 
5-man committee.

10.18 Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li proposed Mr Chua Chye Hup and Datin Paduka Komala Devi.

10.19 Mr Ganesh Kumar said that the 5-man special committee should be given a minimum of 3-years term as 
any turnaround plans could not be achieved in such a short time of one year. Although a member had 
suggested that he be voted in on the special committee, he had to decline as one would have to be a 
member of more that four years to serve. He said that he was elected as a voting member a month ago.

10.20 The Chairman agreed with a suggestion from the floor that the members of the 5-man special committee 
should have the necessary expertise in specific areas which would be able to assist the Club.

10.21 Dato’ Sivaloganathan said that it would not matter whether the special committee were given a year or 3 
years as long as they work as much as they could. If the special committee could come back with plans at 
the next AGM, then the House could discuss the matter and implement proposals it deemed fit. He urged 
the House not to complicate matters and allow the 5-man special committee to review, identify issues and 
provide solutions.

10.22 YBhg Datin Paduka Komala Devi Perumal (9690) nominated Madam Amu Tharmarajah, if the latter did not 
get elected into the GC.

10.23 Madam Amu Tharmarajah gave her assurance that if she was not elected as a member of the GC, she 
would volunteer for the special committee and get a long-term plan out in a year. 

10.24 YBhg Tan Sri Dr Salleh Mohd Nor declined the nomination as proposed from the floor.

10.25 Mr Ganesh Kumar expressed his views that the Club would need a 3-year plan, to be implemented quarterly. 
He said that the House should consider nominating younger members, preferably below 50 years of age.

10.26 Madam Lee Mew Kwan proposed Encik Shaik Rizal Sulaiman. However, he declined.

10.27 Madam Amu Tharmarajah proposed En Ahmed Zakki Jabbar. He too declined.

10.28 En Shaik Rizal Sulaiman nominated Mr Allan Guy Goonting.
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10.29 The Chairman summed up the nominated names as follows:

1) Dr K J John, subject to him not elected as President
2) En Zait Isa
3) Mr Chua Chye Hup
4) Datin Paduka Komala Devi
5) Mr Allan Guy Goonting

10.30 The Chairman said that these nominated members would elect a chairman among themselves, and the GM 
shall be the secretary to the special committee.

10.31 Dr K J John proposed that the House to adopt the Audit Committee Report, and the proposal was seconded 
by Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li.

10.32 There being no objection, the Chairman declared that the Audit Committee Report for 2017 was duly 
adopted.

[11.0] Item 3 of the Agenda:
 To receive the report of the General Committee

11.01 The Chairman proceeded to table the report of the General Committee, going page-by-page.

11.02 On Constitutional Review Committee (CRC), Madam Amu Tharmarajah asked whether there were any terms 
of reference from which the CRC worked on, or whether CRC merely review the previous work undertaken 
by Mr Chew Kar Ming, Mr Wong Kuo Shing and another person. Going through the draft, she said that a 
number of issues discussed in 2016 were not included, such as the tenure of the GC to be 2 years and 
changing the financial year to January. She also questioned why there was no picture of the CRC members 
in the annual report.

11.03 The Chairman agreed that it was unusual not to have a picture but it happened due to conflicting 
commitments which could not accommodate everyone’s schedule. He then invited Mr Bernard Foong to 
elaborate on the CRC report.

11.04 Mr Bernard Foong informed the House that two members of the CRC resigned earlier in the year. He 
clarified that Mr Chan Hua Eng, at 88 years old, felt that he ought to spend more time with his family. 
Nevertheless, he imparted inputs for the CRC before leaving. As for Dato Gulam, Mr Bernard Foong said 
that the former resigned as he might be taking the Club up on some other issues. Mr Bernard Foong also 
informed the House that the CRC was supposed to focus on Rules 17 and 18 for which Dato Param, Datuk 
Azian and Datin Grace had put a lot of time into the two areas. 

 Besides that, the CRC also considered changing the financial year-end from 30th June to 31st December 
to be in line with the Registrar of Societies as well as the provision for removing the GC from office. As the 
Club’s finance was an important issue, the CRC also proposed the imposition of a sinking fund of RM15 
and a development levy of RM2,500 for all new members. The CRC also proposed reducing the number of 
members of the GC from 13 to 11.

11.05 Madam Amu Tharmarajah brought up the statement in the annual report that the CRC had carried out a 
thorough review of Rules 17 and 18 but she found no flow chart incorporated in the report. She was of the 
view that a flow chart of the process was essential when discussing the provisions of Rules 17 and 18. She 
informed the House that in 2006, the Bar Council has two separate bodies looking into disciplinary matters, 
namely the Investigation Committee (IC) and the Disciplinary Committee (DC). Over time, the 2-tier disciplinary 
process was not working and the Bar Council had reduced it to 1-tier process a couple of years ago. Hence, 
she was of the view that CRC did not consider an earlier recommendation to do away with 2-tier process.

 Secondly, she also said that the Club had budgeted for town hall sessions and a separate EGM to consider 
the amendments to the Constitution. She wanted to know why there was no town hall session organised 
before presenting the proposed amendments and why the House was being pushed to review the proposed 
amendments at the AGM instead of a separate EGM for that purpose.
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11.06 Mr Bernard Foong said that the constitutional review on Rules 17 and 18 was carried out by three of its 
lawyer members of the CRC. The proposed amendments as tabled was decided by the CRC and he leave 
it to the House to decide.

11.07 Madam Amu Tharmarajah felt that there ought to be more members in the hall and sufficient quorum before 
proceeding to review any proposed amendments.

11.08 The Chairman said that attendance at town hall sessions was low in the past.

11.09 Madam Amu Tharmarajah reminded the House that Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon used to hold quarterly meetings 
with members when he was President and the proceedings at the AGM could be completed in two hours.

11.10 Mr Soma Sundram said he was a member of the CRC in the past and that there were a lot of discussions 
during the town hall sessions and from such discussions, the CRC decided on inputs towards the proposed 
amendments. He stressed that major amendment to the Constitution cannot be discussed in such a short 
time in an AGM. He was of the view that the AGM should be confined to discussing any weaknesses and 
areas of improvement.

10.11 Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li said she was the Chairman of the CRC in 2016 and that the CRC then had gone into 
great length in discussing and deciding the core values of the Club. She said that the Constitution should be 
reviewed comprehensively and not just Rules 17 and 18 so as to avoid the rules contradicting each other.

10.12 The Chairman said that the CRC had worked very hard on the proposed amendments, especially with 
regard to Rules 17 and 18. However, if the House felt that more time was required, the Chairman said he 
was willing to put it to a vote.

10.13 Mr Bernard Foong said that the proposed amendments to Rules 17 and 18 were thoroughly reviewed by 
Dato Param, Datuk Azian and Datin Grace. Unfortunately, all three of them were away overseas.

10.14 Mr Ng Peng Kong said that the CRC was a result of a resolution proposed by Madam Amu Tharmarajah and 
supported by Commander Thayaparan. One of the areas for the CRC to look at was curbing the powers of 
the General Committee. Further, the constitutional review should be carried out by a panel of members not 
confined to lawyers but to include as many varied professions available in the club so as to ensure a good 
cross-section of views were captured.

10.15 The Chairman agreed that the current composition of the CRC was lawyer members, but he added that he 
would put the proposed amendments to a vote should the House decide that more time were needed.

10.16 Dr K J John proposed to postpone the discussion on the constitutional review to a dedicated EGM to be 
held later.

11.17 The Chairman suggested that the CRC shall present the constitutional review at the EGM to be held in 
February, the same time when the GC table the audited account.

11.18 Dr K J John disagreed. He proposed that the constitutional review be held separately from the planned EGM 
to discuss the audited accounts.

11.19 Ms Lee Mew Kwan seconded the said proposal.

11.20 Mr Soma Sundram seconded the proposal put forth by Dr K J John too. He requested that the incoming 
Committee considers including some members of the past CRC for their inputs.

11.21 The Chairman declared that the constitutional review shall be tabled at a later date. 

11.22 Under Membership, Mr Ng Peng Kong directed his comment to the Vice President who was the chairman 
of the Membership Sub-Committee. He found the decision to reinstate a defaulter whose membership was 
ceased in 2007 to be an illogical one. He said that the member concerned had appealed on three separate 
occasions, namely 30 May 2007, 15 June 2010 and 7 July 2010 and each time the appeal was rejected 
due to poor payment records. However, the Membership Sub-Committee in 2017 decided to allow the 
appeal because the laws of the country provided for redemption and that the member had been denied the 
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privileges of membership for the past 10 years. Mr Ng Peng Kong wanted to know what did the defaulter 
did to redeem himself and what were the criteria in reopening the case. 

11.23 Mr Bernard Foong did not agree with Mr Ng Peng Kong’s statement as the decision to reinstate the 
defaulter’s membership was approved by the GC and not the Membership Sub-Committee. He added that 
he did not know the defaulter personally.

11.24 Mr Ng Peng Kong felt it was getting very personal and that he was asking a question and since Mr Bernard 
Foong held a position in public office, he should answer the question posed.

11.25 Mr Bernard Foong clarified that he was only trying to clear any confusion that might arise. He reiterated that 
he did not approve the decision and that the said decision was made by the Membership Sub-Committee.

11.26 Mr Ng Peng Kong said he did not accuse Mr Bernard Foong for approving the reinstatement, but that he had 
recommended the reinstatement. Mr Ng wanted to know the grounds for recommending the reinstatement.

11.27 Mr Bernard Foong referred to Rule 16.5 of the Constitution which provided for the GC to reinstate lapsed 
membership upon written request within reasonable time thereof and payment in full of all dues provided 
and explanation in writing for the delay in payments. 

11.28 Ms Lee Mew Kwan asked what define “reasonable time” as provided for in the Constitution.

11.29 Mr Bernard Foong said the CRC, for the purpose of the amendments to the constitution, changed the 
“reasonable time” to 30 days. 

 Mr Bernard Foong explained that the reason for Datuk Harpal Singh defaulted in his accounts was due to 
him travelling overseas most of the time and during the 1990 to 2000, there was no auto debit facility 
available. As such, he made lump sum payments whenever he was back in Malaysia. Secondly, the GCs 
in the past had reviewed the appeals and the Membership Sub-Committee (MSC) saw no reason not to 
review the appeal when it was submitted in February. The MSC also took note that the MSCs and GCs in the 
past had not allowed the appeal as the member had defaulted his accounts more than twice, and not the 
reasons for the default. The MSC also looked into the membership records of the said member and found 
nothing untoward in terms of conduct. Therefore, the MSC recommended the appeal with the requirement 
that the member sign up for auto debit and pay all the backdated subscriptions.

11.30 Madam Amu Tharmarajah reminded Mr Bernard Foong that defaulting in making payment was considered 
the biggest sin in the Club. She also said that the circumstances that the defaulter went through were not 
special as there were various things that could be done to avoid such default in accounts. She said that 
such precedent set by Mr Bernard Foong was unacceptable and wanted him to apologise to the House.

11.31 En Jon Azman said he was the Chairman of the Membership Sub-Committee when the appeal was brought 
before the MSC. He said the same rules applied to everyone and members could have paid their subscription 
in advance if one travels overseas frequently. He said that the excuse of not paying the subscriptions 
because one was overseas was not acceptable.

11.32 YBhg Dato’ Philip Chan Hon Keong (14602) asked who were the members of the Membership Sub-
Committee.

11.33 Mr Bernard Fong said that the Membership Sub-Committee comprised the deputy chairman, Mr Lim Beng 
Jin, members Tan Sri Augustine Ong, Tan Sri Dr Salleh Mohd Nor, Tan Sri Jegathesan and Ms Caroline 
Elaine Chiam. He was the chairman of the MSC.

11.35 Dato’ Philip Chan asked whether all facts were tabled to the MSC and GC for deliberation.

11.36 Mr Bernard Foong replied in the affirmative.

11.37 That being the case, Dato’ Philip Chan requested the Chairman to move on to the next item on the agenda.

11.38 Mr Ng Peng Kong said that he would not wish to be involved in a debate on the matter, but he wanted the 
Chairman of the MSC to explain the grounds for reinstating the defaulter.
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11.39 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas (14673) held that Mr Bernard Foong had already explained the circumstances when 
the appeal was allowed. He asked the House to move on to the next agenda.

11.40 En Hassanuddin Puteh (12742) asked the GC whether the suspension of Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li and Dato’ 
Nik Gee was revoked and if yes, by whom.

11.41 The Chairman wanted to keep the topic on issues regarding membership, to which En Hassanuddin Puteh 
said the question he asked pertains to membership issue as well.

11.42 Madam Amu Tharmarajah inquiried about a gentleman who was bankrupt but regains access to the Club 
through spousal membership and asked if the GC or Membership Sub-Committee supported this type of 
action as she felt that it might set a bad precedent.

11.43 Mr Bernard Foong requested Madam Amu Tharmarajah to name the gentleman. 

11.44 Madam Amu Tharmarajah turned the question to the past president, En Jon Azman if the case in question 
was during his tenure in office.

11.45 En Jon Azman replied in the affirmative. He further stated that the wife of the gentleman in question was 
qualified to be a member herself. 

11.46 Madam Amu Tharmarajah wanted the rules to apply to all members of the Club without exceptions. In 
respect of the matter of Datuk Harpal Singh, she held the view that he should be allowed to go through 
temporary membership before being granted full membership.

 11.47 Mr Bernard Foong agreed with Madam Amu Tharmarajah. He also added that the MSC was trying to be 
open and transparent. He stated if there were complaints about members being a bankrupt, the GM’s Office 
will immediately check with the Insolvency Department and cease the membership if it was found to be 
true. 

 He further informed the House that the MSC had also corrected 24 cases of undercharging subscriptions 
and 18 cases of overcharging subscription. There were also numerous cases of candidates who had 
applied for membership some years back but has yet to attend an interview, and that there were members 
who have yet to attend the introduction even though they were posted as provisional members as far back 
as 1992. The MSC had cleared most of such cases with 10 remaining to be monitored. The MSC also 
found out that charges for 4,000 membership cards that were not billed to the members the past few 
years.

11.48 Madam Amu Tharmarajah said that she appreciated all the work that the MSC had done. She only wished 
that the MSC had allowed Datuk Harpal Singh to re-apply as a new member.

11.49 Mr Bernard Foong replied that the constitution disallowed anyone whose membership was ceased due 
to default in their accounts to re-apply for membership. The only option open to them was the appeal for 
reinstatement.

11.50 Madam Amu Tharmarajah held that Mr Bernard Foong should not have recommended the appeal.

11.51 On another subject, Madam Amu Tharmarajah brought up the issue of drivers of member using e-cards at 
the Batik Bar for drinks.

11.52 Dr K J John suggested for Madam Amu Tharmarajah to bring up operational issues to the GM or better still 
to write to the Club on the matter.

11.53 The Chairman then move on to Investigation and Disciplinary Panel.

11.54 En Hassanuddin Puteh asked whether a suspension of a member decided by a previous GC can be revoked 
by a subsequent GC without going to the House and an EGM. 

11.55 Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev (15673) answered that at the previous AGM, the House agreed that the GC 
to look at the validity of each and every suspension over the last 5 years and come up with a decision. In 
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respect of case involving Dato’ Nik Gee, the GC had decided to revoke the said suspension. However, in 
the case of Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li, Mr Prithviraj said that there was no need for the GC to deliberate as 
the House had deemed the EGM to be valid and the question of lifting or revoking the suspension did not 
arise.

11.56 En Hassanuddin Puteh asked for the official ruling on the EGM being valid, in writing. He said he had a 
tape recording of his conversation with the Registrar of Societies (ROS) which confirmed no such decision 
was made. He said that the ROS had withdrawn the show cause letter to the Club due to two conflicting 
interpretations whether the EGM was valid or otherwise. He further added that if the EGM was invalid, then 
Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li should remain suspended.

11.57 Mr Prithviraj said the ROS had sent a show cause letter to the Club saying the EGM was not properly 
constituted. However, when the GC explained the circumstances surrounding the EGM, the ROS had written 
to the Club in that they had accepted the explanation and accordingly, the EGM was deemed to have 
properly constituted.

11.58 En Hassanuddin Puteh disagreed with the statement because there was no letter that said the EGM was 
properly constituted.

11.59 Dr K J John asked why En Hassanuddin Puteh did not bring the matter up during the confirmation of the 
minutes of the EGM earlier.

11.60 En Hassanuddin Puteh wanted the President to explain the matter as he was the person who went to the 
ROS Office.

11.61 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas wanted to know if there was indeed a letter from ROS that deem the EGM as invalid.

11.62 Dato’ Sivaloganathan said that he did not follow the proceeding earlier and asked for clarification on the 
question posed.

11.63 En Hassanuddin Puteh asked if there was a letter from ROS to the Club confirming the EGM was valid and 
that Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li could be reinstated.

11.64 Mr Prithviraj said that the ROS had written to the Club on 23 December 2016.

11.65 En Hassanuddin Puteh contended that the said letter did not confirm the EGM as valid and that the 
suspension on Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li could be revoked.

11.66 Dato’ Sivaloganathan asked the Chairman to take control of the proceeding and avoid repeating the same 
arguments. He explained to En Hassanuddin Puteh that the House had decided that the EGM in respect of 
Dr Molly Cheah’s EGM was deemed to have quorum. While En Jon Azman and the House took a different 
view, Rule 31 provided for the House to overrule the GC. Once the House overruled it, the decision 
was then final. He said that he had, together with Datuk Muhd Feisol Hassan, Datuk Noor Azian and the 
President met up with the ROS to explain how the meetings were conducted and how the resolutions come 
to the floor to which the Registrar accepted. The ROS then withdrew the letter to de-register the club. Dato’ 
Sivaloganathan said that matters which had been discussed and decided upon should be closed and not 
brought up time and again. He said that there must be a finality on the matter.

11.67 En Hassanuddin Puteh stated that he deserves a reply and that finality of an issue would be when the 
highest court had declared so and not for the ROS to decide so.

11.68 Dato’ Sivaloganathan contended that if the ROS was not the body to decide whether there was a quorum 
or otherwise, then the Club should not have written to ROS in the first instance. He asked the Chairman to 
rule En Hassanuddin Puteh as out of order and move on. 

11.69 The Chairman proceeded and tabled the reports on Information Technology, Human Resources and 
Editorial. There were no questions fielded.

11.70 On Machine Room, Ms Lee Mew Kwan asked for confirmation whether the House could adopt the report 
considering that the Club had recently received a letter from the Ministry of Finance (MOF).
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11.71 The Chairman replied that the report would have to be based on the recent development and invited Mr 
Chew Teck Hong, the chairman of the Machine Room to clarify matters.

11.72 Mr Chew Teck Hong (12666) explained how the machine room was managed. When the Machine Room 
Sub-Committee took office, they looked into the issue of the gross collection which became an issue earlier 
on. As such, a dialogue between the industry players and MOF was held on 14 February 2017, which 
meeting the Club’s former General Manager failed to attend. At that meeting, he informed the House that 
a former senior staff, Mr Ganeser Kaliapan of the MOF presented a proposal paper on the calculation of 
gaming tax. The Machine Room Sub-Committee took his advice and implemented it accordingly until the 
Audit Committee insisted that the Club must obtained a written confirmation from the MOF. Mr Chew then 
invited the Deputy Chairman to explain the computation of the gaming tax.

11.73 Ms Lee Mew Kwan stated that the House wanted the GC to address the letter from MOF on the underpaid 
taxes.

11.74 Mr Lim Beng Jin (12120) said when the Sub-Committee took over, they looked at various parts of the 
Machine Room operations to determine where the Club was losing and earning money. One of the areas 
was gaming tax which the Sub-Committee found that the Finance Department was not complying with 
MOF’s definition of Gross Collection. He then showed the MOF definition on a slide which specified 
‘pungutan kasar’ (Gross Collection) as ‘jumlah wang yang didapati di dalam Peti Wang Mesin Slot bagi 
setiap bulan’ (which means the ‘total amount of money collected in the Slot Machine Cash Hopper for each 
month’), that is, the Club’s earnings. He then elaborated on how the machine room operates. There are 
15 slot machines whereby members pay money to the cashier to purchase digital credits. The cashier 
will record the payment and translate the amount into digital credits which is then loaded into the slot 
machine. When the member is done playing, the remaining credits are converted back to cash. (As such, 
the cash collected by the cashier at the end of each day (for the month) would be the Club earnings, which 
is also the Gross Collection.)

11.75 Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon (13399) asked why the House was being briefed with such information to which 
Mr Lim Beng Jin replied that he wanted to establish the background of the issue at hand.

11.76 Mr Patrick Chiam said the House would want to know if the Club has replied to MOF that the Club’s 
calculation of the gaming tax was correct.

11.77 Mr Lim Beng Jin stated that the President had sent a letter to the MOF.

11.78 The Chairman confirmed the statement and added that the Club had immediately written to MOF seeking 
clarification.

11.79 Mr Patrick Chiam held that the Club should have written to the MOF and prove to them that the Club was 
correct in its calculation.

11.80 Mr Soma Sundram asked whether the Club had complied with the requirements in the calculation of the 
gaming tax as advised by the MOF. He was concerned that the MOF may withdraw the permit granted to 
the Club to operate the slot machines. Finally, he asked the GC to treat the House with respect.

11.81 Mr Patrick Chiam reminded the House that earlier in the morning, the House was briefed by the Audit 
Committee that the calculation of the gaming tax was wrong and the MOF sent the Club a letter to confirmed 
so. He asked the Audit Committee did they concluded that the calculation as explained by the Machine 
Room chairman was wrong.

11.82 Mr Stanley Leng Joon Huat (13266) explained that the Club was supposed to pay taxes based on gross 
collection while the GC minutes indicated that the GC had decided to based it on nett collection.

11.83 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said he was confused and asked for an explanation. He held that there should not be 
any confusion as the calculation must be based on how it was spelt out by the MOF.

11.84 Mr Chew Teck Hong explained that from accounting point of view, the nett collection was the figure after 
the machine payout.
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11.85 The Chairman explained that the letter from the MOF stated that deductions allowed were withdrawal of 
play when a player stop in mid-play. Such would mean that deduction of payment before the 20% tax being 
applied was not allowed.

11.86 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said that he had sought clarification from the MOF when he was a member of the 
Audit Committee a couple of years ago. The credit that the player took out was the only deduction that was 
allowed. Every other amount that went into the machine was taxable at 20%. He then asked why was the 
calculation changed.

11.87 The Chairman said that he had met up with the officers at MOF to seek clarification. After that discussion, the 
MOF had sent a letter to the Club giving the definition and the way to calculate the tax and any withdrawals 
should be taken out of the 20% tax. On 30th November, the MOF officers inspected the calculations as 
made by the Club and they concluded that there was money owed by the Club, and a letter to that effect 
was sent to the Club on the same day. However, the Club only read the letter on 7th December. The said 
letter had an attachment detailing the calculations made from September 2016 up to October 2017. The 
Club again wrote to the MOF seeking help in showing where the calculation went wrong. While waiting for a 
reply, the Chairman held that the Club should pay first as the deadline for the payment was 14th December.

11.88 Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah (11551) asked if the GC had shown the slides that were being presented then to 
the MOF and who had met with the MOF officers when they came for the inspection.

11.89 The Chairman said he met the MOF officers later, together with Mr Chew Teck Hong and Mr Lim Beng Jin.

11.90 Mr Chew Teck Hong said that he had made an explanation to the MOF officers but they maintained that our 
calculations were wrong.

11.91 Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah said it was a waste of time showing the slides to the House when the MOF had 
already informed the Club that its calculations were wrong.

11.92 Mr Allan Guy Goonting said the House just wanted to know whether the MOF was correct or the Club, and 
that there was no necessity for long explanations.

11.93 The Chairman said the MOF would be correct as they are the authority on the matter.

11.94 Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li was surprised that the same situation came up this year as similar situation happened 
in the second half of 2014, going into 2015. The Club had a shortfall of RM487,000 in unpaid taxes. That 
amount was just settled in May 2016. She remembered a request to install an equipment which monitors 
the flow of money in the machine room.

11.95 The Chairman confirmed that the shortfall of the gaming tax was from September 2016.

11.96 Dato’ Syed Mustaffa explained to the House that an expert had joined the machine room meeting in February 
advising them that it was wrong not to minus the payout in the calculation of the gaming tax. In April, the GC 
deliberated whether the Club should bring the matter up with MOF. However, on the recommendation of the 
Machine Room Chairman supported by the expert’s advice, the GC decided to calculate the taxes based 
on nett collections, the same mistake made from January 2015 to May 2015. The former finance manager 
then went to MOF to seek clarification on the gaming tax calculation on monies withdrawn by members in 
mid-play, but he came up with a wrong formula. Hence, the Club had been wrongly calculating the gaming 
tax from April 2017. Dato’ Mustaffa held that the GC was misled, wrongly advised by the Machine Room 
Chairman and should not make the decision without sufficient checking and information. 

11.97 The Chairman said the reason he personally went to visit the MOF was because he wanted to listen with 
his own ears the definition or formula that the MOF uses. He was surprised when the MOF sent the Club a 
clear definition on the calculation of gaming tax.

11.98 Dr Lee Hung Cheong (10407) said that he fail to understand why the machine room players were not 
allowed to be the members of the Machine Room Sub-Committee. He was told that there was a fear of 
machine room players being in the committee may be in cahoots with the machine room workers, which 
he deemed ridiculous.
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11.99 Mr Chew Teck Hong explained that such decision came about so as to avoid any possible conflict of 
interest when a player was also a member of the Machine Room Sub-Committee.

11.100 Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li said she was the chairman of the machine room in 2016. She further added that 
many years prior to that, machine room players were members of the Sub-Committee. She also referred 
to the terms of reference of the machine room which did not stipulate that the Sub-Committee was 
responsible for the profitability of the machine room and that it was the responsibility of the GC. Thus, 
there was no conflict of interest if a machine room player was the member of the Machine Room Sub-
Committee. She thought it was wrong to keep players of the machine room from being the Machine Room 
Sub-Committee member.

11.101 Mr Patrick Chiam said he produced the highest earnings for the Club from the machine room and all 
his Sub-Committee members were machine room players. He added that even before his time, all Sub-
Committee members of the machine room were players because they know what the machine room was 
all about. He failed to understand why there was a sudden distrust for machine room players in the Club 
suddenly. He would not want to waste time and asked the Chairman to move on. He wanted the Machine 
Room Sub-Committee to admit that they made a mistake and an observation be made that there was 
inaccuracy in the said machine room report. 

11.102 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas want to know if calculation of gross was now calculated at the end of the month.

11.103 Mr Lim Beng Jin said that the Finance Department was supposed to do so.

11.104 The Chairman informed the House that the Club would make the necessary payments now that the MOF 
had written in with clear definition. 

11.105 Dato’ Syed Mustaffa explained that deposit minus withdrawal becomes collection but the MOF did not 
trust the Club’s figures, so the deposit became gross collection. The Club must show proof to MOF if 
there was a withdrawal.

11.106 Mr Lim Beng Jin said that it was important for the Club to understand the financial viability of the slot 
machine now that the Club knows what was the MOF’s new definition of Gross Collection as obtained 
by the President from MOF. The machine room slot machines were programmed to pay out at the rate 
between 85.9% to 95.6% which means the Club makes at most 14.1%. If the Club pays 20% upfront to 
MOF, the Club would always lose money.

11.107 Mr Soma Sundram recommended Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas be included in the Machine Room Sub-Committee 
next year. He also stated that there was nothing that the Club can do now but to recognise its mistakes. 
He also questioned the President on how reports by Sub-Committee chairman were verified.

11.108 The Chairman clarified that the whole incident on the gaming tax calculations only happened a week ago.

11.109 Mr Soma Sundram wondered if the GC was aware of these issues as he heard that the GC was so divided 
that it cannot come to a decision. He stressed that there must be collective responsibility for decision 
made on major issues like this. Moving forward, he hoped this incident be a lesson to everyone. 

11.110 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas agreed with Mr Lim Beng Jin of the fact that the Club paying 20% tax to MOF while 
having a maximum 14% return was not logical. He suggested that the Club should follow up with the MOF 
on the best way forward.

11.111 The Chairman requested the House to close the discussion on the matter any further, and proposed that 
the machine room report be rejected.

11.112 The proposal was put to a vote and the Chairman declared that the House had unanimously rejected the 
machine room report.
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11.113 En Salih Amran Jamiaan (5229) wanted to know why there were so many resignations and the results of 
the exit interviews so conducted. He also noted that the overtime costs were high with the Club being 
understaffed where it was difficult to get service at the Buttery. He wanted an explanation on the staffing 
issues faced by the Club.

11.114 Mr K A Kumar (13512) explained that the high overtime was due to a number of events held at the 
banquet hall. However, he did not have detailed breakdown for each of the events as the amount was put 
under human resource expenses.

11.115 En Salih Amran also asked about the resignations of the department heads included that of the F&B, F&M 
and Finance departments. He also highlighted that the GM had also resigned and held that the House 
should be duly informed.

11.116 Mr K A Kumar stated that the Club faced many challenges at the start of the year. He said that there was 
no human resources manager for nearly 10 months and the Club managed to employ Wan Suhaila almost 
immediately. He said that the finance manager had resigned due to ill health but a replacement was found. 
However, the replacement subsequently resigned as well. In respect of the F&B Manager, Mr Kumar said 
that his employment was terminated arising from a disciplinary matter. The Club was in the process of 
interviewing candidates for the position of the F&B Manager. The Club had also recently employed a 
General Manager, Francis Xavier. 

11.117 En Salih Amran asked how many staffs were there in the human resource department to which Mr Kumar 
answered that there were 2 other staff besides the human resource manager.

11.118 En Salih Amran thought the Club and the GC did not put enough importance towards human resource. He 
pleaded to the coming GC to look into it and get more staffs for the human resource department. 

11.119 The Chairman thought the current number of staffs was sufficient as long as they were efficient. 

11.120 En Salih Amran thought it was not sufficient to serve 2,000 active club members.

11.121 The Chairman explained that the human resource department only serve the staffs and not the club 
members but En Salih Amran contended that the reason they existed was because of the club members.

11.122 Mr Stanley Leng directed the House’s attention the slides. He commented that the staffing situation of the 
Club was really bad and must be rectified. In the old days, the Club took human resource very seriously 
and that was why the Club had good standards but it was discontinued later. A number of staff left 
between 2008 and 2010. A VSS was done and the staff number drops from 200 to 120 within 2 years 
and the service quality suffered. The Club turned a blind eye towards the situation. Up until 2014, the Club 
went through 7 finance managers, 6 human resource managers and about 4 membership managers. 
There were also periods where the Club did not have both GM and managers. He added if the machine 
room’s finances can go back to the olden days when it generated profits, it could subsidize all other costs 
of the Club. In respect of the Machine Room, he thought the problem did not lie with the gaming tax or the 
food. One of the areas to look at was the number of players that the machine room was serving. It went 
from an average of 13 to 14 players to 8.5 players. He asked the committee to consider promotions of 
some sort. 

11.123 The Chairman thanked Mr Stanley Leng for his informative explanation and moved on to the finance 
report.

[12.0] Item 4 of the Agenda:
 To receive and, if approved, pass the Audited Accounts 
 for the year ended 30th June 2017

12.01 The Chairman stated that the Club would need to convene an EGM at a later date to discuss the audited 
account. He then invited the deputy finance chairman, Mr Lee King Loon to take the House through the 
management accounts as well as the schedule of the audited account.
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12.02 Mr Lee King Loon (14374) presented the progress of the audited account to the House. When the GC took 
over in December 2016, the Club have 4 years of qualified accounts, dating back to 2013, which left the 
brought forward balances up to 30th June 2016 or 1st July 2016 questionable. The Committee realised 
that they need to hire a good finance manager as the then finance manager had intended to resign due to 
poor health. The Committee quickly found a replacement but she was only able to join on a part time basis 
in January and subsequently on a full-time basis in mid-April. By May or June 2017, the Committee was 
reasonably confident that the account would be ready in time by end of August or early September 2017 
for audit, which in turn led to an audited account to be tabled at the AGM today. Unfortunately, the finance 
manager resigned abruptly and served her last day on 19 July 2017 which resulted in a severe setback as 
there was an additional 5 months of backlog to deal with. The accounts from July 2016 to December 2016 
were not prepared when the Committee took over. A new finance manager was found but she declined 
when she got a counter-offer. Subsequently, Gordon joined the Club in mid-September 2017.

 After due deliberation, the Committee found that the best way to finalise the Club’s account was to engage 
an external firm to assist the finance department to deal with management accounts up to 30th June 2017 
before handing it over to Azman, Wong & Salleh (AWS) to commence the auditing. The external accounting 
firm called SBY started work on 23 October 2017 and they were given one month to complete the task 
to avoid any cost overrun as the Club had very strict budget. Any unreconciled items would be classified 
into a suspend account and treated via a write-off to the P&L or to capitalised as a reserve to be resolved 
at a later date. On the 17 November 2017, SBY was able to close the Club’s management account up 
to 30 June 2017 and prepared more than 90% of the audit schedule. The Club’s management team then 
reviewed the proposed adjustments by SBY and posted it into the management accounts and finalised 
it on that basis. On 29 November 2017, AWS commence their audit. On 8 December 2017, the Club 
discussed with AWS on any outstanding issues and the expected timing of the completed audited account. 
AWS confirmed that they would be able to complete the audit field work by the end of December and would 
be in position to meet with the GC in early January 2018 to present their findings and to propose audit 
adjustments and updated statutory accounts for the GC’s deliberation and approval. Assuming the new 
GC approves the accounts presented by AWS, then the audit report can be signed off and issuance of an 
audited account can be done by mid-January 2018. Then, an EGM can be called by February 2018 after 
all the necessary procedures were carried out. He stressed that the success rate of following the above 
timeline very much depends on the support of the incoming GC. He and most of his fellow FSC members 
will be willing to assist the incoming GC to ensure the audited accounts are issued on time. He said that 
the FSC members did not take up the job of completing the management account as all the members had 
full-time businesses and employment to run and could not commit the time. 

 He then presents the management accounts to the House. In terms of normal operating income and 
operating expenditure, he did not anticipate much differences from the audited accounts. The main 
adjustment would be the machine room income due to additional taxes. For the year ended 30 June 2017, 
the Club achieved an income of about RM10.7 million compared to RM10.5 million last year. The operating 
deficit went from RM5.3 million last year to RM4.9 million currently. The machine room income went from 
RM816,000 last year to RM1.0 million currently. The deficit of income over expenditure was RM3.8 million 
compared to RM4.5 million last year. Entrance fee was now no longer classified as operating income due 
to the House’s ruling last year. The Club’s nett deficit before entrance fee was RM3.8 million compared to 
RM4.6 million last year. With entrance fee included, it decreases to RM2.27 million as compared to RM2.7 
million last year. In terms of nett cash loss, the Club lost RM2.8 million this year compared to RM3.6 million 
last year, which was more than RM200,000 per month or RM8,000 a day. The Club spent RM800,000 
on fixed assets this year compared to RM1.7 million last year. Overall, the Club’s nett decrease of cash 
reserves was about RM2.2 million this year as compared to RM3.7 million last year. The current Club’s cash 
reserve stands at about RM28 million. He remarked that the Club will finish up its cash reserves in 10 years. 
He was of the opinion that Mr Allan Goonting’s suggestion of increasing subscription should seriously be 
considered by the Club. 

12.03 Mr Ow Eng Haw (15477) wanted to clarify that the letter from MOF with regards to gaming tax only came 
in recently and as such was not reflected in the report.
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12.04 The Chairman noted of it and said the preparations for the annual report was done much earlier. 

12.05 Mr Lachman Naraindas (14464) wondered why the Club did not employ foreign workers to overcome the 
issue of staff shortage. He suggested the committee to look into it and reduce the pressure of employing 
only local staffs by way of good accommodation or good transportation. He also thought that work permits 
would be easy to obtain as the Club was legitimate. He adds that F&B should generate more income for 
the Club and it should be protected. He also inquired whether there were any records of refunds that the 
machine room give so that it can be sent to the MOF to reduce the tax owed. 

12.06 The Chairman said the 5-man turnaround committee was supposed to look into those issues. With regards 
to the increase to the subscription, a RM20 increase will be a quick solution to the budget deficit faced by 
the Club. However, he suggested to increase to perhaps RM50 as RM20 to RM30 was too little. 

12.07 Mr Lachman Naraindas wanted to increase revenue by increasing the patronage of the Club’s outlets and 
not subscription. His opinion is that increasing subscription would only discourage new members from 
joining the Club.

12.08 Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li suggested that the Club charges non-members for parking at the Club.

12.09 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted to know why the report did not state the appointment of SBY and the cost of 
the appointment. 

12.10 Mr Lee King Loon referred to page 133 of the annual report which mentioned that the Club engaged an 
external accounting firm. The Club paid a fee of RM50,000 for one month’s work.

12.11 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa felt that the report was a form of an advertisement for AWS as the report suggested 
that the Club retain the said firm due to them being less persuaded by the Club’s politics. He wanted an 
explanation for it.

12.12 Mr Lee King Loon explained that what the Finance Committee was of the view that any external auditor who 
audits the Club’s accounts should be truly independent and not be subjected to any political influence by 
any members or factors within the Club.

12.13 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa disagreed with Mr Lee King Loon’s definition of the said paragraph. 

12.14 Dr K J John asked if AWS was too familiar with the Club and thus closing one eye to troubles faced by the 
Club’s finances. He wanted the Committee to be transparent. 

12.15 Mr Lee King Loon personally thought that AWS was too familiar with the politics of the Club as they have 
attended many AGMs as well as being the Club’s auditors for many years. He believes that AWS had been 
threatened by members of the Club not to sign an unqualified account lest they would receive a complaint 
from MIA. He was told that it had happened to the Royal Selangor Club’s auditor. He personally thought an 
auditor who was less familiar with the politics of the club would be able to form a more independent opinion 
on the accounts of the Club.

12.16 Dr K J John came to understand that under good practices promoted by MIA, it had been suggested that 
organisations like the Club changes auditors every 5 years for the reasons given by Mr Lee King Loon. 

12.17 Mr Lee King Loon agreed that it would be a good corporate governance practice but note that in reality, in 
many of the accounting firms, instead of resigning, they rotate engagement partner and bring in an entirely 
new audit team to audit their client’s account. 

12.18 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said there were three resolutions put up by Mr Edward Teoh (10473) but resolution #1 
had been ignored by the GC. Resolution # 3 might also had been ignored as it was not in the current report 
and not addressed by previous GC too. He asked if it was the habit of the GC to ignore resolutions passed 
by the floor. He requested the incoming GC to tabulate all resolutions with its status and report back to the 
members. He also wanted explanation on what happened to resolutions #1 and #3.
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12.19 The Chairman stated that the internal audit team had addressed resolution #1 and assured the House that 
the incoming President and the GC would ensure that the Club will employ a competent accounts-oriented 
GM backed by finance manager. 

12.20 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted the Chairman to focus on resolutions #1 and #3.

12.21 Mr Stanley Leng asked if the question was why the present GC did not take up the resolutions. He said that 
the Audit Committee had given their answer in the appendix of their report. The committee could not do 
anything about resolution #3.

12.22 Mr Bernard Foong thought that it was not right to say that the GC did not do anything about the resolution. 
When the GC took office, the GC had a discussion with the Audit Committee because they would be the best 
body to investigate those 68 cheques. As such, the matter was reported in the Audit Committee’s report.

12.23 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said he did not mean it that way. He said it was not in the report.

12.24 Mr Bernard Foong said that the GC in 2016 was supposed to answer it but they did not. Hence, the 2017 
GC had a discussion with the Audit Committee and they investigated the 68 cheques and cleared it. The 
matter was also briefed to the GC.

12.25 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said that Mr Bernard Foong did not get his point. He asked why did the GC ignored 
the investigation done on resolution #1. He referred to page 419. He asked if the President of GC 2016 
complied with the resolution. 

12.26 Mr Stanley Leng clarified that it was the 2016 GC that failed to comply with the resolution, and not the 
current 2017 GC.

12.27 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa then asked what happened to resolution #3.

12.28 Mr Stanley Leng clarified that all the 3 resolutions were supposed to be addressed by the previous GC, not 
the current GC.

12.29 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said his point was that the floor wanted an assurance that whenever a resolution was 
passed by the floor, it gets carried out, no matter which GC it falls upon. 

12.30 Dr K J John clarified that the point made by En Zait bin Mohd Isa was that in the event that the former GC 
fail to address the resolutions passed by the House, it would naturally flow over to the next GC.

12.31 Mr Stanley Leng agreed with the statement made Dr K J John.

12.32 Dr K J John thought that was a rhetorical question because it depends on how you constitute the GC and 
how you want to start digging. 

12.33 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa stated that this was a financial report and they were talking about losses. The resolution 
#3 also touched on losses and as far as that resolution was concerned, it was still an outstanding matter. 
He wanted to know why it was not addressed in the report. It was the corporate profitability of the Club. 

12.34 Mr Bernard Foong agreed with En Zait Isa. In respect of resolution #1, when he was the Chairman of the 
Finance Committee, they dug out all the information and had discussions with the Audit Committee. In 
respect of resolution #2, he had brought it up to the GC to make sure the Club employed a competent GM. 
He was unable to answer resolution #3 as he was no longer the chairman of finance then. However, he 
agreed that it definitely has to continue.

12.35 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted the GC to tabulate all the resolution that has been passed over the last 5 years 
and look at what was still outstanding, and then, pass it to the new GC as their responsibility.

12.36 Ms Lee Mew Kwan referred to page 15 of the annual report, item 6.10. She stated that Mr Eddie Teoh in 
the last meeting asked the GC to look into the 68 cheques.
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12.37 Madam Amu Tharmarajah referred to page 1 of the Audit Committee report, resolution #1 and #3 in 
respect of the 68 cheques which were raised 2 AGMs ago and still there was no answer for it. She asked 
Mr Stanley Leng take the House through the current status of the 68 cheques. 

12.38 Mr Stanley Leng said that there was a resolution in the last AGM to collate all the previous resolutions but 
he could not recall exactly which AGM.

12.39 Madam Amu Tharmarajah said it was ridiculous that the House was given files instead of answering the 
questions. 

12.40 Mr Stanley Leng said it was in English and asked Madam Amu Tharmarajah to refer to the slides.

12.41 Madam Amu Tharmarajah asked Mr Stanley Leng to stop arguing with her and do his job.

12.42 The Chairman asked Madam Amu Tharmarajah to calm down.

12.43 Madam Amu Tharmarajah said that Mr Stanley Leng was also the finance manager at one point.

12.44 Mr Stanley Leng said he was never the finance manager.

12.45 Madam Amu Tharmarajah asked if he was working in the office as the finance manager when Mr Teoh 
Cheng Hai was the President.

12.46 When Mr Stanley Leng said no, Madam Amu Tharmarajah asked what was he doing in the office as he were 
paid RM5,000 per month.

12.47 Mr Stanley Leng agreed that he was paid RM5,000.

12.48 Madam Amu Tharmarajah asked Stanley Leng what was the payment for?

12.49 The Chairman do not allow further questioning by Madam Amu Tharmarajah.

12.50 Madam Amu Tharmarajah then wanted to know about the 68 cheques.

12.51 Mr Stanley Leng clarified that Mr Edward Teoh’s resolution #1 that the House adopted was about the 
68 cheques. It was related to the qualified accounts in 2013 because it looked like there were money 
missing. The initial sum unreconciled was RM823,000 but eventually it was brought down to RM660,000 
with the help of AWS. The 5-man special house committee and staffs were blocked from accessing some 
information by the President of the time; there were also other constraints. 

 The GC 2014 appointed LYO to reconstruct the accounts after the 3-man committee recommended it. LYO 
was not paid for their work and thus, BDO could not build on LYO’s work. The finance consultant at the 
time left abruptly. LYO came back with results. Of the RM660,000, RM140,000 was reported to be from 
the past, namely before 30 June 2012. Approximately RM519,000 was for the correct FY2013 period 
and it was split into 74 transactions. The 74 transactions were in the bank statements but not in the Club’s 
records. 6 of the transactions were bank charges. The GC of 2014 requested Maybank for the scanned 
cheque images pertaining to the 68 payments. Maybank responded. 48 were crossed cheques, 19 were 
cash cheques and 1 was a TT. The committee was very concerned about the cash cheques so cheque 
stubs were matched to the cheque images. Some of the payments were for salaries. All the supporting 
documents were in the four files that were placed in the registration counter for the AGM. He also added 
that if anyone wanted to see the documentation, they can be found from the GM’s Office.

12.52 Madam Amu Tharmarajah asked why the Club had not requested the reversed side of the scanned cheque 
images so that the Club can find out who cashed it. 

12.53 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas stated the document did provide the details for the cheques.

12.54 Mr Bernard Foong said that the question was answered in the last AGM. The Club would need to go to the 
court to get the reversed side of the scanned images of the cheques. 

12.55 Madam Amu Tharmarajah then asked why the GC did not do it. 
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12.56 Mr Bernard Foong said that if she read the whole thing, she would understand. He also commented that 
Madam Amu Tharmarajah brought the same issue up every year.

12.57 Madam Amu Tharmarajah questioned the Vice President’s answer after the Club had lost so much money 
through two presidencies.

12.58 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa commended the Audit Committee for doing a splendid job. He also would like to 
the Audit Committee to assure the House that the 68 cheques had been accounted for and there was no 
missing money. He also sought clarification from the them whether the practice of cashing out cheques 
should be stopped in the Club and what actions to be taken in case anybody caught committing it.

12.58 The Chairman assured the House during his presidency, issuing of cash cheques had been stopped.

12.59 Mr Stanley Leng confirmed that all the 68 cheques were accounted for.

12.60 The Chairman said that the audited accounts will be tabled at an EGM that would be decided by the 
incoming GC. 

[13.0] Item 3 of the Agenda (continuation):
 To receive the report of the General Committee

13.01 The Chairman continued with the F&B report and invited comments.  

13.02 Ms Lee Mew Kwan wanted to know if the GC had approved and signed the promotional contract with 
Carlsberg.

13.03 The Chairman said that he was not aware of it.

13.04 Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev mentioned that the President might have forgotten about the matter over the 
course of many meetings. He recalled that the Tender Committee had queried the terms of the contract as 
there were insufficient information given. He said that he had attended a meeting with the Tender Committee 
and presenting further explanations required, the Tender Committee had adopted the promotion contract 
with some revision in prices. With better contract terms, he informed the House that the Club could offer 
a reduced price of RM8.50 for draught beer compared to previous price of RM10.28. He said that the GC 
was fully aware of the matter. He also highlighted that he had his hand full trying to manage 7 to 8 outlets 
with minimal staff.

13.05 Ms Lee Mew Kwan said that she was only interested in the contract with Carlsberg and not so much about 
the staff and number of outlets.

13.06 Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev explained that he was just highlighting the processes involved. He further 
confirmed that all details were presented to the GC for the necessary approval.

13.07 Ms Lee Mew Kwan again questioned whether the contract was tabled to the GC for approval as the 
discussion or decision pertaining to it could not be located. She also referred to a statement in the Audit 
Committee report that the said contract was never tabled to the GC for approval.

13.08 Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev said all proposals tabled to and approved by the Tender Committee would 
eventually be presented to the GC for the final approval. He was of the view that there might be a case of 
poor recording of minutes as he was certain he had presented the contract to the GC for approval.

13.09 Ms Lee Mew Kwan suggested that Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev should consider correcting the relevant 
minutes as the value of the contract was substantial.

13.10 Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev agreed that it would be prudent to listen to the audio recording of the meeting 
to confirm the matter at hand.

13.11 Ms Lee Mew Kwan was concerned that no one from the GC could provide her with any answers to her 
query.
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13.12 Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev said that he could not remember all details of the contract at that moment.

13.13 Dr K J John said that finger pointing and raising of one’s voice were not necessary.

13.14 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas said that Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev had tried his best effort for the Club albeit it 
might not have complied with some procedures. He highlighted that the price had been decreased and 
surmised that such decrease in prices would have meant that the necessary approval from the GC was 
obtained. 

13.15 Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev also informed the House that the former GM had executed the contract upon 
approval. He conceded that the minutes were not properly recorded and he apologised for not ensuring 
the accuracy of the minutes.

13.16 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas said every GC member knew prices were decreased because the news was 
circulated in a WhatsApp chatgroup. He further said that the GC members would have raise the issue at its 
next GC meeting if there was no approval granted.

13.17 The Chairman thanked Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas for his reasoning.

13.18 Dato’ Syed Mustaffa clarified that any procurement proposal submitted to the Tender Committee would be 
presented to the GC for approval. He emphasized that the GM must ensure that the necessary approval from 
the GC must be obtained before acting on it. In this case, he held that the GM had failed his responsibility 
as he had executed the contract without prior GC approval and the purchasing manager should also be 
blamed as he kept quiet on the matter. Dato’ Syed Mustaffa also held that the GC members were not 
sensitive to wrong-doings and failed to raise questions in such situation.

13.19 Ms Lee Mew Kwan said that Dato’ Syed Mustaffa had brought home her point in that matter. She was not 
apportioning blame on the GC members but pointed out that they were not aware of the matter.

13.20 Dr K J John wanted assurance that the GM now understood the processes and procedures and abide by it.

13.21 The Chairman assured that the GM would abide by all processes and procedures.

13.22 There were no comments made on the Events & Entertainment report.

13.23 Under House & Grounds, Madam Amu Tharmarajah congratulated the committee for having attended to 
matters which past committees had failed to address. She was sad to note that Mr Loke Mun Kit would not be 
seeking re-election. Madam Amu Tharmarajah said that she understood the committee had started discussion 
on the hot water system of the Club and suggested the incoming Committee to continue the said review.

13.24 Mr Loke Mun Kit (13233) informed the House that he had implemented lean construction practices and 
some semblance of SOP in terms of getting quotations. He had also given advice on many matters to the 
maintenance team and the assistant maintenance manager. He said that that assistant manager was not a 
qualified person and tended to attend to matters in an ad hoc basis. 

 During his tenure, he found that many things undertaken were done incorrectly and quotations obtained 
were not comparable. For example, he said that the Club sought quotation to fix the roof leak in the 
recreation room which was estimated at RM85,000. After carrying out his own inspection of the roof, he 
estimated the cost at RM15,000. 

 Mr Loke Mun Kit then referred to the management accounts and highlighted that the committee was 
able to cut down the utility bill, maintenance and repair as well as the sports facilities expenditure from 
RM4.5 million last year to RM3.86 million. He said that the cost for repair and upkeep went up due to the 
waterproofing work carried out at the swimming pool. Instead of putting the cost under capital expenditure, 
the Club had classified it under the maintenance and upkeep budget.

  He also mentioned that he managed to cut down the operating budget for next financial year by RM1.0 
million after eliminating repeated provisions for items. One example was the maintenance of AutoCAD 
software which the staff was not competent to utilities the said software. He had also reduced the budget 
towards replacement of crockery. 
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 He highlighted that the current hot water system was that of the heat pump system with a safety feature 
that cuts off power supply whenever the water level drop to a certain level. This posed a problem to the 
Club as any repair works carried out by Syabas would trigger that safety feature. Furthermore, the Club 
only had a normal duty pump with another stand-by pump which was inadequate. The Club should install a 
heavy-duty pump with an alternate pump that switches on alternately every 8 hours.

 He also informed the House that the Club’s daily water usage was 75,000 litres which was equivalent 
to capacity of the total storage tank. That meant the Club could only hold reserve of one day water 
requirement. He highly recommended that the incoming GC to look into increasing the water storage tank 
capacity, as well as having a stand-by gen set, especially for the main food outlets to avoid power outage.

13.25 Madam Amu Tharmarajah urged the incoming Committee to implement a new procedure for urgent projects 
so that it would not be abused by the staff. 

13.26 Mr Loke Mun Kit explained that such malpractices almost always happened during the late evening and due 
to its emergency nature, it usually cost up to three times the normal price. He said that he had personally 
brought three booklets of builders’ directory and gave it the purchasing manager as well as the assistant 
maintenance manager for reference. He also suggested that the Club should engage specialists of various 
systems to conduct six monthly maintenance check so as to avoid sudden breakdown.

13.27 The Chairman continued to table the remaining committees’ reports.

13.28 As there were no further questions, Dr K J John proposed that the Committee’s Report be accepted. The 
motion was seconded by Dato’ Ir Pang Leong Hoon.

13.29 The House unanimously voted for the motion and the Committees’ Report was duly received and accepted.

[14.0] Item 11 of the Agenda:
 To elect Auditors for the financial year ending 30th June 2018 and to authorise the General Committee 

to fix their remuneration

14.01 The Chairman informed the House that Messrs Azman, Wong, Salleh & Co (AWS) had indicated their 
willingness to act as External Auditors of the Club for the ensuing year. The General Committee had found 
it fit to recommend the same. 

14.02 The Chairman put it to the House to appoint AWS as the Club’s External Auditors and that the GC be hereby 
authorised to fix their remuneration.

14.03 Proposed by En Salih Amran Jamiaan and seconded by Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li.

14.04 The House voted unanimously that AWS be appointed as the Club’s External Auditors for the ensuing year 
and that the GC be hereby authorised to fix their remuneration.

[15.0] Item 12 of the Agenda:
 To elect Trustees for a term of one year.

15.1 The Chairman informed that PB Trustee Services Berhad had indicated their willingness to continue to act 
as Trustees for the Club for a term of one year. The General Committee had found it fit to recommend the 
same. 

14.02 The Chairman put it to the House to appoint PB Trustee Services Berhad to act as the Trustees of the Club.

14.03 Proposed by Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas and seconded by Ms Lee Mew Kwan.

14.04 The House voted unanimously that PB Trustee Services Berhad be appointed as the Trustee for the Club 
for a term of one year with effect from 1 January 2018.
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[16.0] Item 13 of the Agenda:
 To transact any other business of which due notice has been given in accordance with Rule 25.10.

16.01 The Chairman presented to the House on the continuity of the term for the Legal Committee.

16.02 Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li referred to the report by the Audit Committee and suggested that the incoming 
GC consider appointing the Special Functions Sub-Committee to look into the Club’s contracts and legal 
issues. She was also of the view that the Legal Committee should be allowed to continue as their terms of 
reference were specific and their tasks at hand has yet to be completed.

16.03 The Chairman confirmed that the Legal Committee still has unfinished business and tabled to the House to 
consider allowing them to continue their term to full completion.

16.04 Proposed by Dr K J John and seconded by En Salih Amran Jamiaan.

16.05 The House voted unanimously for the Legal Committee to continue for another period of one year.

16.06 The Chairman indicate there were 3 resolutions being presented for discussion and adoption as the case 
may be. 

16.07 In recapping the earlier decision held by the House, the Chairman said that the Resolution #2 submitted by 
En Jon Azman was defeated. He then proceeded to table Resolution #1.

 Resolution #1
 That the house revokes the decision of the General Committee made at its meeting held on 25th October 

2017 having allowed reciprocal arrangement with the Malaysian Petroleum Club (MPC), a business club 
located at the Petronas Twin Tower, Kuala Lumpur.

16.08 The resolution was submitted by Mr Bernard Foong and Mr Lim Beng Jin.

16.09 Mr Bernard Foong explained it had been the tradition of the Club to establish reciprocity with clubs of 
similar standing outside of the Federal Territories of Kuala Lumpur and the state of Selangor. He informed 
the House that the Membership Sub-Committee had rejected the proposal but it was overruled by the GC 
with the decision of 6 to 4 by reason that the Malaysian Petroleum Club was a very prestigious club. 

 He stressed that the Club had celebrated its 127th year and some traditions and culture of the Club ought 
to be preserved. Although the Malaysian Petroleum Club had good facilities to offer, it was located within 
the Klang Valley and operated on a different platform as a business club, unlike the Royal Lake Club which 
was considered as a social and family club. Furthermore, the GC also had decided to offer reciprocity for 
F&B only which was not practical as it would not be possible to monitor their movements 

16.10 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted to know the rationale for the GC in approving the reciprocity with the Malaysian 
Petroleum Club.

16.11 On behalf of the GC members who voted for reciprocity, En Shaik Rizal Sulaiman (11544) clarified that the 
Malaysian Petroleum Club (MPC) was unique as its membership was open to only people in the oil and gas 
industry. Secondly, he said that the Club which was located on the 44th floor of the Petronas Twin Tower 
offered exclusive dining facilities. Thirdly, he was of the view that the members of the MPC would invariably 
be members of other social clubs within the Klang Valley and they would not very likely come to our Club to 
use the facilities. He said that the GC had thought that such move would generate more income when their 
members patronise the Club’s outlets. He concluded by saying that he agreed with the sentiment raised by 
Mr Ng Peng Kong in that the matter should not have been brought up to the House as the GC had already 
made a decision on it.

16.12 En Salih Amran Jamiaan held the view that there was no necessity for the members of the MPC to patronise 
the Club since they already boast of first class fine dining. Hence, he was sceptical on the real reason for 
MPC in seeking reciprocity with the Royal Lake Club. Further, he also held the view that it had been the 
history of the Royal Lake Club not to establish reciprocity with clubs within the Klang Valley.
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16.13 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa was of the view that the Royal Lake Club should not just focussed on being a family 
club but to be as diverse as possible. He said that he fail to understand why the Club would limit itself and 
not seek reciprocity with other clubs in the Klang Valley and asked the incoming Committee to consider it.

16.14 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas agreed with the view expressed by En Zait. He also said that the MPC, with it being a 
prestigious venue for F&B, would be beneficial for the Club members. He held that establishing reciprocity 
was a win-win situation. 

16.15 En Shaik Rizal further stated that even with money, not just anyone can join MPC and that was the reason 
the GC made the exception. The fact that it was a beautiful club was a secondary consideration.

16.16 Dr K J John was of the view that the MPC members would not misuse the reciprocity privileges because its 
members were people of high standing in society.

16.17 Mr Lachman Naraindas thought the idea was brilliant because it was only for F&B which in turn would 
generate more revenue for the Club

16.18 En Ahmed Zakki Jabbar (13879) said that there were no written rules or regulations which prohibited the 
Club from establishing reciprocity with other clubs within the Klang Valley. Further, he said that the Club 
could review that decision after a trial period of 6 or 12 months and the incoming GC could reverse that 
decision if found fit.

16.19 Mr Goh Ching Chee (12414) proposed that the House proceed to vote on the resolution.

16.20 Madam Amu Tharmarajah said that the Club should go ahead with establishing reciprocity as it was confined 
to F&B only.

16.21 Mr Lee Kuan Mang (10355) was concerned with the dysfunction of the GC. He wanted the House to vote 
against motion put forward by disgruntled member of GC to avoid setting a dangerous precedent.

16.22 The Chairman then put the resolution to the House for voting. 

16.23 The resolution failed with the vote of 46 to 14.

16.24 Madam Amu Tharmarajah suggested that the incoming GC to consider issuing special cards to the Members 
of the Parliament to dine at the Club’s F&B outlets to increase patronage. 

16.25 As the House had earlier decided, the Chairman put a motion to the floor to postpone the discussion on 
the constitutional amendments to a later date next year.

16.26 Proposed by En Zait Mohd Isa and seconded by Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas. 

16.27 The House unanimously voted in favour of the motion.

16.28 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa also suggested that at that eventual date, the Legal Committee could also be invited 
to present the status of their work.

16.29 The Chairman informed the House that the Legal Committee had convened its own town hall meeting to 
brief members on the progress of their work. He held the view that the Legal Committee should liaise with 
the incoming GC on the best way forward.

 In closing, the Chairman thanked the members for their presence in the banquet hall, his fellow GC members 
as well as the management and staff of the Club.

16.30 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas recorded a vote of thanks to the outgoing committee. 

[17.0] Item 14 of the Agenda:
 To declare the results of the Election.

17.01 The President invited the Chairman of the Elections Committee, Datuk M Ali to present the results of the 
election of the Club’s office bearers.
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17.02 Datuk Ali announced the results of the election of the President, Vice President and Members of the General 
Committee as follows:

17.03 For the position of the President, the total Ballot Papers issued was 670.

 PRESIDENT 2017/2018

1. Mr Chiam Tow Loon, Patrick  262
2.  Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li  80
3.  Mr Foong Khee Seng, Bernard 192
4.  Dr K J John  112

 Spoilt Votes 23

 Total Ballot Papers Counted 669

17.04 Datuk Ali announced that Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon was returned as the President of the Club.

17.05 For the position of the Vice President, the total Ballot Papers issued was 670.

 VICE PRESIDENT 2017/2018

1.  Mr Asokkumaran A/L P. Kesavan (K A Kumar) 126
2.  Dr Yap Chung Mui  198
3.  Lt Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel Bin Abdullah  233
4.  Mr Soo Hing Lin, Phillip  64

 Spoilt Votes  44

 Total Ballot Papers Counted  665

17.06 Datuk Ali announced that Lt Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel was returned as the Vice President of the Club.

17.07 For the eleven positions of the General Committee, the total Ballot Papers issued was 670.

17.08 Datuk Ali announced results from the highest to the lowest with the first eleven being returned as members 
of the General Committee.

GENERAL COMMITTEE 2017/2018

1.  Dato Nik Gee Siew Yee 396
2.  Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev  376
3.  Ms Lee Mew Kwan, Pansy 368
4.  Mr Daniel Amarasingam Thuraiappah 353
5.  Mr Lim Beng Jin  346
6.  Dr Surindar Singh Jeswant Singh  345
7.  Mr Loke Wai Mun  344
8.  Mr Chin Kean Neap, Tommy 336
9.  Ms Lee Hung Fong, Hildah 330
10.  Mr Sailendra A/L V. Kanagasundram  325
11.  Ms Amuthambigai Tharmarajah  321
12.  Mr Chew Teck Hong  302

 Spoilt Votes 29

[18.0] Conclusion

18.01 The Chairman extended his warm appreciation to the Elections Committee headed by Datuk M Ali for 
conducting the balloting and voting in a fair and professional manner. 
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18.02 The Chairman then invited the newly elected President, Mr Patrick Chiam and his team to come forward to 
the front of the Hall.

18.03 Mr Patrick Chiam thanked the members for the trust given to him and his new team of the General 
Committee. 

The general meeting came to a close at 7.40pm.

SIGNED AS A CORRECT RECORD

CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING
DATO’ KAMIL NOOR ARIFF B KAMIL MUSHIR ARIFF
ROYAL LAKE CLUB KUALA LUMPUR
10 DECEMBER 2017
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1 MDM WOO SOW HO 3772
2 MR PHILIP YAP TIONG HOOI 3858
3 YBHG DATIN SRI JANET WONG CHENG SAN 3876
4 DR A PATHMANATHAN 4224
5 MR JAGJIT SINGH KAURAH 4245
6 YBHG TAN SRI G K RAMA IYER 4405
7 YBHG TAN SRI ISMAIL YUSOF 4441
8 YBHG DATO’ A NELSON 4455
9 MR ALLAN ANTHONY KRONENBURG 4613
10 DR LEE CHEE HIN 4679
11 YBHG DATO’ ALBERT SEXTUS TALALLA 4779
12 YBHG DATO’ LEONG YOKE FAIE 4825
13 MR SIM POH KHUN 4907
14 TUAN HAJI MOHD ALI ISMAIL 4921
15 PN NOOR YEE ABDULLAH 4991
16 YBHG DATO’ ABU MANSOR BASIR 5042
17 DR S S GILL 5126
18 MR MAHINDER S RANDHAWA 5192
19 MR CHAM HENG LEE 5216
20 EN SALIH AMRAN JAMIAAN 5229
21 YBHG DATO’ DR JOSEPH ERAVELLY 5244
22 IR S BASKARAN 5340
23 MR S E NATHAN 5373
24 IR G BALACHANDRAN 5410
25 MR WONG CHEE LOON 5432
26 IR HARRY TAN KIAN HUAT 5492
27 DR AJIT KUMAR MUKHERJEE 5557
28 MR LEAN CHEE SENG 5600
29 MR TAN KIM SENG 5610
30 MR NG SING HWA 5628
31 MR FRANCIS MAGIMAY  5637
32 YBHG DATO IR MOHD RIZAL  5638
   AL-AMIN TUN SARDON
33 EN CHE WAN OTHMAN FADZILAH 5669
34 MR TAI YOON LOY 5733
35 MR CYRIL OLIVER XAVIER 5769
36 YBHG DATO’ SHUN LEONG KWONG 5798
37 MR JOHN CHEANG YOW WAI 5807
38 MDM WONG THYE MOI 5861
39 MR LEN MIN SIN 5895
40 MR KHOO CHOONG KEOW 6051
41 MR AMMAN SINGH 6057
42 MR LIM YEW MENG 6264
43 MRS DHAMAYANTHI MUTHUCUMARU 6293
44 YBHG DATUK C THAVARAJAH 6318
45 YBHG DATUK LEE SENG CHUAN @  6348
   LEEI SIONG CHUAN
46 DR L J FREDERICKS 6390
47 MR FRANCIS RICHARD GOW 6398
48 YBHG DATO’ ABDUL HALIM REJAB 6454
49 EN AHMAD MUSTAPHA HASSAN 6458
50 MR GERARD SOONG CHOK HING 6555
51 EN HARRIS BEH 6560
52 MR STANLEY TAN CHUEN KEAT 6645
53 MR YAP CHAN PENG 6810
54 MR LOW BENG HOCK 6852
55 YBHG DATO’ ALLEN TAN KENG HOON 6892
56 MR GEORGE CHONG YOU PENG 6893
57 MDM WONG SIEW KIN 6894
58 YM DR RAJA LOPE RAJA SHAHROME 6910
59 EN GHAZALI TAN ABDULLAH 6924
60 YBHG DATO’ PETER YONG CHUI CHOON 6927
61 MR LAI WAI KUN 6975
62 EN RASHID E. MAMAJIWALLA 7040
63 MR LEE SIANG CHIN 7077
64 MR JAGJIT SINGH 7079
65 MR GEORGE C.C. LEONG 7110

66 DR K J JOHN 7116
67 EN AHMAD KAMIL MOHD YUSOF 7167
68 MR KHOO KAY CHOCK 7190
69 MR KENNETH LEE MING TO 7192
70 MR WILLIAM F C LOONG 7193
71 EN ABU BAKAR SULAIMAN 7238
72 LT COL ( R ) JOHAN VAN GEYZEL 7280
73 MR M ARUMUGAM 7308
74 MR FOONG SUI CHOW 7311
75 MDM WONG CHOR YING 7338
76 MR KHOO TENG HOCK 7339
77 DR KEE PENG LEONG 7395
78 MR CHEW HOOI SENG 7421
79 MR WONG BOON LIK 7422
80 MR MOHANRAM KUMAR NAGARAJ 7423
81 EN ZAINAL ABIDIN LISUT 7447
82 MR LEE WAI THONG 7477
83 MR P YOGANATHAN 7524
84 MR SAW TENG CHUAN 7547
85 MR LEE WEE KEE 7601
86 MR RICHARD L K OH 7611
87 DR PAUL C K LEE 7698
88 YBHG TAN SRI DATUK HJ MOHAMED  7737
   KHATIB BIN ABDUL HAMID
89 MR R W P MANUEL 7753
90 YB HJ DATO’ MOHD ZAIN MOHD YUSUF 7760
91 DR TAN YOKE SING 7765
92 EN MOHAMMED B HUSSEIN 7808
93 MR VONG CHOONG CHOY 7815
94 MR RONNIE ONG ENG SEONG 7816
95 MR KHOO HENG SUAN 7832
96 MS AILINA LEE OI LING 7862
97 MR ROBERT SING PENG NG 7892
98 MR P RAVEENDEREN 7917
99 MR MARTIN CHAN HEAN HOE 7964
100 MR PAUL S K LIM 7966
101 MR MAH PENG CHEAH 7971
102 YBHG DATUK P VENUGOPAL 7982
103 MR ONG TONG SENG 7993
104 MR ROLV S P ALSFELT 8043
105 MR ALAN TANG SWEE KAM 8080
106 MR WONG CHEE CHONG 8151
107 MR GAN SENG CHEE 8165
108 MR YONG LIN TANG 8177
109 MR YU KOK ANN 8219
110 MR TAN HAU KIANG 8268
111 MR NG BOON PUEY 8270
112 MR DAVID C H ONG 8272
113 MR TANG WING CHEW 8288
114 MR CHEAH FOOK YEN 8305
115 MR YEOW THIT SANG 8318
116 EN SUHAIMI HAJI SIDEK 8325
117 YBHG COL ( R ) DATO’ IR CHENG WAH 8336
118 YANG MULIA TUNKU HAITHAM T SULONG 8345
119 MR LIM BOON KANG 8376
120 MR KHOO KIM LENG 8436
121 MR GEORGE CHEN KIM SHIN 8440
122 MR A SEKARAJASEKARAN, KMN 8473
123 EN ABU HUSIN BIN BABA 8487
124 YBHG DATUK IR AHMAD NORDEEN  8492
   MOHD SALLEH
125 MR TEOH CHENG HAI 8510
126 DR WOON KOK CHIN 8516
127 YBHG DATO’ HJ AHMAD HASMUNI HUSSEIN 8518
128 YBHG DATO’ STANLEY ISAACS 8562
129 IR TOO WAN JIN 8572
130 IR YONG KEE CHIANG 8574
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131 MR KHEW CHEE SUN 8576
132 YBHG DATO’ S K CHOO 8585
133 MR PANG CHIN KIUM 8587
134 MR RAMACHANDRAN CHELLIAH 8590
135 MR KANG HAK KOON 8595
136 MR VELOO SAMINATHAN 8596
137 MR TAN HAI LENG 8612
138 YBHG DATO’ ROMMEL JOSEF 8668
139 PROF DATIN DR G DURAISAMY 8718
140 YBHG TAN SRI M JEGATHESAN 8720
141 MR NG PENG KONG 8723
142 MR CHIAM TAT HONG 8767
143 DR LIN HAI PENG 8779
144 MR TAN KHENG SOON 8796
145 YBHG TAN SRI DATO’ DR SALLEH MOHD NOR 8835
146 MR SOH KAI CHOY 8836
147 LT JEN TAN SRI MOHD YUNUS TASI (B) 8853
148 YBHG DATO’ CHEAH KONG WAI 8878
149 MR BHUPINDER SINGH 8890
150 MR LIM CHOON HONG 8898
151 EN SANI MAH ABDULLAH 8908
152 MR LIM TEONG LIAT 8916
153 MRS SEONAIDH JOY CHAI 8925
154 YBHG DATO’ DR M. SIVANANTHAM 8927
155 YBHG DATO’ TAN SENG CHEE J P 8961
156 BRIG GEN (RTD) RON S MAHENDRAN 8963
157 YBHG DATO’ DR JASPER C. MEHTA 8976
158 MR LEE WAI KONG 8998
159 MR PATRICK LIM KENG LEE 9008
160 DR R V GRAICHEN 9061
161 MDM TAY SIEW WAH 9064
162 YBHG DATO’ SHAARI BIN MOHD. NOOR 9067
163 MR ANTHONY TAN HAN GEE 9107
164 YBHG DATO’ KANG HWEE GEE 9128
165 MR TAY BENG WAH 9134
166 YBHG DATO’ MOHAMED RAMLI SAMJIS 9168
167 MR PETER WONG 9297
168 MR ONG ENG JOO 9304
169 YBHG DATO’ ALJAFRI ABDUL MAJID 9326
170 EN KAMARALZAMAN RTAMBU 9343
171 EN HAKIMI HASHIM 9347
172 MR CHIA AH LOY 9357
173 MR GEORGE ANTHONY DASS DAVID 9368
174 MR AKBAL SINGH SANDHU 9436
175 MR AJIT SINGH 9501
176 MR P PECHEADAVAR PAKIRISAMY 9504
177 MR VICTOR MOK KUM SENG 9520
178 MR NARAIN SINGH 9540
179 MR THOO YUEN FAH 9558
180 MR YOA SAI HEE 9559
181 YBHG PUAN SRI DATIN LING LEE HUNG 9561
182 EN AHMAD BIN ABDULLAH 9650
183 YBHG DATO’ BAHARI BIN HARON 9654
184 YB DATIN PADUKA KOMALA DEVI PERUMAL 9690
185 MS LEE HUNG FONG, HILDAH 9697
186 YANG MULIA RAJA BADROL RAJA ABU 9786
   HASSAN SHAARI
187 EN WAN MALIK MOHAMED 9816
188 EN MOHAMED IBRAHIM HASHIM 9833
189 YBHG DATO’ SHAIK SULAIMAN ISMAIL 9838
190 EN MOHD ASHARI BIN ABAS 9839
191 EN MOHD ASHARI BIN ABAS 9839
192 MS AMU THARMARAJAH 9845
193 EN ISKANDER ISMAIL 9853
194 EN ZAIT BIN MD ISA 9857
195 EN MOHAMED YUSOFF MAHMOOD 9864
196 PUAN SUHAILY NG ABDULLAH 9924

197 DR MOHAMED RAZIF B. MOHAMED ALI 9925
198 EN MOHD HARITH M KASSIM 9929
199 EN ABDUL WAHID ABD HAMID 9931
200 EN AZIZ BIN MOHD IBRAHIM 9953
201 EN JON AZMAN 9960
202 EN AHMAD GAMAN ABDULLAH 9975
203 MDM HELEN YEOH AH HOON 10017
204 MR TAN TEOW KENG 10020
205 EN YUSOFF BIN SAAD 10038
206 PUAN ZURIAH HJ MOHD SAID 10101
207 EN MOHD GHAZI HJ ABD RASHID 10122
208 EN IDRIS BIN JUNID 10164
209 YBHG DATO’ LOKE YUEN YOW JP.DPMP.AMP 10174
210 EN TARMIZI ABU HANIPAH 10222
211 MR TAN MIN CHIK 10268
212 MR TAI FOOK SUN 10308
213 MR JOSEPH BERCMANS LOPEZ 10313
214 MR ANTHONY THEAN KHEE PEN 10314
215 YBHG DATO’ SERI ERIC LIM EWE CHYE 10317
216 MR WONG KEM CHEN 10339
217 MR PAUL CHONG 10342
218 MR LEE KUAN MANG 10355
219 MR WONG SU KOK 10379
220 DR WINSTON PASCALL SIMON 10387
221 MR LUM SENG YIP 10393
222 DR SOO FOOK MAN 10394
223 DR LEE HUNG CHEONG 10407
224 MR HARI PRASAD S/O C VASUDEVAN 10419
225 MR GASPER GNANAMUTHU 10433
226 MR LAWRENCE LAI TEN SONG 10455
227 MDM ELIZABETH TAN CHIN POH 10458
228 DR PALAR SINNIAH 10476
229 MR MICHAEL KUAN TENG KOOI 10479
230 YBHG DATO’ SEGARAJAH RATNALINGAM 10482
231 MR CHEW BENG HIAN 10496
232 MR CHARANJIT SINGH SAINI 10527
233 MR PHOON SOON KEONG 10528
234 MS FREDA ANGELINE USHA CHIVAPATHY 10544
235 DR CHAN CHIEW BENG 10556
236 MR GAN ENG CHEE 10557
237 MR CALVIN CHONG ENG GUAN 10564
238 DR LIEW FAH KONG 10586
239 YBHG DATUK DR M VIJENDRAN 10592
240 MR NG KIM TUCK 10594
241 MR LEE GUAN SENG 10595
242 DR K VIJAYA RAGHAVAN 10596
243 MR TOH CHENG HAI 10604
244 MR GEORGE LOH KWEK KWEE 10609
245 MR C T ANNATHURAI 10610
246 MR KEOW HOCK SNEAH 10618
247 MR SIEW YEW CHIN 10630
248 COMMANDER (B) S THAYAPARAN 10634
249 DR NIRMAL SINGH 10652
250 MR RAJAISH KUMAR SAIGAL 10664
251 EN ABD HALIM HJ ABD RAHIM 10689
252 MR VINAYAK P PRADHAN 10690
253 MR THOMAS FONG WAI HENG 10694
254 YBHG DATO’ SERI ABD HAMIDY ABD HAFIZ 10729
255 EN MOHD AKWAL SULTAN MOHD 10748
256 YANG MULIA TENGKU MOHAMED TG TAIB 10760
257  YBHG DATO’ TAN BING HUA 10792
258 CIK SALMAH HJ MOHD EUSOFF 10807
259 EN ABD RAHIM ABD RAHMAN 10824
260 HAJI ABDUL RASHID BIN ABDUL MAJID 10825
261 MR LAM MUN WAH 10826
262 EN MOHD TAIB BIN ALI 10833
263 EN MOHD NOOR ABD MAWI 10882
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264 YBHG DATO’ MOHAMED AMIR  10884
   ABAS BIN ZAINAL AZIM
265 MR ANAND PONNUDURAI 10886
266 MR KARL L S FREDERICKS 10890
267 MR SUDHARSANAN T NATHAN 10891
268 YA STANLEY C AUGUSTIN 10906
269 MR SANTOKH SINGH 10915
270 YBHG DATO’ HARIS ISMAIL 10934
271 YBHG DATUK CHIA LUI MENG 10973
272 DR LEE HING AN 10984
273 MR SIOW KIM LUN 10986
274 MR OON LYE HOCK 10992
275 MR HUANG YING HOW 10994
276 DR TAN GHEE HEOK 11009
277 DR GOH KAY CHEE 11013
278 YBHG DATUK M ALI 11022
279 DR MICHAEL JEYAKARAN SAMY 11028
280 DR SARMUKH SINGH 11030
281 MR LOKE WAI MUN 11053
282 MR RUBAN CHELLIAH 11069
283 MR SOON KWAI CHOY 11081
284 PN SHAMSINAR MUSTAFA 11106
285 DR WU CHIN FOONG 11138
286 MS TAN CHOOI SUAN 11143
287 MS CHIN FUI NING 11156
288 YBHG DATIN SERI MANIMALA SEMBIAH 11163
289 MR WONG KUM MENG 11177
290 MR YAP YOK FOO 11186
291 MR CHOO TIOW PENG 11191
292 MDM CAROLINE ELANE CHIAM J T LING 11193
293 MDM LI CHIE PING 11196
294 MR KULAVARASALINGAM A/L CHELLIAH 11221
295 MR PAUL WONG KOK SENG 11231
296 MR WONG KET SING 11246
297 MS GIAM CHUI LENG 11253
298 EN SHAHUL HAMEED AMIRUDIN 11263
299 MDM LOW SIEW BENG 11286
300 MR LEE ENG HWA 11307
301 MR LOW SEONG LIM 11310
302 MR TEH MING KING 11317
303 MR TAN SHANG JEN 11318
304 MR CHEONG WAI LOONG 11418
305 MS GOH SOK HYA 11423
306 MR JEFFREY GILES GOONTING 11433
307 IR ALDRIN WONG 11448
308 DR MOLLY CHEAH BEE LI 11529
309 EN SHAIK RIZAL BIN SHAIK SULAIMAN 11544
310 MR DANIEL A THURAIAPPAH 11551
311 MS SOTHIE N THURAIAPPAH 11564
312 EN KAMAL HEZRY M KASSIM 11595
313 EN MOHD REZA MOHD ALI 11617
314 PROF DATO DR BALWANT SINGH GENDEH 11653
315 MS LIAK TENG HWA 11664
316 MDM LIEW SAIK KIEN 11665
317 DR VIJAY KUMAR PRAKASH LAL 11666
318 MR SIM HONG KEE 11696
319 MR MAH KIM CHOO 11707
320 DR KOK TACK CHEE 11711
321 MR LIM ENG KHONG 11729
322 MR CHONG GUAN SENG 11734
323 MDM YONG SIEW KAT 11769
324 MR FOO KOK YEE 11782
325 MR PERIA SUNDRAM S/O PONNAMPALAM 11786
326 MR LOW TEIK LEONG 11790
327 DR HO SHU NAM 11791
328 MR ALBERT QUAH CHEI JIN 11793
329 MR HO CHUN FU @ HO CHIN FOO, ROBERT 11812

330 MR WONG LUEN ONN 11821
331 YBHG DATO’ JEYARAJ V RATNASWAMY 11830
332 MR CHUA KOH KEONG 11835
333 MDM JOSEPHENE SHANTA LOURDES 11854
334 YBHG DATO’ VINCENT TANG FOOK LAM 11865
335 MR BALASUBRAMANIAM KARUPPIAH 11869
336 YBHG DATO’ LEE YEOW CHOR 11874
337 MR K KARUNAMOORTHY 11883
338 MR JOSEPH MOHAN LOURDES 11890
339 MR LAI CHU PAUL 11892
340 MR VIJAYAN SOMASUNDRAM 11925
341 CIK SATINA HARON 11927
342 MR CHOOI TAT WAI 11946
343 MR TAN SOONG HOW 11947
344 DR SUKHDEV SINGH 11953
345 MR LOONG CHEE MENG 11954
346 MR THAM KOK PENG 11963
347 MR IGNATIUS L K H TAN JR 11980
348 MDM LEE SIEW HOON 12000
349 MR SOO HING LIN, PJK 12008
350 MR CHING LAI HUAT 12014
351 EN HAFIZI BIN MOHAMED 12019
352 PN AYESHA NATCHIAR DATO ALLY MARICAR 12021
353 DR YAP CHUNG MUI 12024
354 MR JOHN KOH SENG SIEW 12050
355 MR JAGJIT SINGH GILL 12052
356 MR WANG KUO SHING 12054
357 MR OOI AH BAH 12082
358 MR SOON YUOW KONG 12102
359 MR LIM BENG JIN 12120
360 EN CHE ISMAIL B CHE WAN MOHD YUSOF 12184
361 EN ABD RAOF ABDULLAH SHAN 12222
362 EN FAISAL BIN ISMAIL 12238
363 EN RAHIM BIN MOHD NOOR 12246
364 MR AMAR B DOSHI @ SHYAM SUNDER 12304
365 MR LAU CHOO SENG 12306
366 DR SARAT CHANDRA DATTA 12358
367 MR THAM CHE KONG 12384
368 MR LOH SIEW MING 12389
369 MR CHAI KOO FOOI 12390
370 DR ARUN KUMAR BAG 12393
371 MR WONG FOOK LOY 12399
372 MR WEE KIM PENG 12400
373 MR FOONG KHEE SENG 12403
374 DR BHAGAL SINGH 12405
375 MR GOH CHING CHEE 12414
376 MR LIM BOON HIONG 12415
377 MR TAN BENG HONG 12432
378 MR SIMON HOO HOCK CHWEE 12457
379 MR RAVINDRAN MARKANDU 12468
380 MR WONG LOKE KWANG 12475
381 MS ONG MEI YING 12478
382 MR SELVA KUMAR RASIAH 12482
383 MS QUAH PHAIK SUAN 12502
384 MR LAM KEE CHEONG 12504
385 YBHG DATUK RAMAKRISHNAN G SAMY 12506
386 MR CHOO YON KIT 12519
387 MR PHILIP LEE WAI SIANG 12543
388 MR BALAKRISHNAN PAPAIAH 12555
389 MR LIEW YUAN CHIN 12556
390 MR ONG MIN HONG 12586
391 MR TEH AH HUAT 12595
392 DR MATTHEW WONG KIM SEONG 12597
393 MR CHEW LENG SOON 12616
394 MR JIMMY BOEY HONG YEW 12627
395 MR LAI HOOK KIAN, DJN 12641
396 DR TANG SEK CHEONG 12642
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397 MR PETER GEH CHENG THYE 12647
398 MR YEW CHOR HUAT 12654
399 MR ALBERT CHARLES VINCENT 12658
400 MR BHAGWAN A/L BULCHAND 12660
401 MR R JAYABHALAN 12662
402 MR CHEW TECK HONG 12666
403 MS LIM HIAH SING 12697
404 MR DAVID LAW CHEE THO 12701
405 MR GAN SIONG LIM 12702
406 MR BALAKRISHNAN PILLAI 12741
407 EN HASSANUDIN PUTEH 12742
408 YBHG DATO’ J JEGATHESAN 12754
409 YBHG DATIN ROZINAH AHMAD NIZARUDDIN 12763
410 DR ZUBAIDAH HJ ABD RAHIM 12766
411 MR EUGENE ONG SZE KUAN 12772
412 DR SHASHITARAN SADACHARAN 12773
413 MR RAJ KUMAR SHAH 12813
414 YBHG DATUK DR MEGAT BURHAINUDDIN  12822
   MEGAT ABDUL RAHMAN
415 EN MOHD KHAIRI A WAHAB 12848
416 YBHG DATO’ SOHAN SINGH RANDHAWA 12918
417 PROF DR KULENTHRAN ARUMUGAM 12923
418 YBHG DATO’ HJ ABDUL RAHMAN YEOP 12928
419 PUAN NAZILEH BT RAMLI 12940
420 MR CHUAN THONG HUAT 12968
421 YBHG DATO’ DR ALEX MATHEWS 12987
422 DATO’ CHIA YOON MOI 12998
423 EN RAMLAN ABDUL LATIF 13020
424 EN MOHAMED ARIFF B TAR MOHAMED 13031
425 EN ZULKIFLI MOHD ALI 13032
426 MR SUPRAMANIAM A/L SINNASAMY 13033
427 YBHG DATO’ JOHN LOUIS O’HARA 13044
428 PN PUTERI NOOR SHERAZ NOORDIN 13060
429 YBHG DATO’ TAN KEE KWONG 13065
430 MR WONG PENG WAI 13115
431 MR LIM CHIENG CHIU, RONNIE 13170
432 MR FELIX CHAN FEE WHYE 13176
433 IR TEH KAN TONG 13192
434 MR WONG KWOK CHIW 13199
435 MR LOKE YOON HOE 13223
436 MR LOKE MUN KIT 13233
437 MR DAVID GERARD MOK CHEE KEONG 13240
438 MR WONG SANG KAN 13254
439 MR LENG JOON HUAT 13266
440 MR LEE KAT KEONG 13271
441 MR ROBERT NEWTON 13279
442 MR ALLAN GUY GOONTING 13283
443 MR TAN YOKE SENG 13307
444 MR TEOH YEE KIAN 13312
445 MR TAN THIAM HOCK 13324
446 MR LOW YAT SEOW 13332
447 MR BARATHAN K APPUDURAI 13341
448 MR BALLBEER SINGH A/L SARWAN SINGH 13361
449 MR CHEAH PENG SUM 13362
450 MR ANNAND RAJ A/L GOPAL DASS 13363
451 MR G PERKAS S/O GOPAL DASS 13365
452 MR CHIN FOCK KEE 13369
453 MR CHIAM TOW LOON 13399
454 MR LOW CHEE TENG 13403
455 MR CHRISTOPHER LOW HON PENG 13421
456 MR ONG LAM HOO 13427
457 MR AMARJIT SINGH A/L GURBACHAN SINGH 13430
458 MR HUM KOW BANG 13440
459 MR YOW TIAN SAK 13449
460 MR TEOH SWEE CHONG 13465
461 MR PAUL RAJ A/L DAVIS 13475
462 MR JAYASINGAM T POOPALASINGAM 13483

463 MR ASOKKUMARAN A/L P KESAVAN 13512
464 YBHG DATO’ YAP TECK CHOW 13518
465 MR ELAGENDRA NADARAJAH 13520
466 MR SOMA SUNDRAM S/O KRISHNASWAMY 13536
467 MS YAP SIEW HONG 13542
468 MDM POH LIN WONG 13568
469 MR CHAN SAU SENG 13572
470 MR THAW YENG JOOI 13574
471 MR K VENKATESAN 13596
472 MS JENNY WONG LEOW FOOI 13621
473 DR JAGJIT SINGH S/O GURLAL SINGH 13622
474 MR PALANISAMY S/O RAMASAMY 13628
475 MR JOHN CHAN CHEOW EAN 13636
476 MR LOUISE PAUL 13643
477 DR BISHUN LAL A/L CHHUNNU LAL 13646
478 MR TAN KEAN HIN 13659
479 YBHG DATO’ SYED MUSTAFFA B SYED ALI 13670
480 DR MOGANA GHANDI MATHI 13706
481 MR TEOH GHIN LYE 13714
482 MR LOW YEW ENG 13761
483 MDM IRENE LOO PAT TAI 13775
484 EN OSMAN KHAN BIN GHOWS KHAN 13780
485 EN AHMED ZAKKI BIN ABDUL JABBAR 13879
486 MR GOPALA KRISHNAN A/L K SUNDARAM 13902
487 MR JOHN CHEAH WENG ONN 13903
488 MR MAH YIK HOAY 13948
489 PN NORMA BT ABDULLAH NG 13972
490 MR TEOH HUN HOONG 13987
491 PN PUTRI NOOR SHARIZA NOORDIN 14017
492 MR WONG HORR WAI 14019
493 MR PHILIP MATHEWS 14023
494 YBHG DATUK MERLYN KASIMIR 14029
495 YBHG IR DATO’ GEORGE GEORGE 14033
496 YBHG DATUK DR JOHN ANTHONY XAVIER 14035
497 EN SHAHIZAN HASNAN 14106
498 MDM LIANG-WAI VIVIAN THONG 14136
499 MR RAMANAN L K VIJAYARAGHAVAN 14154
500 MR DILIP GASPER 14191
501 MDM SERENE LIEW 14193
502 MR JEYAPALAN K SELVADURAI 14199
503 MDM VIJAYALEDCHUMY A/P T VELUPPILLAI 14221
504 EN MAHAREDZA MAHADZIR 14267
505 YBHG DATO’ KAMIL NOOR ARIFF B KAMIL  14283
   MUSHIR ARIFF
506 MR CHAN TOW CHAI 14349
507 MR VINCENT LAWRENCE 14372
508 MR LEE KING LOON 14374
509 MR RAVINDRAN DAVID SAMUEL 14376
510 MR LACHMAN NARAINDAS 14464
511 MDM LUISA LIM YU MIN 14488
512 MR BALBIR SINGH 14521
513 MR KHOO KAY HOE 14535
514 MR R RETNAKUMAR 14542
515 IR. DR. JAYASEELAN NADARAJAH 14546
516 MR LOURDES NATHAN MICHEL 14547
517 MR MANMOHAN SINGH A/L SAROOP SINGH 14571
518 MR ARTHUR HOI WOON HING 14586
519 YBHG DATO’ PHILIP CHAN HON KEONG 14602
520 YBHG DATO’ WADIVER @ VADIVALE MUNYANDY 14630
521 MR NG KOK CHONG 14632
522 MR JASWANDAR SINGH MEHAR SINGH 14635
523 MR YAU JIN RIN 14643
524 MR CHONG SHEE LEOK 14644
525 MR JAIKRISHIN TIRATHDAS 14673
526 MR TAN SOON KOON 14677
527 MR CHUA GIOK LOON 14678
528 DR ASOKAN THARMALINGAM 14679
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529 MR UMA MANIAM MUTHUSAMY 14680
530 MDM LEE MEW KWAN 14681
531 MS PREMILA DEVI A/P MOHANLALL 14686
532 MR RAVINDRAN RAJANNIRAN 14719
533 MR SENTHILATHIBAN S M VEERIAH 14720
534 DR ANURA MICHELLE MANUEL 14722
535 DR BALAN L DASS @ MANOKARAN 14724
536 MR SELVARAJA MURUGESU 14736
537 MR K V RAJIV 14738
538 MR BALDESH SINGH 14740
539 MR SANDEEP KUMAR 14757
540 MR MICHAEL NATHAN ARUL 14758
541 MR SHANMUGARAJ CT PILLAI 14771
542 MR HONG CHUN KANG 14773
543 MR LAU CHUN THO 14774
544 MR PREM VIJENDRAN 14823
545 MS KIMMIE GOH KENG KIM 14841
546 MR B RAMAKRISHNA BALASUBRAMANIAM 14847
547 MR YEOH CHEE HUN 14851
548 MR VIJAY KANCHAN 14866
549 MS CATHERINE WONG MUI LAM 14875
550 MR ADRIAN CHENG CHIEH 14881
551 EN NAZEER AHMED ABD WAHAB 14924
552 MR LEE KIYAU LOO 14934
553 MR LIEW KONG YEW 14935
554 DR SURESH RAJ LACHMANAN 15009
555 MDM SHARON YOA SHOAK BOON 15023
556 MDM HOOI MEI YIN 15024
557 DR SIVANANTHAN KANAGARAYAR 15054
558 MR LOONG TIAN PIIN 15055
559 MDM TAN LAY HUA 15056
560 MR LEONG CHOONG KEON 15071
561 MR ROUVIN THIRUCHELVAM 15141
562 MR HO SHU CHONG 15151
563 MDM TOH POH GAIK 15152
564 MR CHENG POW LOOK, PAUL 15161
565 MR VISHNU KUMAR R VISVANATHAN 15172
566 YBHG DATO’ GEE SIEW YEE 15173
567 MR DANESH PANNIRSELVAM 15177
568 MR MELVIN SELVAM THAMBIRAJAH 15179
569 MR SIVAN PONNAMPALAM 15186
570 MS NG KIT CHING 15188
571 MR CHIN KEAN NEAP 15194
572 MR WOON THEN YEW 15222
573 MR MICHAEL JOHN HILL 15227
574 DR SURINDAR SINGH JESWANT SINGH 15233
575 MR LIM JIT YEE 15245
576 MR SURESH KUMAR K CHINNAN 15268
577 MR SOH CHEE GEE 15274
578 MR RAJKUMAR A/L R G SHETH 15303
579 MR PREMNATH ARUMUGAM 15329
580 MDM LOUISA POH CHENG EE 15331
581 MS CHOW MOONG PENG 15338
582 MR SAILENDRA A/L V KANAGASUNDRAM 15347
583 MR NAGARAJAN THAMBIAH 15352
584 MR MAGANDRAN N MUTHIAH 15364
585 MR NADARAJAN S RASIAH 15367
586 MR ANTHONY KUAN CHEE KEE 15379
587 MR TAY YEOW JIN 15419
588 MR OW ENG HAW 15477
589 MR KUKANANTHAN S A KANAGARAYAR 15485
590 MR CHIAM TAT LEA 15511
591 MR SUNDARESAN A/L SUBRAMANIAM 15521
592 IR VIJAYA KUMAR A/L S. CHELLATHURAI 15532
593 MR GAN KOK LEE 15546
594 MR POH LIONG BAN 15551
595 MR JUSTIN ONG YI YU 15555

596 EN RAMJAN DIN SHADI 15569
597 MR A M NAIDU A/L APPLANAIDU 15576
598 DR LIM YEW KENG 15591
599 MR NIXSON DADON HARRIS ( NIXON PAUL ) 15603
600 MR SARJEET SINGH SIDHU 15608
601 MR WONG CHEE FAI 15613
602 MR ALEX CHANG HUEY WAH 15632
603 MR TAN JIAN HWA 15661
604 MS TAN EE LYNN 15662
605 MR PRITHVIRAJ SINGH SACHDEV 15673
606 MR T V SEKHAR T G VENKATESAN 15678
607 MR RALPH RAVIN RATNASWAMY 15701
608 MR BERNARD RYAN SIMON 15743
609 MR SHANMUGAM SUBRAMANIAN 15750
610 MS TAN SHIOW CHUI 15752
611 MR TAN NYEE FATT 15753
612 MR K JEYARAJ M KUNASINGAM 15763
613 MS OH KEAT CHOW 15816
614 MR WAN BAN ONG 15824
615 MS CAMILLA ANASTASIA ALIM 15831
616 PN LIZA MUSTAPHA 15834
617 MR SIVANESAN A/L SIVALINGAM 15855
618 MR PAUL JAMES SAPWELL 15858
619 MR PETER LEONG YUE SEK 15869
620 EN ANWAR BIN ABDULLAH 15893
621 MDM LAI PAI LENG 15900
622 MR CHIU CHENG MING 15905
623 MR YEE FOOK WAI 15909
624 MDM YONG CHOOI CHOOI 15913
625 MR JOHN JIEW CHIONG LUKE 15918
626 MR PHANG CHEE TAT 15922
627 MR PARAMESVARAN GANESAN 15947
628 MR WANG WEI-YU 15978
629 MR CHIAM TAT SENG 15999
630 DR LEE KAM PONG 16012
631 MR KIRUPANANDAN E MURUGESU 16020
632 YBHG DATO’ OON HOON NAM 16022
633 MR POON HOW KUN 16024
634 MR SANTOKH SINGH A/L GURDEV SINGH 16037
635 MR RAJAMOGAN ARUMUGAM 16040
636 MR SELVENDRAN KATHEERAYSON 16043
637 MR VIGNESH NAMBIAR 16062
638 MR SOH KAM ENG 16064
639 YBHG DATO’ ARASENDRAN INDRASITH 16065
640 MR LIEW KAI MUN 16079
641 MR TAN SEE MENG 16110
642 MS ANISHA VINAYAK PRADHAN 16117
643 MS LOONG WEN-HUI 16168
644 PN MASLINA BT ABDULLAH SANI 16170
645 EN FAIZ BIN M KUNJU 16182
646 EN KHAIRUL KEITH BIN ABU HUSIN 16195
647 MS TAN SHIOW SHEN 16210
648 MR CHEW WENG LEONG 16212
649 MR HARKIRET SINGH RANDHAWA 16219
650 MR MANOHAR PANDIAN MAHALINGAM 16222
651 PN SHARIFAH DALILAH ALBAR SYED ZAID 16261
652 MS WINNIE TAN PEK YIN 16267
653 MDM SATKUNASOTHIE PAUL NEE DURAISAMY 16280
654 DR HARDIP SINGH GENDEH 16284
655 MS TAN YAR LIENE 16318
656 MR SHAWN FOONG WAI LUND 16325
657 MR NG ZHAO HOONG 16328
658 MR SIA KOON HUI 16393
659 MR SUBRAMANIAM SINGARAM 16429
660 MR GONG NGIE DEE 16450
661 EN ZULKIFLI BIN SHAHARI 16456
662 MR LOW JOO LIM 16457
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663 MR TAN JIAN YI 16472
664 MR NAMASIVAYAM K V SATHASIVAM 16483
665 MDM WONG MEE LAN 16489
666 MR CHONG KHIN YEW 16508
667 CIK FARIZZAH FAROOK 16520
668 IR SOFIA BT JOHARI 16529
669 MR RAMAN KUMAR KUKREJA 16540
670 MS PRAVEENA KARUNAMOORTHY 16575
671 EN HARRIS SIVAPATHAM ABDULLAH 16588
672 MDM NG NYOKE YING 16596
673 IR CHEONG CHEE KWONG 16607
674 MR LIM CHOON YONG 16617
675 MR ANTHONY HUBERT S W WILFRED 16640
676 MR THANABALASINGAM RAMALINGAM 16649
677 MR CHUA CHYE HUP 16652
678 MR VIJAYAKUMAR A/L M V NAIR 16659
679 MR SUKHAMAR SINGH A/L AMAR SINGH 16675
680 DR GOH KIM CHUAN 16700
681 EN EMIR FA’IQ BIN FAIDZ 16719
682 EN MOHAMED NOOR DANIAL BIN  16738
   MOHAMED YUSOFF
683 MDM JANET LIM 16743
684 MR RENZO CHRISTOPHER VIEGAS 16751
685 MR CHAN WAH TOONG 16792
686 MS CH’NG AI LEE 16794
687 MR EDUARD MARTIN STAUDINGER 16797
688 MR SEE THO MUN HONG 16808

689 MR M GANESH KUMAR A/L V MARIMUTHU 16854
690 MR GOGINI SRINIVASULU REDDY 16872
691 MDM CHOO FOONG HAR 16899
692 EN MOHAMED NOORHELMY BIN  16904
   MOHAMED YUSOFF
693 MR RAM ANAND A/L PETER HUNT 16911
694 MR ALVIN LIM KIM LENG 16916
695 MR LOKE PAK-SENG 16920
696 YBHG DATO’ MUSTAFA MOHD ALI E3888
697 DR V V NADKARNI E4796
698 YBHG DATUK MUHAMMAD FEISOL HASSAN E4830
699 MR L T KULASINGHAM E4904
700 YBHG DATO’ IR PANG LEONG HOON E4970
701 MR RISHA A RAJADURAI E5012
702 DR JAMES LIEW YAT HOE E5110
703 MR C AYADURAI, AMN E5444
704 YBHG DATIN JEANNIE LIM E5797
705 EN ABDUL RAHIM ISMAIL E6636
706 MR M S N GODFREY E6756
707 MR GOH JOON HAI E6958
708 YBHG DATO’ Y SIVALOGANATHAN E7019
709 MR CHEAH CHIP FUN E7380
710 EN MOHD KAMAR MOHAMED E7669
711 MR LIM TENG ENG E7755
712 MR MANJEET SINGH DHILLON E7828
713 MR K NADARAJAH E8349
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Minutes of the 2018 Adjourned Annual General Meeting
Held at the Banquet Hall of the Royal Lake Club on Sunday, 25 March 2018 at 10.00am

Present:
Members of the 2017/2018 General Committee:

Name Membership No. Designation

Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon 13399 President
Lt Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel 7280 Vice President
YBhg Dato’ Gee Siew Yee 15173 Committee Member
Ms Lee Mew Kwan 14681 Committee Member
Mr Lim Beng Jin 12120 Committee Member
Mr Loke Wai Mun 11053 Committee Member
Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah 11551 Committee Member
Dr Surindar Singh Jeswant Singh 15233 Committee Member
Mr Sailendra a/l V Kanagasundram 15347 Committee Member
Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap 15194 Committee Member
Ms Amuthambigai Tharmarajah 9845 Committee Member
Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong 9697 Club Secretary

Members of the 2016/2017 General Committee:

Name Membership No. Designation

Mr Bernard Foong Khee Seng 12403 Vice President
Mr Lee King Loon 14374 Committee Member
En Shaik Rizal Shaik Sulaiman 11544 Committee Member
Mr Chew Teck Hong 12666 Committee Member
Mr Asokkumaran a/l P Kesavan (Mr K A Kumar) 13512 Committee Member
En Ahmed Zakki Abdul Jabbar 13879 Committee Member

And 203 other Voting Members as shown in the attached list (Pages 75 to 76)

[1.0] Chairman of the Meeting

 The President, Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon presided as the Chairman of the 2018 Adjourned Annual General 
Meeting (“AAGM” or “the Meeting”) of the Royal Lake Club Kuala Lumpur (“RLC” or “the Club”) pursuant to Rule 
25.6 of the Constitutional Rules and Club Byelaws of the Club.

[2.0] Notice of the AAGM

 The Club Secretary read out the Notice and Agenda of the AAGM.

[3.0] Item 1 of the Agenda:
 To receive, and if approved, adopt the Audited Accounts for year ended 30 June 2017

3.01 The Chairman explained that the AAGM was called because the Club’s Audited Accounts were not ready 
and that there was time constraint to discuss the proposed constitutional amendments at the Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) on 10 December 2018. He said that the GC of 2016/2017 had set a timeline for 
the Audited Accounts to be completed in January and an AAGM to be held in February. When the external 
auditors, M/S Azman, Wong & Salleh (AWS) forwarded the draft Audited Accounts in mid-January, the 
Club had also received a notice from the Customs Department stating that the Club had underpaid GST 
by RM360,000. Therefore, AWS had to make further adjustments to the accounts. The Club received the 
signed Audited Accounts on 28 February 2018. 

 The President of the Club of 2016/2017, Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff was unable to attend the AAGM because 
he had booked his travelling plan for the whole month of March 2018 as he had anticipated that the Audited 
Accounts would be ready by February 2018. Nevertheless, Mr Patrick Chiam said that the members of the 
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Finance Sub-Committee (FSC), particularly its deputy chairman would explain and clarify any issues arising 
from the Audited Accounts.

3.02 Dr K J John (7116) raised two questions. First, if it was an adjourned meeting, who should chair the meeting. 
Secondly, if the adjourned meeting included the constitutional amendments, could the Club consider it and 
whether the unelected GC had the authority to table it.

3.03 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed (E7669) agreed with the issues raised by Dr K J John. He wanted to make the 
meeting right regardless it being an AGM or EGM. If it was an AGM, the current GC should not be presenting 
the Audited Accounts before the AGM was completed. He also agreed that there should not be any other 
resolutions on the floor apart from those not completed at the last AGM.

3.04 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa (9857) supported En Kamar’s statement. He wanted the AGM to proceed because 
it was expensive to convene a general meeting. He also was of the view that it would not be fair to hold 
the current GC to answer questions on the Audited Accounts as they might not know the answer to the 
questions. He also disagreed with the statement made by the Audit Committee that the Club’s finances 
could only support two years of operations based on the amount the Club had in fixed deposits. He agreed 
that the Club should not be thinking about spending fixed deposits to fund its operations but rather look at 
ways to fix the Club’s finances. 

3.05 The Chairman halt further discussion on the Club’s accounts and returned to the topic of the adjourned 
general meeting.

3.06 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa requested that the Chairman to participate in the discussion of the Audited Accounts 
but chairing the general meeting would hinder that. He proposed that the House appoint another member 
to chair the meeting. 

3.07 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon (E7828) complimented the chairman of the Audit Committee for bringing up the 
Robert’s rules of order in his report. He said that he wanted the meeting to be conducted according to 
rules of order and that the only material that could be taken up in an adjourned meeting was materials that 
was adjourned and not new materials should be brought to the floor. On a point of order, he requested the 
Chairman to rule out all other resolutions because it failed to conform to the Club’s Constitution. He held 
the view that the GC would be destroying the Club in taking up arbitrary decisions of what should be done. 
He also believed that the GC makes decision through WhatsApp messages and the current and previous 
GC has been redacting GC meeting minutes. The minutes in the office were different from the minutes in 
the library. 

3.08 Mr Bernard Foong Khee Seng (12403) wanted the GC to comply with the Constitution. He said that the 
GC 2016/2017 did not comply with the Constitution by holding the AGM on 10 December 2017 as it was 
never approved by the GC then. There was one member who brought up the issue but he was told that 
it was approved by the GC with five votes. He said there was no resolution to that effect recorded in the 
minutes. 

 He was concerned should the House considered the general meeting as an AAGM because whatever 
decisions or actions taken by the GC 2017/2018 from 10 December 2017 to 25 March 2018 might be 
illegal or void as the previous GC would still be office as the earlier AGM was not concluded. He was of the 
view that the meeting of 25 March 2018 should be conducted an EGM, in accordance with the statement 
made by the ROS. He said that there were two choices presented to the GC, first was to convene the AGM 
without the Audited Accounts or to have the AGM with the Audited Accounts but to postpone it to a later 
date after 31 December, similar to what Tun Hussein Onn did in 1978 and 1979. He stated the reason 
some of the GC members of 2016/2017 to disassociate themselves from the decision to hold the AGM 
without the Audited Accounts was because they did not want the Club to spend extra money to convene 
two separate general meetings. He also agreed with Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon that the President should 
chair the meeting. However, he maintained that the general meeting that day should rightly be an EGM and 
not an AAGM. He said that the AGM was already over and the term of office of the 2016/2017 GC had 
ended. He further said that he would not wish to vote on the issue as such would undermine the Club’s 
Constitution.
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3.09 YBhg Dato’ Y. Sivaloganathan (7019) said the argument so far was two-fold. First was whether the meeting 
should be called an AAGM or EGM and secondly, the new resolutions tabled in the meeting’s agenda that 
were not present in the AGM held on 10 December 2017. 

 Whether the meeting that morning should be considered as an AAGM or EGM, Dato’ Sivaloganathan viewed 
it as immaterial as the House could decide on that. In respect of new resolutions, he held that the House 
could consider such resolutions as long as notice had been sent to all members. He added that the new 
resolutions included the suggestions from the Turnaround Committee which addressed the issue of the 
financial loss suffered by the Club, a suggestion for the Tender Committee to be elected by and answerable 
to the House and a resolution from the Legal Committee requiring all complaints against any members 
must be submitted to the Disciplinary Committee. 

 Dato’ Sivaloganathan proposed that the House considers and decide for the meeting to proceed as AAGM 
with all the resolutions as proper notice had been sent out to the all members. 

3.10 Both Mr Stanley Augustin (10906) and Mr K Nadarajah (E8349) seconded the proposal.

3.11 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed requested the Chairman to make a decision whether to agree or disagree with 
Dato’ Sivaloganathan.

3.12 Mr Ng Peng Kong (8723) said that the Constitution sets out the fundamental principles, the rules and 
regulations to govern the Club and he was of the view that there were too many occasions where it was 
bent. Rule 25.16 provided for no new matters to be introduced at an adjourned general meeting, only to 
complete unfinished matters. He added that the new resolutions tabled were in violation of Rule 25.11 in 
that the resolutions had to be dispatched by post, which was not done.

3.13 The Chairman stated that the agenda only contained three items which were extracted from the agenda of 
the AGM held on 10 December 2017. He further added that the AGM of 10 December 2017 ended without 
the meeting being closed. As such, he took it that the meeting had yet to be concluded and therefore, an 
adjourned general meeting was called for.

 At the time of sending out the notice for the AAGM, the Chairman informed the House that the Club received 
9 resolutions as follow:

(a)  Resolution #1 was to increase the membership subscriptions, which could be discussed when the 
House considers the proposed amendments to the constitution under Agenda #2.

(b)  Resolution #2 was to purchase a facilities and maintenance system, and setting up an asset and 
facilities register. As such was an operational issue, it could be discussed when the House look at the 
Audited Accounts.

(c)  Resolution #3 was to look into a 5-years F&B plan, which was also an operational issue that could be 
discussed along the way.

(d)  Resolution #4 was how to revamp the Machine Room operations, which topic could be discussed 
when the House considers the Audited Accounts.

(e)  Resolution #5 was setting up another Finance Committee which was another operational issue that 
could discussed along the way.

(f)  Resolution #6 provided for the election of members to the Tender Committee instead being appointed 
currently. Such resolution would require an amendment to the Constitution and could be discussed 
under Agenda #2.

(g)  Resolution #7 was in two parts. The first was to provide for the setting up of a Special Functions 
Sub-Committee. Such a Committee was already set up by the current GC with Mr Lim Beng Jin as the 
chairman, Ms Amu Tharmarajah the deputy chairman and 5 other voting members. The first part of 
this Resolution had already been addressed.

(h)  The second part of Resolution #7 was to lodge a disciplinary complaint against the three cheque 
signatories who signed a sum of RM371,000 to pay a legal firm. A complaint to that effect had been 
filed. The second part of this Resolution had already been addressed.



Annual Report 2018

Kelab Taman Perdana DiRaja Kuala Lumpur  |  57

Minutes of 2018 Adjourned Annual General Meeting (continued)

(i)  Resolution #8 provided for any complaint made by staff against any members must be submitted to 
the Investigation Committee. Discussion on this issue could be taken up when the House deliberates 
on Agenda #2.

(j)  Resolution #9 provided for 3 parts. The first part was in respect of the election of the Club being 
managed by the Elections Committee, which had been the practice the past 2 to 3 years. The second 
part provided for all complaints to be handled by the Disciplinary Committee without the need for the 
Investigation Committee. The third part was to present the annual budget to the House at every AGM. 
All three items could be discussed under the first two agenda.

 The Chairman said that there was issue where past GCs were accused of hiding resolutions when the GC 
ruled out some of the resolutions as out of order and kept it from the AGM. The current GC took the view 
that the resolutions had been submitted and should be sent out to members so as to keep them informed 
of the matter. However, by doing so, the Chairman said that it did not mean that the GC had ruled that these 
resolutions to be tabled. He also informed the House that Rule 25.16 of the Constitution did not allow these 
resolutions to be tabled officially in the meeting, and hence the Chairman ruled that the resolutions will not 
be tabled. 

3.14 Dato’ Sivaloganathan differed in his views and stated that the House had the right to propose those 
resolutions to stay on the agenda and discuss it. He wanted to expose the inequality of disciplinary matters 
were being handled in the Club. He proposed that the ruling of the Chair be reversed and the resolutions to 
be put for discussion on the Agenda.

3.15 Dr K J John pointed out that Rule 25.10 states that subject to Rule 31, no resolution can be proposed 
without 14 days’ notice. There were only three items on the agenda in the mail which he received, hence 
he failed to understand from where did Dato’ Sivaloganathan found that there were 14 days’ notice given 
for all the resolutions. He added that the rules of conduct were what kept the members civilised.

3.16 The Chairman stated that the Constitution was very clear that no other business shall be discussed and that 
he was implementing the Constitution, not making a personal ruling. Nevertheless, he said that substance 
of those resolutions could be discussed in the process under Item 1 and 2 of the Agenda. He added that, 
although it was an adjourned general meeting, there was no rule to said the chairman must be the same 
chairman who chaired the meeting earlier. Being the Club President now, he said that he shall chair all 
general meeting as provided for in the Constitution. With exception of Dato Kamil Noor Ariff, Mr Loke Mun 
Kit and Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev, all the members of the GC 2016/2017 were present to answer any 
questions from the House. The Chairman then called upon the members of the GC who were not in the 
Committee last year to stand down and invited the members of the 2016/2017 GC to take their seats at 
the Main Table.

3.17 Mr Bernard Foong stated that the AGM held on 10 December 2017 was not properly called and therefore, 
illegal. By that principle, GC 2017/2018 was actually illegal. He added that the term of GC 2016/2017 
has ended and should not be called up. He added that some of the signatories were not changed by the 
current GC until late January.

3.18 The Chairman stated that sitting up at the Main Table did not make one a Vice President or a GC member. 
They were only there to give answers to the House for the accounts during their tenure.

3.19 Mr Bernard Foong Khee Seng said that the accounts were flawed. The last page dated 17 January 2018 
which stated “in the opinion of the GC 2016/2017” was incorrect as the GC 2016/2017 had already 
stepped down as at that date.

3.20 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon wanted Mr Bernard Foong to wait as the House was already in discussion on 
Agenda #1.

3.21 Mr Bernard Foong said that he did not want to sit up at the Main Table if the accounts were not right to 
which Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon said that the former need not sit at the table but to stand from where he 
was and explain to the House.
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3.22 The Chairman once again requested that the GC 2016/2017 members to come up to the Main Table so 
that the House could proceed with Item 1 of the Agenda.

3.23 Mr K A Kumar (13512) stated that Mr Lee King Loon was ready to explain the accounts. He further added 
that Mr Bernard Foong had resigned as the Finance Chairman in March/April last year.

3.24 Mr Goh Joon Hai (E6958) held that there was no need for GC 2016/2017 members to come up to the 
front to explain because their term had expired. Even if they chose not to answer any questions, there was 
nothing the House could do.

3.25 The Chairman reminded the House that the GC 2016/2017 had assured the House then that they would be 
present to answer for their accounts.

3.26 Mr Goh Joon Hai (E6958) again said that there was no need for them to come up to the Main Table as 
the person who signed the accounts was Mr Lee King Loon and he was present and ready to answer all 
questions.

3.27 With that, the Chairman invited Mr Lee King Loon to present the Audited Accounts for the year ended 30 
June 2017.

3.28 Mr Lee King Loon (14374) introduced himself as the deputy chairman of the Finance Sub-Committee 
(FSC) of 2016/2017. He reminded the House that he had presented a lengthy explanation as to why the 
Audited Accounts were delayed and not tabled to the House at the AGM held on 10 December 2017. He 
and the former President had committed to stay on and see the Audited Accounts to completion as well 
as providing certain milestones and timeline. He said that the timeline was adhered to and the Audited 
Accounts were signed off on the 18 January 2018. However, there were several adjustments arising from 
the audits between 10 December 2017 and 18 January 2018 due to the ongoing audit at that time. 

 One main adjustment was the additional GST which dated back to April 2015 to January 2017 amounting 
to RM259,000. The Management and the Auditors also decided to make a provision in the accounts 
towards the legal fees that was considered to be recoverable but deemed doubtful because of the pending 
court hearing, which amounted to RM371,000. Finally, there was an additional gaming tax amounted to 
RM350,000 to RM400,000. Mr Lee said that all the said adjustments were now reflected in the Audited 
Accounts. In his opinion, he said that there was no point talking about the accounts which dated back 9 
to 20 months ago. The important message that was being conveyed by the Accounts was on Page 4, the 
Cash Flow statement. He said that a good Cash Flow statement should be the basis for any business or 
club to manage its operations as there were numerous accounting entries in the Profit & Loss statement 
which would distort the actual financial state of the Club. 

 The Club, in the 12 months period ended 30 June 2017 lost RM2.5 million in cash reserves. RM2.5 million 
loss in cash equalled to an average loss of RM210,000 a month or RM7,000 a day. The RM2.5 million 
losses included the RM1.8 million received in new entrance fees, without which the Club actually lost RM4.3 
million. The accounts were audited by Messrs Azman Wong & Salleh (AWS), a very reputable audit firm that 
had been with the Club for many years. He held that the debate on the whether the meeting shall be called 
EGM or AAGM was not important and that members should consider amending the Constitution if found 
necessary.

3.29 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed asked Mr Lee King Loon to stay on point.

3.30 Mr Lee King Loon ended his presentation with his opinion that some of the resolutions tabled in the meeting 
today involved improving the revenues of the Club and proposed solutions or streamlining the operations of 
the Club, should be seriously considered by the members considering the financial situation of the Club. 

3.31 Mr Bernard Foong said that he wanted to look at the basic principle of accounts and said that before an 
account was tabled to a meeting, it must be approved by the GC. He referred to Page 18 which contained 
the statement by GC 2016/2017 and stated that the GC never met on 17 January 2018 as they were 
already out of Office, hence there was no resolution. He also referred to Page 11, Item 7.2 where it was 
stated that the GC recognised those remaining unidentified provisions and charged it to P&L. He agreed 
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that the statement was signed by Dato Kamil and Mr Lee King Loon but he disagreed that the rest of the 11 
GC members had looked at it. He stated that the opinion cannot include them that they agreed. He wanted 
the current GC to change from “in the opinion of the 2016/2017 GC” to “in the opinion of Dato’ Kamil and 
Lee King Loon”. He added that in accounting, actions would be taken towards the person that approved it 
if there was any problem with it. He did not agree with the charging of the additional gaming duty, in which 
the Club was paying 33% whereas the law only specify for 20%. He did not want his name to be attached 
to the Audited Account.

3.32 The Chairman informed the House that he spoke to both Dato Kamil and Mr Lee King Loon who were 
active in getting the Audited Accounts ready by mid-January and had asked Dato Kamil to get his General 
Committee to agree with the Audited Accounts. He said he was not aware with whom Dato Kamil spoke 
with and added that as of now, he only had heard that Mr Bernard Foong wished to disassociate himself 
from the Audited Accounts and asked if anyone else wishes to do so. 

3.34 Mr Bernard Foong said than when one makes a statement, it must be backed by facts and documentation, 
with proper meeting to authorise it. The principle he was laying was that nobody could speak for another’s 
behalf. He said that having decided and said somebody else agreed was wrong in principle.

3.35 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa stated that the last paragraph as pointed out by Mr Bernard Foong of it being not 
approved by everyone was fatal to the accounts. He called upon the House to appease Mr Bernard Foong 
so that the accounts would not be rejected which would probably cause more problem with the ROS.

3.36 The Chairman stated that there was a deadline to meet as an extension has already been granted. The 
reason for the rushed adjourned general meeting was because the original deadline was 28 February 2018 
and further extended to 31 March but no later than 30 April 2018.

3.37 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa held the view that that the Chairman should not have rushed the matter as Dato Kamil 
was not present.

3.38 Mr Chua Chye Hup (16652) thought that the Club talked a lot about byelaws and who was agreement or 
otherwise. He highlighted that Mr Lee King Loon had mentioned the details in the accounts which were 
things of the past. He held that the Club was not spending enough time addressing issues in the finance 
such as the electricity bill and staff expenses as seen in Items 18 and 20, respectively. He also highlighted 
the administrative expenses which amounted to RM3.2 million as seen on Page 21. On Page 13, Item 17, 
salary management totalled RM1.7 million last year, wages for the union staff at RM2.5 million, overtime at 
RM804,000 and bonuses at RM525,000. He wanted to know why the Club was still paying bonus when it 
was losing money. He posed the issue to Mr K A Kumar as he was the Chairman of the Human Resource.

3.39 Mr K A Kumar clarified that the bonus and wages was in the collective agreement while the issue on 
overtime and part-time staffs were something that they wanted to address but their term was over. He held 
the view that it was one of the items that the new Committee should look into.

3.40 Mr Chua Chye Hup thought the Club should hold someone accountable and explain why was the Club was 
paying RM7.1 million a year on personal enrolment and benefits. He held that the collective bargaining was 
a poor excuse. He wanted to know what the Club was going to do with the RM1.5 million a year electricity 
bill. He also noted that RM2.5 million was unaccounted for in the finances of 2015 and requested an 
explanation for it.

3.41 Ms Lee Mew Kwan (14681) stated that she was now in the GC in-charged of house and grounds. She 
explained that the Club was paying an increase in electricity tariff of 18.8% since 2011 which was the 
reason why the electricity cost had increased. In 2011, it was RM0.43 and in 2018, it was RM0.509. 
However, she managed to bring the monthly cost from RM160,000 to RM130,000.

3.42 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted the meeting to be conducted with one idea at a time. The issue of the 
objection by Mr Bernard Foong was still hanging and it was fatal to the accounts. He wanted to address it 
as according to the logic presented by Mr Bernard Foong, the accounts might be fraudulent. He held that 
Dato’ Kamil should have been asked if there were any objections from the GC through a meeting.
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3.44 The Chairman said that describing the accounts to be described as fraudulent was wrong. The accounts 
were audited by a reputable firm of auditors with their names on it. He added that administrative and 
typographical errors did not make an account fraudulent. He wanted everyone to be careful with their 
statements.

3.45 Mr Bernard Foong asked the external auditors if they received the letter of resolution from the GC 
2016/2017 that the accounts were approved, which was under the basic audit rules.

3.46 The external auditors, AWS responded that they received resolutions from the current GC.

3.47 Mr Bernard Foong said that he only wanted the fundamentals to be solved before moving on to the details.

3.48 The Chairman reminded Mr Bernard Foong not to use the word fraudulent.

3.49 Mr Bernard Foong stated that he did not use the word fraudulent. He thought that there might be some 
administrative error in the accounts and if that be the case, an amendment should be sent to all members 
but there was no statement of error. He also stressed that it was the GC 2017/2018 which approved the 
Audited Accounts and not the GC 2016/2017 as stated by AWS.

3.50 YBhg Dato’ Abu Mansor Basir (5042) held that it was a very important legal issue and should be corrected. 
He was surprised that this was not looked into by the old members of the Club who held positions in the 
Club. He wanted accountability. If the Audited Accounts were not approved by GC 2016/2017, then it was 
wrong, without exception. He wanted the House to do something about it. 

 Being a qualified accountant since 1965, Dato’ Abu Mansor Basir held that there were serious issues 
with the situation that day. Firstly, he would prefer that the accounts to be approved as it might have 
serious consequences from the ROS for failing to do so. Secondly, he wanted all the serious issues to be 
compartmentalised, for example, a special committee with assistance from the auditors to look into the 
RM2.5 million which was unaccounted for. Thirdly, he pointed out that there was a serious problem with 
the Club’s cashflow which was only RM19.3 million after deducting members’ deposit of RM9.1 million. 
He also proposed that fees for the external auditor, be raised from the current RM50,000 a year so that 
more serious work could be done as the current fee was very low. He further said that a quarterly audit and 
quarterly accounting like public company do could be done so that problems could be traced to a specific 
period of the year. He also highlighted that the Club had a serious issue of bad debts with members’ bad 
debts amounting to RM537,685 in the accounts and the year before at RM487,344, which was 10% to 
12% of the Club’s losses. He held that the bad economy would not affect the earnings of the machine room 
so much and as highlighted by Mr Bernard Foong, the Club was paying 33% gaming tax and not 20% like 
the years before, which was not right. He questioned why the Club still operates the machine room when it 
loses money. He suggested that a special investigation to be done on the operations of the machine room 
department and appropriate allowances to be given towards it.

3.51 The Chairman stated that the GC 2017/2018 had stated in its meeting dated 17 January 2018 that the 
accounts were approved to be tabled to the House and the external auditors have got copies of the minutes 
or correspondences to that effect. However, the statement that was printed out stated that as being the 
GC 2016/2017. He asked the external auditor for advice on correcting it.

3.52 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa held that even if that was addressed, it may not appease Mr Bernard Foong.

3.53 The Chairman advised En Zait to listen to what the external auditors had to say.

3.54 The external auditors stated that the GC 2017/2018 had authorised the finance statements for issue, as 
stated in Note 28 of the Report. He also understood that the GC 2017/2018 required the past President, 
Dato’ Kamil and Mr Lee King Loon to sign the accounts as they were responsible for the preparation of it 
and the external auditors have dealt with the two individuals in the course of the audit exercise.

3.55 The Chairman wanted to know how to handle the situation because Mr Bernard Foong was not happy with 
the statement.
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3.56 The external auditors held that the GC 2017/2018 had authorised the set of accounts and it should be 
taken as authorised as issue. As by convention, the accounts had to be confirmed and as required by the 
Constitution, for the GC to make a statement as to the true and fairness of the financial statements. Hence, 
the suggestion to change it to the FSC to sign off might not be adequate.

3.57 Mr Allan Guy Goonting (13283) stated that the Constitution provided for a meeting of the General Committee 
be deemed legal and properly constituted with a certain number of them being present. He held that if Mr 
Bernard Foong did not wished to admit it, it was irrelevant. It was a question of sufficient quorum to make 
the necessary decision to sign the document.

3.58 Mr Bernard Foong stated that Mr Gooting was not in the meeting and should not comment on the issue.

3.59 Mr Allan Goonting stated one of the two signatories was present and he should be asked instead of anyone 
else. He wanted to know if there was a meeting and if so, was it properly constituted and did they agree to 
sign off the document in the said meeting. Otherwise, he said the whole point was moot.

3.60 Mr Bernard Foong held that was relevant in financial management.

3.61 Mr Allan Goonting said he was talking about the Club’s Rules and not about Mr Bernard Foong.

3.62 Mr Bernard Foong asked the external auditors whether Item 28 was accurate. He agreed that it was 
authorised by GC 2017/2018 but was it prepared by the same? It was prepared by the two gentlemen and 
there were a lot of items in the accounts that he disagreed with, for example the gaming tax of 33%. He 
wanted to ask the rest of GC 2016/2017 if they were called to a meeting or was there a special resolution. 
He said there was none. He asked Mr Lee King Loon if the accounts were approved by GC 2016/2017. 

3.63 En Shaik Rizal Bin Shaik Sulaiman (11544) wanted to move on from the issue as it had been deliberated 
for a long time. He would rather spend the time discussing how to prevent the Club from losing money and 
not who signed the document. 

3.64 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed proposed that the name be changed from General Committee to Finance Sub-
Committee in the Audited Accounts.

3.65 Dr K J John seconded the motion and asked if Mr Bernard Foong would accept the amendment.

3.66 Mr Bernard Foong said he would accept that as he had only wanted to follow the principles. He added that 
it was defamation if something was done by someone but their names were mentioned.

3.67 Mr Goh Joon Hai held that the GC 2017/2018 could approve the accounts as GC 2016/2017 term of 
office was over but the issue of the date remained.

3.68 Dato’ Sivaloganathan highlighted that on Page 15 stated that the amount towards the legal expenses was 
RM30,708. He also highlighted that on Page 9 in the Report of the Audit Committee stated that there was a 
sum of RM371,720 that was paid for the solicitors. The payment appeared not to comply with the financial 
procedures of the Club. It was not shown as an expense item in 2017 and such was not right. He stressed 
that the accounts must be a true reflection of what took place in the administration of the Club. There was 
a big difference between RM370,000 and RM30,000.

3.69 Mr Lee King Loon stated that the RM371,000 that was highlighted referred to the amount paid to Messrs 
K C Chan, as shown at Note 21, under allowance for doubtful debts, other receivables. It was not labelled 
as legal fees recoverable.

23.70 Dato’ Sivaloganathan wanted to know what disciplinary actions the GC have taken against the people 
involved to avoid the same problem arises in the future. He said that the Legal Committee had commenced 
civil proceedings towards the recovery of the money through Messrs Shook Lin & Bok. 

3.71 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon stated that a complaint had been lodged with the Investigation Committee (IC) and 
the House would be the final appellate body for any disciplinary manner. It should not be used to condemn 
any members of the Club. He wanted to let the IC complete its investigations. 
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3.72 Dato’ Sivaloganathan pointed out that the decision was made by the Audit Committee last year during the 
month of October but the GC then was not prepared to act on it. He put the resolution to the House and it 
was sent to the GC on 11 March. He questioned why no action had been taken in the past 6 months as it 
was only 7 weeks ago that a complaint was sent to the IC. He wanted to know why the GC was dragging 
its feet on disciplinary matters.

3.73 The Chairman said he would attend to one issue at a time and the House was at the point of agreeing the 
exact wordings which would be agreeable with both the external auditors and Mr Bernard Foong. 

3.74 Mr Bernard Foong said that he was not disagreeing with anything but did not want it to be an issue of 
appeasing him. Instead, he said that the Club should do what was right and pointed out that the statement 
in the Audited Accounts was wrong and unless Mr Lee King Loon wanted to apologise to the whole GC for 
not having a meeting but signed off on behalf of the rest of the GC. He asked if there was any approval.

3.75 Mr Hari Prasad A/L C. Vasudevan (10419) referred to the amount of RM371,720 and wanted to know why 
was it a receivable item and not a contingency. 

3.76 The External Auditors stated that the Club had intended to recover the sum of RM371,000 that was paid 
out to a solicitor, hence, it was posted as other receivable. Since the matter was currently in legal dispute, 
for accounting purposes, it was impaired and provided for under doubtful debt purposes. It was not a 
contingency. If the Club succeeded in recovering the amount, the sum would come back as an income and 
the provision for doubtful debt would no longer be required and the provision would be reversed.

3.77 Mr Hari Prasad wanted to know if the entry would be cancelled out.

3.78 The External Auditors confirmed that it was correct, by reversing the provision for the doubtful debt.

3.79 Mr Hari Prasad asked that as far as the accounts were concerned, it would show as a receivable item.

3.80 The External Auditors stated that it would show as receivable but at the same time, it was fully provided for.

3.81 Mr Hari Prasad asked if the entry would be carried on in the books until the trial was over.

3.82 The External Auditors confirmed that it would be so until an outcome from the court but the decision was 
for the management to make.

3.83 Mr Hari Prasad wanted to know what were the general expenses which amounted to RM330,509 in 2017 
and RM236,000 in 2016.

3.84 The External Auditors stated such questions should be posed to the management.

3.85 Mr Hari Prasad wanted to know what were sundry receipts, miscellaneous, under income which amounted 
to RM264,000 and RM268,000. He wanted clarification on the breakdown, where did it came from and 
where was it expensed out.

3.86 Mr Lee King Loon proposed that such question should be posed to the finance department through the 
proper channel.

3.87 The Chairman said that Mr Hari Prasad was part of the Special Functions Sub-Committee and they were 
given full permission to get all the information from the finance department.

3.88 Mr Lee King Loon wanted to address the three comments made by Mr Bernard Foong.

3.89 Mr Hari Prasad wanted to know if RM371,000 that was paid out in two payments for the two suits of 
RM150 million each made any sense. 

3.90 The Chairman stated that those questions were on issues that happened two years ago and that there was 
no point bringing it up at the moment.

3.91 Mr Hari Prasad proposed that in the future, if the Club was to take any legal action as the Plaintiff, it should 
be referred to a Special Committee.
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3.92 The Chairman said that it could be part of the recommendation from the Special Functions Sub-Committee 
to the GC. 

3.93 Mr Stanley C Augustin said that he was appointed to the Legal Committee to look into the legal issues in 
the Club. He was the person who made the complaint to the DC on the RM371,000 that was paid to the 
counsel as the GC would not take any action on the matter. He also stated that it was discovered that the 
amount paid was not authorised by the GC and that it was criminal breach of trust. He was prepared to 
lodge a police report in that regards at no expense to the Club provided the Club was prepared to give him 
the documents to do so. He wanted a resolution to that effect be voted upon by the House.

3.94 Dato’ Sivaloganathan proposed that the GC to authorise Mr Stanley Augustin to make the necessary 
reports in respect of the RM371,000. 

3.95 Mr Lim Choon Hong (8898) wanted to appoint a Special Committee to report the matter with the commercial 
crime division at Bukit Aman. He also wanted the Club to do its own investigation at the same time to 
support the case.

3.96 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted the House to address one matter at a time. He stressed that the validity 
or legality of the financial statement as not fully addressed. He also stated that Mr Goh Joon Hai had 
mentioned that the standing GC had the power to authorise the accounts to be audited. He pointed to Item 
28 on Page 17 and proposed substituting the words “GC 2016/2017” with “GC 2017/2018” to resolve 
the problem. He sought consensus from Mr Bernard Foong.

3.97 Mr Bernard Foong stated that the statement was misleading and if it was taken out, he had nothing to do 
with it and he could then proceed to comment on the rest of the accounts.

3.98 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa (9857) sought the Chairman’s approval to modify the statement according to Mr Goh 
Joon Hai’s proposal.

3.99 The Chairman said it would not work because the next page also stated “GC 2017/2017”.

3.100 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa (9857) then proposed amending Item 18 also by changing it from “GC 2016/2017” to 
“GC 2017/2018” so that the two paragraphs would be consistent. He said that amending such accordingly 
was not only legitimate but practical because the GC would come and go but the company continued on. 
He wanted to know if Mr Bernard Foong would accept the said proposed amendments.

3.101 The Chairman sought the views of Mr Lee King Loon.

3.102 Mr Lee King Loon agreed with the suggestion as proposed by En Zait Bin Mohd Isa and Mr Goh Joon Hai 
but some modifications had to me made to be fair to everyone and yet factual. Note 28, as confirmed by 
the external auditors, with documentations, should be amended to “GC 2017/2018”. He suggested the 
amendment to read as “GC 2017/2018 has authorised these financial statements be issued on 17 January 
2018 and has instructed and authorised the President of the GC 2016/2017 and the deputy chairman 
to sign the accounts” if the House wanted the two individuals to sign off the accounts. If it was no longer 
necessary, it would be fine too. He assured the House that Dato Kamil and his position would not change 
and they were prepared to sign the accounts if required to do so. 

 He moved on to Page 18, stating it should be consistent with Page 17. Dato Kamil and his name could be 
placed below the GC 2017/2018 and to sign off if required. Alternatively, a member of the GC 2017/2018 
could be elected to do so. He also wanted to address one of Mr Bernard Foong’s comments. He stated 
that the reason the machine room tax was 33% was that the MOF had actually conducted an audit during 
the financial year and found that the Club had underpaid the gaming tax by RM400,000. The management 
accrue for the sum and was audited by AWS. The account was not wrong. It just reflected the fact that the 
machine room operations were poorly managed. He also responded to the statement made by Mr Bernard 
Foong for him to apologise to the members. He humbly believed that he did not owe any members any 
apology as he had done the best for the Club in the one year he served in the GC and in the contrary, felt 
that it was Mr Bernard Foong who owed the members an apology, especially to the GC 2016/2017 for 
wasting their time and making them so unproductive and look so bad during the year.
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3.103 Mr Bernard Foong wanted proof to show that the GC members had approved the accounts or otherwise. 
He wanted it changed because it was wrong and it was fundamental in the accounts.

3.104 En Ahmed Zakki Bin Abdul Jabbar (13879) wanted to move on to discussing proper matters of the Club like 
the finances. He thought that too much time was spent on discussing things that was not beneficial to the 
Club.

 3.105 Mr K A Kumar wanted to move on as well and thought the Chairman was giving a lot of credence to Mr 
Bernard Foong. He stated that there were 5 to 6 people including him from GC 2016/2017 who had 
supported Mr Lee King Loon on the accounts. 

3.106 The Chairman asked the External Auditors if the proposal made by Mr Lee King Loon was acceptable.

3.107 The External Auditors held that if the GC 2017/2018 was willing to sign the accounts and authorise the 
accounts, it was still acceptable but the only concern was once there were new signatories to the accounts, 
whether it would become a new set of accounts which would necessitate another general meeting to 
reconsider was something that the House needed to be look into.

3.108 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed wanted to vote on it and move on. He had proposed to change Item 28 from GC 
to FSC which proposal was seconded by Dr K J John.

3.109 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas (14673) proposed that the House to accept the words as proposed by Mr Lee King 
Loon instead as it was more reflective and could be adopted by future GC.

3.110 The Chairman asked the External Auditors whether the proposal by Mr Lee King Loon was acceptable.

3.111 The External Auditors agreed on the fact that the GC had approved the financial statement. He further 
stated that there were two options suggested by Mr Lee King Loon. One, the GC to authorise the financial 
statement but allow the previous GC to sign it. Two, the current GC signs and approves it.

3.112 The Chairman held that option two should not be considered as it would require new signatories and new 
dates.

3.113 The External Auditors stated that option one required some changes to the financial statement and a 
certain disclosure to Note 28 which would change the entire financial statement.

3.114 The Chairman held that it should not change the whole financial statement because the notes were wrong. 
There was approval from GC 2017/2018.

3.115 That being the case, the External Auditors agreed with the proposal of option one.

3.116 The Chairman then recapped and ruled changing Note 28 on Page 17 to state, “The GC 2017/2018 which 
was elected during the AGM on the 10 December 2017 has authorised this financial statement that were 
prepared by the GC 2016/2017 for issue on 17 January 2018 and has instructed and authorised the 
president of 2016/2017 and deputy chairman of finance 2016/2017 to sign off the financial statement”. 

 On Page 18, the new statement would read, “In the opinion of the GC 2017/2018, the financial statement 
set out on Page 1 to 17 are properly drawn out and give true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 30 
June 2017 and its income and expenditure and cashflow for the year then ended”. 

 The Chairman also added the inclusion of the names of Dato Kamil and Mr Lee King Loon to sign the 
accounts as authorised by the GC 2017/2108. With that, the House accepted the corrections made to the 
Audited Accounts and the Chairman continued with the Agenda.

3.117 Mr Lim Beng Jin (12120) said that the changes would also be applied to Page 11, to which the Chairman 
disagreed as it was during the year.

3.118 Mr Chua Chye Hup wanted to know about the RM2.5 million that went missing and pointed out two things, 
whether that matter would be addressed at the next EGM and secondly, the various matters that were 
hidden in the Audit Report.
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3.119 The Chairman explained that the Special Functions Sub-Committee is looking at the reports prepared by 
various committees on the missing RM2.5 million and would formulate a course of action plan.

3.120 Dato’ Sivaloganathan wanted to know if the RM2.5 million in discussion was a new sum of money that went 
missing.

3.121 Mr Chua Chye Hup clarified that it was a sum of money that went missing as reported a couple of years 
ago.

3.122 Mr Prem Kumar (15873) asked if that money was in relation to the union staff salary which the Chairman 
confirmed otherwise.

3.123 Mr Chua Chye Hup brought the attention of the House to Page 5 of the Audit Committee Report. Under item 
448 in 2014, other operating expenses totalled a sum of RM2.5 million. He wanted to know where that sum 
of money went as it was very well hidden. 

3.124 En Harris Beh (6560) said that there was a hint of financial shenanigans in relation to the RM2.5 million as 
it was adjusted to the prior years and not to the current year. He wanted to know if the Special Functions 
Sub-Committee was going to look into it.

3.125 The Chairman confirmed that the Special Functions Sub-Committee was in the midst of looking into the 
various reports and considering a course of action and the matter will be presented at the next AGM.

3.126 En Harris Beh wanted to know why the GC took a long time to act on the complaint that cheques were being 
signed in an unauthorised manner. He wanted to know if it was because it affects one of the GC members.

3.127 Mr Stanley C Augustin wanted the House to confirm that he had been authorised to lodge a police report on 
behalf of the Club in respect of the three signatories of the cheque which was unauthorised. He wanted to 
know whom he should be in contact in the Club to get hold of the photocopies of the documents needed. 
He would also prepare statements of the Club’s witnesses to assist the police investigations.

3.128 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon wanted Mr Stanley Augustine to lodge a police report after comparing the two 
sets of minutes as stated by him, one that was in library and another in the GC office. However, he would 
not want the Club to rush the process.

3.129 Dato’ Sivaloganathan suggested that Mr Stanley Augustine to look at the two sets of minutes on behalf of 
the Club as he was a qualified person to do so being the ex-head DPP of the Federal Territory. 

3.130 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon asked the Chairman to take charge of the situation.

3.131 Dato’ Sivaloganathan contended that attention must be not diverted.

3.132 Mr Goh Joon Hai wanted the issue of the accounts to be put to a vote.

3.133 Mr Philip Mathews (14023) stated that there were members of GC 2016/2017 who had written to the Club 
to state the position vis-à-vis the authenticity of the two different sets of minutes and there was no need to 
check both of it.

3.134 Ms Kimmie Goh Keng Kim (14841) wanted to speak about the missing RM2.5 million that have a final effect 
on cash flow. Tax computation have back expenses that effects the cash and cash equivalents and want to 
know how many years that the amount had been affected. She said that Tax Effect accounting considered 
Permanent Differences and that would effectively make numbers disappeared. Timing differences gave rise 
to Future Income Tax Benefit or Provision for Taxation.

3.135 Mr Chew Teck Hong (12666) wanted Mr Lee King Loon to show the minutes of the GC 2016/2017 that had 
authorised the approval of the accounts ended 30 June 2017 as stated in Note 28.

3.136 Chairman said that the matter had been settled to which Mr Chew Teck Hong maintained that there was no 
approval on the accounts by the GC 2016/2017.
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3.137 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said that the issue of the approval of the Audited Accounts had been resolved 
earlier. He thanked Mr Kulasingham and the members of the Audit Committee for doing a wonderful job 
on the Report and highlighted that the Club was given an F the last 5 years. In 2014, the Club received a 
disclaimed opinion. Since 2013, he said that the Club’s accounts had been qualified. He wanted to know 
what the issues were that had caused such qualification. He wanted the External Auditors to help identify 
the weaknesses in the system so as to improve the preparation and auditing of the Club’s accounts.

3.138 Mr Bernard Foong said that he noticed that at Item 28, it was still written as GC 2016/2017 instead of GC 
2017/2018 and the same on Pages 11 and 18. He wanted clarification from the Chairman as to what had 
been resolved on the statement of accounts.

3.139 The Chairman said he did not understand the question.

3.140 Mr Bernard Foong wanted the Chairman to read out what was agreed with the External Auditors with 
regards to the issue relating to the statement of accounts.

3.141 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon said that the House had already gone through with the amendments and asked 
the Chairman to proceed in approving the Audited Accounts.

3.142 Mr Bernard Foong highlighted that the amendments did not cover Page 11 and asked if the amendment 
from “GC 2016/2017” to “GC 2017/2018” applied to Page 11.

 On the issue of the RM2.5 million, he said that he had brought up that issue as well as the issue of phantom 
workers in 2016. He said that he was the only one who did not approve the accounts at the AGM in 2015 
in view of the issue surrounding the RM2.5 million. 

3.143 The Chairman clarified that Pages 11, 17 and 18 were totally different. He said that Pages 17 and 18 
referred to the period after the end of the financial year in respect of signing the statement and audit report 
whereas Page 11, Note 7 happened during the financial year when GC 2016/2017 was in office. It was a 
statement during the tenure of the GC 2016/2017.

3.144 Mr Bernard Foong said that it was a standard practice for accountants to recognise the numbers, identify, 
check and investigate before setting it off against P&L.

3.145 The Chairman said that he understood what Mr Bernard Foong was saying in that the GC 2016/2017 did 
not minute it to that effect. 

3.146 Mr Bernard Foong stated that the provision was done at the end of the year, not during the year. He had 
that provisioning required the items to be identified and recognised before setting it off against P&L.

3.147 The Chairman then questioned who recognised it if the GC 2016/2017 did not do so.

3.148 Mr Bernard Foong said that it was the reason he mentioned that the statement was fraught with errors. He 
said that he did not see the statement and as such he could not agree with it.

3.149 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas asked Mr Lee King Loon if there was any suggestion to help resolve the predicament 
of Mr Bernard Foong in respect of Page 11.

3.150 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa reassured Mr Bernard Foong that his implication in the accounts without his consent 
was absolved upon amending Item 18.

3.151 Mr Bernard Foong thanked Encik Zait Bin Mohd Isa for having it recorded.

3.152 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa explained that Item 11 cannot be changed as it was a statement of fact, of history. 
He asked the Chairman to move on to adopting the audited accounts. He also asked the External Auditors 
to explain what was wrong with the Club’s accounting system.

3.153 YBhg Dato’ Syed Mustaffa Syed Ali (13670) wanted the Club to address the problems of having a weak 
GC, weak management staff and also a non-supporting system moving forward. He was of the view that 
the managing the Club would require good management support and proposed that the Turnaround 
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Committee to look into the matter. He further said that would take 3 to 4 years before all the issues could 
be resolved.

3.154 Mr Chew Teck Hong wanted to know what action had been taken to address the deficiencies in the Club 
as he believed AWS would have informed the Club. He said that he was aware that the Club did not carry 
out the monthly bank reconciliation statements and demanded for an explanation. He said that the RM2.5 
million might be derived from there.

3.155 The Chairman reminded Mr Chew Teck Hong that he should have raise the question when he was a member 
of the GC last year.

3.156 Mr Chew Teck Hong stated that he did brought up the matter with the former President, Dato’ Kamil and 
the GC was assured many times that reconciliation was carried out. He also said that the GC minutes would 
reflect his statement.

3.157 That being the case, the Chairman informed Mr Chew that he was unable to do anything as it had already 
happened.

3.158 Mr Chew Teck Hong clarified that he was not asking for help but wanted the Club to know of what had 
happened. 

3.159 Mr Ng Peng Kong (8723) raised the issue of overtime. He said that the Club did not seemed to close 
despite the byelaws of the Club stipulated the opening and closing of the various outlets. He said the 
current byelaws provided for the Club to operate till 1.30am or latest till 2.00am. He wanted to know what 
was the percentage of the total overtime expenditure was attributed to the cost of running the Club beyond 
its closing time. He also noticed that the Batik Bar and the Buttery operated beyond its closing time to 
accommodate one or two members drinking there and that it was a waste of the Club’s resources. He held 
that the GC should give directives to the security officers to close the Club at a particular time and beyond 
it, nobody should be in the Club.

3.160 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas said that the main concern was to stem the Club’s losses and to install proper 
accounting processes.

3.161 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said that the Club’s ledgers were a mess and should be tidied up. He also found out 
that the storekeeper was the one who created the purchase requisition in order to issue a purchase order. 
He expressed his concern that such practices would enable the storekeeper to order anything he wanted, 
without check and balance.

3.162 The Chairman said that such details would be looked into by the GC and FSC. In addition, the Audit 
Committee had been working very hard. The main task at hand was to receive and adopt the accounts.

3.162 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa was concerned that the coming year’s accounts could be qualified as well.

3.163 The Chairman stated that even the External Auditors could not answer that question.

3.164 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted to know what the External Auditors had learned about the Club’s accounting 
system.

3.165 The Chairman ruled the question as out of order as the scope of work of the External Auditors did not 
include an investigative audit but rather to certify that the Club’s accounts as true and fair. 

3.166 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed wanted to move forward to adopt the accounts.

3.167 Lt. Col (R) Tommy Pereira (14691) wanted to know if it was safe to approve and adopt the accounts or was 
it going to be challenged in the court of law. He held the view that the Club should request more time from 
ROS to sort it out. 

3.168 Dato’ Sivaloganathan responded that anyone could take any matter to court, but winning the case was 
another matter altogether.
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3.169 Dr K J John proposed that the House to adopt the accounts. He said that the Turnaround Committee had 
been discussing the issues raised earlier, including the resolutions and sought the GC’s support to finish 
their job.

3.170 There being no other matters raised, the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 was 
duly received and approved.

3.171 Dato’ Sivaloganathan wanted the Chairman to put to a vote if the Mr Stanley Augustin, on behalf of the Club, 
should lodge a police report in respect of the cheques that had been signed.

3.172 Mr Goh Joon Hai wanted the GC to do what was right since the House had elected them for such purposes. 
He opposed the resolution for Mr Stanley Augustin to lodge a police report on the Club’s behalf as he would 
not have personal knowledge to the offense committed. Furthermore, he wanted to know how much it 
would cost the Club to pursue this. He was concerned that if done improperly, it would open the Club to 
lawsuits.

3.173 Dato’ Sivaloganathan said that the comments by Mr Goh Joon Hai was irrelevant as lodging a police report 
was different from prosecuting. He explained that Mr Stanley Augustin was offering his services to the 
Club as the GC was reluctant to take a position on it. He further said that Mr K C Chan, the lawyer whom 
the monies were paid, was the chairman of the disciplinary inquiry of the Club. He was also authorised 
or instructed by the GC to commence lawsuits on the Club’s behalf, at the same time he appointed the 
disciplinary committee. It was a conflict decision. Dato’ Sivaloganathan wanted the Chairman to put the 
resolution to a vote as the GC had been very reluctant to deal with disciplinary action because it was not 
the popular thing to do. However, he would leave it to the House to make the decision and offered himself 
as seconder to the proposal.

3.174 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon reminded the House that Rule 25.10 did not allow for fresh matters to be tabled 
at the meeting and asked the Chairman to rule the motion as out of order and that all the 8,000 members 
of the Club should have knowledge of what was happening.

3.175 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated those members who did not attend the meeting had chosen to do so. Only 
those who were interested with the Club’s matter had turned up to make a decision and these were the 
peoples’ views that should be taken. 

3.176 The Chairman requested Dato’ Sivaloganathan not to shout.

3.177 Dato’ Sivaloganathan said he had always held that meetings should be conducted in a civil fashion but 
pointed out that there were members who shouted for attention, and when attention was accorded to them, 
he might as well join in to make a point.

3.178 Mr Maria Stanislaus A/L S Vethanayagam (16339) stated that any amendments by way of a resolution must 
have the two-thirds of the GC agreeing to it. He reminded the Chairman that all discussions and decisions 
made at the House must be made within the boundaries of the Club’s Constitution.

3.179 The Chairman explained that there was no amendment to the Constitution being discussed at that moment. 
The resolution on the floor was to appoint Mr Stanley Augustin to make a police report on behalf of the 
Club.

3.180 Dato’ Sivaloganathan said that whenever a serious issue was being brought up, there seemed to be others 
bringing up deflecting issues. He wanted the House to make a decision on the matter as the GC was 
reluctant to take any action.

3.181 Mr Peter Geh Cheng Thye (12647) seconded the motion.

3.182 The Chairman put the motion to the floor and declared the resolution as carried after a vote was taken.

3.183 Dato’ Sivaloganathan proposed that Colonel Johan Van Geyzel to take leave of absence from his office until 
the disciplinary proceedings against him by the Club was over. 
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3.184 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon reminded the House that one was innocent until proven guilty. However, if the 
person concerned felt that he ought to take leave of absence that decision should be left to him. He further 
reminded the House against being so readily to condemn a man publicly and openly.

3.185 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that if a government servant was charged in the court, he would be asked to 
take leave from office until his name was cleared. He said that the House did not condemn Colonel Johan 
and said he was guilty. It was a normal process.

3.186 Mr Gasper Gnanamuthu (10433) reminded everyone that the Royal Lake Club was a family club and that 
Colonel Johan was elected by the House and should be allowed to sit in his office until he had been proven 
guilty. Until then, he held that Colonel Johan should not be embarrassed. 

3.187 Dato’ Sivaloganathan asked if Colonel Johan would take a leave of absence on his own accord.

3.188 Lt Colonel (R) Johan Van Geyzel (7280) stated that a complaint had been submitted to the IC and the 
investigation was ongoing. He said that he did not object to the earlier resolution to authorise Mr Stanley 
Augustin to lodge a police report as he said he was innocent. He further added that all his actions were 
done with the approval of the GC and that he did not signed the cheques blindly. He stood by his obligation 
to serve the members of the Club with fear or favour.

3.189 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that the Audit Committee Report mentioned that the cheques were signed 
blindly. He held the view that Colonel Johan could not function as a neutral man in the committee anymore.

3.190 Lt. Colonel (R) Johan Van Geyzel held that Dato’ Sivaloganathan might be having a personal vendetta 
against him.

3.191 Dato’ Sivaloganathan said that there was nothing personal. He was appointed by the House to sit on a 
Special Legal Committee to look at 7 irrelevant cases that the previous GC has started. Among it was a 
lawsuit involving the poolside attendant carrying placards which the Club sued them for RM150 million, 
an amount which in his opinion ridiculous. The Special Legal Committee which comprised himself, Mr 
Stanley Augustin, Dato Philip Chan, Mr Naidu and Mr Yusof Khan had taken the necessary action such as 
bringing the solicitors involved to disciplinary proceedings before the Bar Council and to discontinue all the 
lawsuits. As of now, there was only the suit involving Dr Moly Cheah was still pending because she wanted 
RM100,000 for cost but the Club had offered RM30,000. The court, after taxation, awarded RM5,000. All 
these were done in the best intention of the Club. 

3.192 Mr Cheok Kim Chee (13264) held that it was not nice to pass resolution to ask a fellow member of the 
Club to take leave of his position. He held that the House should leave the decision for Colonel Johan to 
decide. 

3.193 Mr Philip Mathews said that he was a member in the GC in question and confirmed that the GC did not take 
any decision on the suits nor approval was sought and given on the payment involved.

3.194 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon held that the fault was the GC had allowed for two sets of different minutes to be 
maintained. He also reminded the House that the general meeting would be the final appellate body for any 
disciplinary action in the Club. Hence the House should allow for the disciplinary proceedings to take its 
own course but should allow a member to exhaust all avenues.

3.195 Dr K J John stated that there were only three items circulated for discussion for the meeting which did not 
include all the resolutions that were now being raised.

3.196 Dato’ Sivaloganathan reminded the House that it was the Chairman who had mentioned and gave his 
assurance that the resolutions will be discussed along with the accounts.

3.197 The Chairman corrected the statement and stressed that the resolutions should only be discussed as a 
content.
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3.198 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that Mr Philip Mathews who sat in the GC for 12 months confirmed that there 
were monies spent without authorisation and there was no two sets of minutes as far as this matter was 
concerned. The current resolution arose as an ancillary resolution following a resolution that was carried 
earlier arising from the discussion that a sum of RM370,000 was spent on the legal fees. 

3.199 The Chairman reminded Dato’ Sivaloganathan that all his points had been heard.

3.200 While his points may be heard, Dato’ Sivaloganathan said that it may not have been listened. He maintained 
that Colonel Johan should take a leave of absence from office until his name was cleared. He said that 
Colonel Johan should not take part in Committee’s proceedings as his reasoning would be clouded.

3.201 Dr K J John again reminded everyone that substance of the resolutions could be discussed but putting forth 
resolutions was against the due process. 

3.202 Dato’ Sivaloganathan said that the Chairman that it was his duty to put it to a vote should a resolution arises 
from the House.

3.203 The Chairman replied that it was also his duty to allow members to speak and voice their views.

3.204 Lt Colonel (R) Johan Van Geyzel said that the Constitution provided for an election of office bearers at an 
AGM, and the positions of the President, the Vice President and the 11 GC members so elected shall serve 
until the next AGM. He was of the view that tabling a resolutions to disallow him to serve out his term would 
be contrary to the provisions of the Constitution. If that be the case, he wanted the House to grant him 
permission to seek clarification from the ROS whether the House was supreme or the Club’s Constitution.

3.205 Mr Peter Leong Yue Sek (15869) agreed with Dr K J John. He said that the House had earlier agreed that 
there shall be no resolutions tabled. He said the small number of members present then could hardly be 
called a House.

3.206 Mr Gasper Gnanamuthu reminded the House that Royal Lake Club was a family club and did not want a 
repeat of what the members did in 2016 where the majority of the GC members were asked to leave. He 
leave it to Mr Patrick Chiam to handle the matter in the best interest of the Club.

3.207 Mr Chew Teck Hong disagreed that there was no due process accorded to Colonel Johan. He said that the 
GC of last year had authorised the Club’s solicitors to send letters to the GC members of 2015/2016 and 
Colonel Johan had failed to respond.

3.208 Lt. Colonel (R) Johan Van Geyzel acknowledged that he had received and replied to the letter sent by the 
Club’s solicitors. He further added that that he was elected by 213 members to serve from AGM to AGM 
and currently there was less than 230 members in the meeting. He said that the resolution put forth was 
against the Constitution and that he reserved his right to go to the ROS. He urged the members to abide 
by the Constitution.

3.209 Dato’ Sivaloganathan held that a GC member would not sit from AGM to AGM if he was found of any 
wrongdoing. 

3.210 Lt Colonel (R) Johan Van Geyzel maintained that he was innocent until proven otherwise and asked the 
Chairman to proceed with the meeting.

3.211 Dato’ Sivaloganathan agreed that he was innocent until proven guilty but still maintained that Colonel Johan 
had to take leave of office until then.

3.212 Lt Colonel (R) Johan Van Geyzel agreed he would step down if he was guilty of any wrong doing but it must 
be proven first.

3.213 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that Mr Philip Mathews had confirmed that the cheques were paid out without 
approval. He continued to state that all he was saying was for the sake of honour, so that members were 
aware that there were honourable members in the Committee.
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3.214 Lt. Colonel (R) Tommy Pereira said the meeting was going in circles and wanted everyone to act with some 
decorum and abide by the Constitution.

3.215 Dr K J John held the view that comparing elected members of the Committee to that of a person in the 
public service was not correct. The reason for the person in public service taking leave from office was 
because a public service appointment was for life.

3.216 Mr Goh Joon Hai held that such resolution would breach the fundamental process of the disciplinary 
process in the Club. He said that all decisions of any disciplinary matters would confined to the members 
involved in it. Hence, he held that by allowing the resolution, the House might be violating the proceedings. 
He wanted the Chairman to rule the motion out of order as no new motion should be tabled at that meeting.

3.217 En Abdul Rahim Ismail (E6636) wanted the Chairman to do the right thing and reminded everyone that 
Colonel Johan was not guilty at that point in time.

3.218 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas held the view that Colonel Johan should step aside until his name was cleared of any 
wrong doing. From what he gathered from the discussions, he concluded that the House wanted Colonel 
Johan to step aside and not to step down from his elected position as the Vice President.

3.219 Mr Prem Kumar (15873) was of the view that calling it as “step aside” or whichever language used to 
describe it, it would give the perception that he was guilty. He said that Colonel Johan had every right to 
decide to stay on and serve in the Committee. He wanted the Chairman to make a decision and move on. 

3.220 Dato’ Sivaloganathan wanted the Chairman to put it to a vote and that he would accept whatever the 
outcome was.

3.221 En Abdul Rahim Ismail held the view that Colonel Johan had yet to be found guilty and the House had no 
right to ask him to step aside. He said that the House should allow the due process to complete.

3.222 Mr Ho Sai Kong @ Hoo Ah Chai (E6078) stated that no one was saying Colonel Johan was guilty but merely 
to step aside and facilitate the investigation. 

3.223 Mr Prem Kumar held that it was within Colonel Johan’s right to continue to serve and the decision whether 
or not to step aside was entirely up to him. He wanted the Chairman to make a decision on the proposed 
resolution and move on to the next agenda.

3.224 Lt Colonel (R) Johan Van Geyzel corrected the statement made by Mr Ho Sai Kong. He said that the IC was 
an independent body and GC member who was in the IC cannot take part in the voting process. He further 
added that in the event the accused was found guilty, the final recourse available was to convene an EGM 
but yet the House was already discussing the subject matter. He was of the view that such discussion 
would be subjudice.

3.225 Mr Gasper Gnanamuthu said that until Colonel Johan was found guilty, he should be allowed the chance to 
serve the Club. He wanted the Club’s Constitution be respected and the House to follow the set procedures.

3.226 Mr Chew Teck Hong reminded everyone that the Club, besides being a family club was also a Gentlemen’s 
Club and the members should act like gentlemen.

3.227 The Chairman highlighted that the House had been concentrating on the issue surrounding Colonel Johan 
yet there was another member of the GC who had a police report made against her. He further added that 
Colonel Johan was not in the FSC currently and was not a cheque signatory either. He was in Membership 
and Human Resources where it did not involve money. With that, he asked Dato’ Sivaloganathan whether 
he would like to reconsider and withdraw the resolution.

3.228 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that he was just a conduit and putting forth the resolution was not his decision 
but that of the Legal Committee. He reminded the House that it was the members who had asked the Legal 
Committee why the wrongdoings of Colonel Johan was not brought to the attention of the House. He also 
added that the Audit Committee did not wish to disclose names and left it to the individual whether they 
wish to run for office. He stressed that the resolution was not personal but it was a resolution arising from 
the House and he believed in the wisdom of the House when making decision.
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3.229 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon warned that such discussion on the matter would be subjudice and the use 
of word “wrong doings” implicated that a decision had been made and such would expose the Club to 
potential litigation.

3.230 Dato’ Sivaloganathan held that House or the GC should not act and decide due to fear of litigations and that 
there would always be threats of damages. 

3.231 YBhg Dato’ Philip Chan (14602) wanted to put the matter to a vote and let the House to decide. 

3.232 Lt. Colonel (R) Tommy Pereira reminded the House that it had been agreed earlier in the morning that there 
shall be no resolutions tabled for discussions. He held that the Club should allow the due process of internal 
inquiry be carried out rather than publicly demanded Colonel Johan to step aside. He wanted the members 
to uphold the principles as contained in the Constitution.

3.233 Mr Peter Geh Cheng Thye held that the Club being a gentleman’s Club then Colonel Johan should withdraw 
and not take part in any decision making. Otherwise, the Legal Committee would be accused of not doing 
anything.

3.234 Lt Colonel (R) Johan Van Geyzel reminded the House that the Chairman had earlier highlighted the fact that 
another member of the GC had had a police report made against her. He asked whether the House would 
also require her to step aside. He reminded the House that one was innocent until proven guilty and that he 
would not fail the 230 members who had voted him as the Vice President.

3.235 Mr Prem Kumar wanted the GC to do its job and take responsibility to ensure that the investigation was 
done fairly, in the interest of absolute transparency. If it was found that Colonel Johan was not guilty, then 
there was no reason for him to step down.

3.236 Dato’ Sivaloganathan stated that there were clearly two views in the House and asked the Chairman to put 
it to a vote and move on to another matter.

3.237 Mr Ho Sai Kong @ Hoo Ah Chai sought clarification whether the resolution was requiring Colonel Johan to 
step down or to step aside. He said that no one was asking Colonel Johan to step down.

3.238 En Abdul Rahim Ismail held that the Chairman had to make his call since Dato’ Sivaloganathan did not wish 
to withdraw the resolution.

3.239 After hearing the views expressed by members, the Chairman ruled the resolution out of order as Colonel 
Johan was not in any portfolio that deal with money and the fact that the House had concentrated on one 
individual and totally left out the other person.

The meeting adjourned for lunch at 2:30pm and reconvened at 3.15pm.

[4.0] Item of the Agenda:
 To consider and approve the proposed amendments to the Club’s Constitutional Rules

4.01 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted to know why the Club had to pay GST because as far as he understood the 
matter, the Club did not carry any GST expenses. The difference of amount paid by the caterer and the 
members was what the Club should pay to the Customs Department. There should be only be GST payable 
which was output tax and GST receivable which was input tax.

4.02 The Chairman said that he was as confused as anyone on the matter of GST especially so when the 
Customs Department had been changing rules since GST was first introduced in April 2015. Currently, the 
Club had to pay GST on machine room earnings, section funds and coaching fees. He said that while the 
Club was paying the amount owe, they were looking for solutions to the GST problem.

4.03 Zait Bin Mohd Isa volunteered himself in the event the Committee intended to set up a body to look into the 
matter.
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4.04 The Chairman said that the FSC was currently looking into the matter and he was sure that the FSC would 
invite him when required.

4.05 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa said that there was no necessity to study the matter anymore as the solution was 
just to stop issuing tax invoice on behalf of the Caterer and such would simplify a lot of things. The Club 
should deduct amount from the tax invoice given by the Caterers as the Club’s transaction was a sale and 
not supply. The Club’s coaches were also required to give the Club tax invoices and to be a registrant to 
the GST and the Club should look for replacement coaches if they refused. He also volunteered to appear 
before the Customs Department if the need arise.

4.06 The Chairman took note of the suggestion given and proceeded to table the proposed amendments to the 
Constitution. He informed members that the proposed amendments were sent out earlier, as contained in 
the booklet made available at the registration table. 

4.08 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa asked whether the resolutions proposed by the Turnaround Committee could be 
considered as recommendations and included in the minutes of meeting.

4.09 The Chairman expressed his concern whether such inclusions from being a resolutions to recommendations 
could be made.

4.10 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted the resolutions to be included as part of the minutes and be submitted to the 
GC for their considerations. He also requested that the GC would review it and table it for deliberations at 
the next general meeting.

4.11 The Chairman assured him that whatever resolutions that were submitted would be considered and reported 
in the next annual general meeting.

4.12 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa held that the substance of the resolutions were issues that needed to be addressed 
immediately and not to wait until the next AGM.

4.13 The Chairman assured him that work was being done.

4.14 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted to know what the GC was going to do with the recommendations in the report 
that was going to be tabled in December 2018.

4.15 The Chairman said that the report would include whatever that had been done and things yet to be 
addressed. However, he said he could not promise the specific issues but assured him that issues would 
not be ignored.

4.16 The Chairman then proceeded to table the proposed amendments to the Constitution.

4.17 Mr Philip Mathews held that the House could not discuss the constitutional amendments at that point in time 
as it contained too many errors and omission, and at best, it was a work in progress. It needed a second 
working.

4.18 The Chairman explained that the constitutional amendment has gone through three Constitutional Review 
Committee. The amendments were approved by GC 2016/2017 in June 2017 to be tabled at the AGM held 
on 10 December 2017, and as such it was an unfinished agenda. He was open to the views of the House.

4.19 Mr Ng Peng Kong supported the view that the constitutional amendment was not ready to be discussed. 
He said that there were problems with the definition of spouse as the Law Reform (Marriage & Divorce) Act, 
1976 did not cover certain parties, outstation members’ fees and membership transferability to name a 
few.

4.20 En Zait Bin Mohd Isa wanted the constitutional amendment to be reworked and to be tabled in December 
2018 as the matter was not urgent. However, if there were any particular urgent amendments that needed 
to be discussed and deliberated upon, then such amendments could be isolated and discussed.

4.21 Mr Goh Joon Hai supported the suggestion to rework the constitutional amendments and would like the 
Committee to invite members to provide feedback in the process. 
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4.22 Mr Manjeet Singh Dhillon suggested that no formal meetings should be called during the initial feedback for 
the constitutional amendments but the Committee could hold monthly interval meetings to gather feedback 
so that when it was ready to be tabled official, no members could claim that no prior notice was given.

4.23 Dato’ Sivaloganathan suggested the House to appoint Mr Philip Mathews, Mr Ng Peng Kong and Puan 
Hendon Mohamed (9987) to the Constitutional Review Committee. He further added that they shall review 
and recommend proposed amendments through town hall meetings to seek feedbacks before tabling the 
proposed amendments at an EGM.

4.24 Mr Ng Peng Kong was of the view that there should not be a separate Committee but rather the House to 
appoint three members to review the Club’s Constitution.

4.25 Dato’ Sivaloganathan supported the idea.

4.26 The Chairman sought confirmation from the House to postpone the constitutional review so that some 
members will work with the Committee on the amendments.

4.27 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas sought clarification if the postponement was for the constitution amendment or the 
meeting.

4.28 The Chairman said that the postponement was for the constitutional amendment.

4.29 There being no other matters, the Chairman declared Item 3 on the Agenda was no longer on the table.

4.30 Dato’ Sivaloganathan suggested for a timeframe for the people working on the constitutional amendments 
to table their recommendations to the House, and suggested a timeline of 6 months.

4.31 En Mohd Kamar Mohamed supported the idea for fixing a timeline. 

4.32 In respect of communicating with members on the proposed constitutional amendments, Dato’ 
Sivaloganathan suggested that it could be done via email as it would not cost the Club.

4.34 The Chairman took note of the various suggestions put forth and held that the proposed amendments 
would be easily read and decided upon if members’ feedback were obtained beforehand. With regard to 
the timeline, the Chairman said that progress would be informed to members periodically.

4.35 Mr Bernard Foong wanted to thank Dato Param Cumaraswamy, Mr Chan Hua Eng, Datuk Noor Azian and 
Datin Grace Xavier for preparing the current constitutional amendments. He further added that the GC 
should look into the report by the Audit Committee on the issues that besets the Club.

4.36 The Chairman assured the House that the GC would be reviewing the report of the Audit Committee.

4.37 Mr Jaikrishin Tirathdas proposed a vote of thanks to the GC for job well done.

[5.0] Conclusion

5.01 The Chairman closed the meeting at 5.00pm.

SIGNED AS A CORRECT RECORD

CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING
MR PATRICK CHIAM TOW LOON
ROYAL LAKE CLUB KUALA LUMPUR
25 MARCH 2018
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1 MDM WOO SOW HO 3772
2 DR A PATHMANATHAN 4224
3 DR LEE CHEE HIN 4679
4 YBHG DATO’ PARAM CUMARASWAMY 4774
5 YBHG DATO’ LEONG YOKE FAIE 4825
6 MR SIM POH KHUN 4907
7 MR R RAJARATNAM 4913
8 TUAN HAJI MOHD ALI ISMAIL 4921
9 PN NOOR YEE ABDULLAH 4991
10 YBHG DATO’ ABU MANSOR BASIR 5042
11 DR S S GILL 5126
12 YBHG DATO’ DR JOSEPH ERAVELLY 5244
13 IR HARRY TAN KIAN HUAT 5492
14 MR LEAN CHEE SENG 5600
15 MR FRANCIS MAGIMAY 5637
16 YBHG DATO IR MOHD RIZAL  5638
  AL-AMIN TUN SARDON
17 MR CYRIL OLIVER XAVIER 5769
18 MDM WONG THYE MOI 5861
19 MR KHOO CHOONG KEOW 6051
20 MR LIM YEW MENG 6264
21 MR FRANCIS RICHARD GOW 6398
22 EN HARRIS BEH 6560
23 MR STANLEY TAN CHUEN KEAT 6645
24 YBHG DATO’ TAN BOON HOCK 6778
25 MR TAN KUAN YEW 6811
26 MR LOW BENG HOCK 6852
27 EN SHARKAWI BIN ALIS 6853
28 MR LAI WAI KUN 6975
29 MR HOH HO CHI 7012
30 EN RASHID E MAMAJIWALLA 7040
31 DR K J JOHN 7116
32 EN AHMAD KAMIL MOHD YUSOF 7167
33 MR KENNETH LEE MING TO 7192
34 MR WILLIAM F C LOONG 7193
35 YBHG DATIN MARIAM EUSOFF 7256
36 LT COL ® JOHAN VAN GEYZEL 7280
37 MR KHOO TENG HOCK 7339
38 DR KEE PENG LEONG 7395
39 MR MOHANRAM KUMAR NAGARAJ 7423
40 EN ZAINAL ABIDIN LISUT 7447
41 MR LEE WAI THONG 7477
42 MR P YOGANATHAN 7524
43 MR SAW TENG CHUAN 7547
44 MS AILINA LEE OI LING 7862
45 MR MAH PENG CHEAH 7971
46 MR SEAH FOOK CHIN 8023
47 MR YONG LIN TANG 8177
48 MR NG BOON PUEY 8270
49 MR CHEAH FOOK YEN 8305
50 EN SUHAIMI HAJI SIDEK 8325
51 MR LIM BOON KANG 8376
52 MR S SOMU 8463
53 MR TEOH CHENG HAI 8510
54 DR WOON KOK CHIN 8516
55 MR KHEW CHEE SUN 8576
56 MR NG PENG KONG 8723
57 YBHG TAN SRI DATO’ DR SALLEH MOHD NOR 8835
58 MR SOH KAI CHOY 8836
59 YBHG DATO’ CHEAH KONG WAI 8878
60 MR LIM CHOON HONG 8898
61 EN SANI MAH ABDULLAH 8908
62 YBHG DATO’ TAN SENG CHEE J P 8961
63 EN SHAMSUDIN MUSTAFA 8970
64 MR CHAY NG 9025
65 MR ANTHONY TAN HAN GEE 9107
66 MR VICTOR MOK KUM SENG 9520

67 MR LIM CHENG YEOW 9590
68 MR SHAM SUNDER J VIKYOMAL 9600
69 EN AHMAD BIN ABDULLAH 9650
70 YB DATIN PADUKA KOMALA DEVI PERUMAL 9690
71 MS LEE HUNG FONG, HILDAH 9697
72 PN HAFIDZAH NUR LOW ABDULLAH 9841
73 MS AMU THARMARAJAH 9845
74 EN ZAIT BIN MD ISA 9857
75 EN MOHAMED YUSOFF MAHMOOD 9864
76 PN SUHAILY NG ABDULLAH 9924
77 TUAN HAJI KHAJA MARICAR 9963
78 PN HENDON BT HJ MOHAMED 9987
79 EN ABD KADER ABD RAZAK 9991
80 EN AMIR DASTAN 10053
81 PN BETTY HAWA ABDULLAH (NG AH HWA) 10184
82 YBHG DATO’ SERI ERIC LIM EWE CHYE 10317
83 MDM TAN SIOK ENG 10326
84 MR WONG KEM CHEN 10339
85 MR LEE KUAN MANG 10355
86 MR TAN POH OON 10365
87 MR HARI PRASAD S/O C VASUDEVAN 10419
88 MR GASPER GNANAMUTHU 10433
89 YBHG DATO’ SEGARAJAH RATNALINGAM 10482
90 MR TOH CHENG HAI 10604
91 MR GEORGE LOH KWEK KWEE 10609
92 YA DATO’ TAN YEAK HUI 10646
93 MR THOMAS FONG WAI HENG 10694
94 CIK SALMAH HJ MOHD EUSOFF 10807
95 TN HJ ABDUL RASHID BIN ABDUL MAJID 10825
96 MR LAM MUN WAH 10826
97 EN MAHBOB ABDULLAH 10881
98 MR ANAND PONNUDURAI 10886
99 MR STANLEY C AUGUSTIN 10906
100 YBHG DATUK MUMTAZ ALI 11022
101 MR LOKE WAI MUN 11053
102 MR PERIASAMY SINNAPPAN, PJK 11096
103 MR TEH WEE YANG 11147
104 MDM CAROLINE ELANE CHIAM J T LING 11193
105 MR PAUL WONG KOK SENG 11231
106 MS GIAM CHUI LENG 11253
107 MR R GANAVATHY NAIDU 11282
108 MR LOW SEONG LIM 11310
109 EN JOHAN ABD WAHED SHAIK 11452
110 DR MOLLY CHEAH BEE LI 11529
111 EN SHAIK RIZAL BIN SHAIK SULAIMAN 11544
112 MR DANIEL A THURAIAPPAH 11551
113 EN MOHD REZA MOHD ALI 11617
114 MDM LIEW SAIK KIEN 11665
115 MDM FONG CHEW KHEW 11685
116 CAPT LEE EAN KEONG 11778
117 MR FOO KOK YEE 11782
118 MR PERIA SUNDRAM S/O PONNAMPALAM 11786
119 MR CHUA SIOW LENG 11789
120 MR THAM WING CHONG 11886
121 MR TAN SOONG HOW 11947
122 MR THAM KOK PENG 11963
123 MR CHING LAI HUAT 12014
124 MR OOI AH BAH 12082
125 MR LIM BENG JIN 12120
126 MR ANG SENG OO 12396
127 MR FOONG KHEE SENG 12403
128 MR TAN BENG HONG 12432
129 MR ANDREW CHAN KOK PENG 12438
130 MR LAM KEE CHEONG 12504
131 MR CHEW LENG SOON 12616
132 MR JIMMY BOEY HONG YEW 12627
133 MR CHEW KOOI KHEE 12629
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134 MR PETER GEH CHENG THYE 12647
135 MR GARY CHUA SEOW KOON 12650
136 MR R JAYABHALAN 12662
137 MR CHEW TECK HONG 12666
138 MR BALAKRISHNAN PILLAI 12741
139 TUAN HAJI SAIFUL ANWAR BIN MORTAR 12971
140 YBHG DATO’ CHIA YOON MOI 12998
141 EN RAMLAN ABDUL LATIF 13020
142 MR LIM CHIENG CHIU, RONNIE 13170
143 MR WONG SANG KAN 13254
144 MR CHEOK KIM CHEE 13264
145 MR LENG JOON HUAT 13266
146 MR ROBERT NEWTON 13279
147 MR ALLAN GUY GOONTING 13283
148 MR TAN THIAM HOCK 13324
149 TN ABU BAKAR RAJUDIN ALHAJ 13388
150 MR CHIAM TOW LOON 13399
151 MR CHRISTOPHER LOW HON PENG 13421
152 MR S RANJAN PARMALINGAM 13494
153 MR ASOKKUMARAN A/L P.KESAVAN 13512
154 YBHG DATO’ YAP TECK CHOW 13518
155 YBHG DATO’ IR HO HAK KIEW 13549
156 MR THAW YENG JOOI 13574
157 DR JAGJIT SINGH S/O GURLAL SINGH 13622
158 YBHG DATO’ SYED MUSTAFFA B SYED ALI 13670
159 MR AHMED ZAKKI BIN ABDUL JABBAR 13879
160 MR PHILIP MATHEWS 14023
161 YBHG DATUK MERLYN KASIMIR 14029
162 YBHG IR DATO’ GEORGE GEORGE 14033
163 MR LEE KING LOON 14374
164 MR JAIKRISHIN TIRATHDAS 14673
165 MR UMA MANIAM MUTHUSAMY 14680
166 MDM LEE MEW KWAN 14681
167 LT COL @ TOMMY PEREIRA 14691
168 DR BALAN L DASS @ MANOKARAN 14724
169 MR MICHAEL NATHAN ARUL 14758
170 MR FONG SEOW KEE 14770
171 MS KIMMIE GOH KENG KIM 14841
172 MR YEOH CHEE HUN 14851
173 MR LEE HENG CHO, IVAN 15106
174 YBHG DATO’ GEE SIEW YEE 15173
175 MR MELVIN SELVAM THAMBIRAJAH 15179
176 MR SIVAN PONNAMPALAM 15186
177 MR CHIN KEAN NEAP 15194
178 MR WOON THEN YEW 15222

179 DR SURINDAR SINGH JESWANT SINGH 15233
180 MR SAILENDRA A/L V KANAGASUNDRAM 15347
181 MR ANTHONY KUAN CHEE KEE 15379
182 MR OW ENG HAW 15477
183 EN RAMJAN DIN SHADI 15569
184 DR LIM YEW KENG 15591
185 MR NATHAN KANDAPPER 15605
186 YBHG DATO’ BALJIT SINGH BALWANT SINGH 15609
187 MR K JEYARAJ M KUNASINGAM 15763
188 MR SIVANESAN A/L SIVALINGAM 15855
189 MR PETER LEONG YUE SEK 15869
190 MR PREM KUMAR 15873
191 MR PHANG CHEE TAT 15922
192 MR PARAMESVARAN GANESAN 15947
193 MR KIRUPANANDAN E MURUGESU 16020
194 MR DONALD HOWELL MILLER  16052
  @ HAMIDON ABDULLAH
195 MR LIEW KAI MUN 16079
196 MR TAN SEE MENG 16110
197 CIK MARIANNA BT ALY SHUN 16184
198 MR GOH CHEE KEONG 16296
199 MR MARIA STANISLAUS A/L  16339
  S VETHANAYAGAM
200 MR LAURENCE WILLIAM MCCARTHY 16463
201 CIK FARIZZAH FAROOK 16520
202 MR CHUA CHYE HUP 16652
203 MR GERALD MAHENDRAN LEE 16699
204 MR EDWIN PEREIRA THOMAS PEREIRA 16773
205 MS CH’NG AI LEE 16794
206 MR M GANESH KUMAR A/L V MARIMUTHU 16854
207 MR SELVARAJAH A/L PALANIANDY 16940
208 YBHG DATO’ MUSTAFA MOHD ALI E3888
209 MR L T KULASINGHAM E4904
210 YBHG DATO’ IR PANG LEONG HOON E4970
211 MR RISHA A RAJADURAI E5012
212 DR JAMES LIEW YAT HOE E5110
213 YBHG DATIN JEANNIE LIM E5797
214 MR HO SAI KONG @ HOO AH CHAI E6078
215 EN ABDUL RAHIM ISMAIL E6636
216 MR M S N GODFREY E6756
217 MR GOH JOON HAI E6958
218 YBHG DATO’ Y SIVALOGANATHAN E7019
219 EN MOHD KAMAR MOHAMED E7669
220 MR MANJEET SINGH DHILLON E7828
221 MR K NADARAJAH E8349
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Finance

Members of the Finance 
Sub-Committee

Chairman
Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon

Deputy Chairman
Mr Lim Beng Jin

Members
Mr Ow Eng Haw
Mr Fong Seow Kee

Management
Mr Lai Chik Chong (Account Manager)

Sitting from the left:
Mr Lim Beng Jin (Deputy Chairman), Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon (Chairman)

Standing from the left:
Mr Ow Eng Haw, Mr Lai Chik Chong, Mr Fong Seow Kee

At the last Annual General Meeting, the Audited Financial Statements of the Club for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2017 
together with the Report of the Auditors were not ready to be presented to the members. As such, the first task was to 
work with the Auditors to complete the Audited Accounts as soon as possible. This was accomplished by 28 February 
2018 and an Adjourned Annual General Meeting was held on 25 March 2018 to pass the Audited Financial Statements of 
the Club for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2017 together with the Report of the Auditors.

After 4 years of Qualified Opinion of the Auditors and 1 year of Disclaimed Opinion of the Auditors, we are happy to report 
that the Auditors Report for 30 June 2018 is without any qualification, and the results of the operations have shown a vast 
improvement:
 2018 2017
  RM RM

Operating Income 10,651,474  10,250,924
Other Income 1,062,685  671,669

  11,714,159  10,922,593
Operating Expenditure without Depreciation  (11,917,812) (14,475,840)

Deficit before Depreciation & Taxation (200,653)  (3,553,247)
Taxation (288,197)  (203,160) 

Deficit after Taxation (488,850)  (3,756,407)

The above deficit includes the provision made for the Gaming Tax of RM259,645 (2017 : RM372,644) which is under 
appeal to the Ministry of Finance and excludes Depreciation of RM1,672,875 (2017 : RM1,838,691) which is a non-cash 
expenditure.

When this General Committee took Office in Mid-December 2017, the Monthly Accounts were 6 months behind time. 
Therefore the next task was to bring the Monthly Accounts up-to date which we succeeded by May 2018. With the Accounts 
up-to-date, we now have a clearer picture of our financial standing and where we are heading.

Furthermore, last year’s Audit Committee’s Report stated that based on the last few years’ losses, the Club’s funds can only 
sustain the operations for another 2 to 3 years. As such, this year’s General Committee had no choice but to implement 
very strict monitoring and control, and prioritize the expenditures to reduce the losses and to refill our coffers for future 
operations. In respect of this, no withdrawals were made from the Fixed Deposit Accounts but an additional sum of 
RM1,300,000 was placed into Fixed Deposit.
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Machine Room

Members of the Machine Room 
Sub-Committee

Chairman
Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon

Deputy Chairman
Mr Lim Beng Jin

Members
Dato’ Michael Sng
Mr Ow Eng Haw
Mr Anthony Tan Han Gee
Mr Chia Ah Loy

Management
Mr Lai Chik Chong (Account Manager)

Sitting from the left:
Mr Lim Beng Jin (Deputy Chairman), Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon (Chairman), 
Dato’ Michael Sng

Standing from the left:
Mr Chia Ah Loy, Mr Lai Chik Chong, Mr Anthony Tan Han Gee

Not in picture:
Mr Ow Eng Haw

The Slot Machine Room’s operations have improved 
resulting in a profit of RM282,843 (2017 : RM113,657). 
However, after providing for the additional Gaming Tax of 
RM531,584 imposed by the Minister Of Finance (“MOF”) 
for the period from September 2016 to October 2017 and 
an additional provision in the accounts for gaming tax of 
RM100,704 for the period November 2017 to June 2018 
levied on the Club, for which we have appealed to both the 
Ministry of Finance, the results was reduced to only show a 
profit of RM23,198 (2017 : Deficit of RM258,987). 

This dispute arose from the interpretation of “gross 
collection” which in the past so many years was interpreted 
as the net amount earned by the Club after deducting the 

amounts withdrawn and the winnings (machine payouts) 
of the players. The new interpretation by the Ministry of 
Finance was that “gross collection” was the amount 
deposited into the machines without deducting the 
withdrawals and winnings. After our appeal, the Ministry of 
Finance has agreed that we calculate the Gaming Tax after 
the withdrawals but not the winnings with effect from July 
2018. 
Very much now hinges on the success of our appeal to the 
Ministry of Finance on the interpretation of “gross collection” 
for which the final outcome is still pending. Otherwise, the 
Club will have great difficulty in earning profits from the Slot 
Machines.

 2018 2017
  RM RM

Collections less withdrawals 1,735,076 2,696,880
Less: Pay-out (857,820) (1,733,459)

Gross collections 877,256 963,421
Less: Gaming taxes (233,314) (522,888)
Less: GST expenses (35,026) (25,194)

 608,916 515,339

Less: Direct expenditure: (19,533) (26,089)
  Repairs and maintenance (175,473) (163,269)
  Staff costs (131,067) (112,324)

 (326,073) (301,682)

Profit before gaming taxes under appeal 282,843 113,657
Less: Gaming taxes under appeal (Note 22.1) (259,645) (372,644)

Net profit/(loss) from machine room operation 23,198 (258,987
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2018

The notes on pages 86 to 100 form part of these financial statements
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Statement of Income and Expenditure
for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2018

The notes on pages 86 to 100 form part of these financial statements
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Cash Flow Statement
for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2018

The notes on pages 86 to 100 form part of these financial statements
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Cash Flow Statement (continued)

The notes on pages 86 to 100 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
as at 30 June 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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Statement by the General Committee
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Report of the Auditors to the Members of
to the Member of Kelab Taman Perdana DiRaja Kuala Lumpur
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Report of the Auditors (continued)
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Report of the Auditors (continued)
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Special Functions

Members of the Special Functions 
Sub-Committee

Chairman
Mr Lim  Beng Jin

Deputy Chairman
Ms Amuthambigai Tharmarajah 

Members
Dr Junid Abu Saham                                             
Mr Hari Prasad 
Mr David Lam Mun Wah
Mr Chua Kwang Khim 
Mr Michael Nathan Arul                   

Management
Mrs S Sivaneswary (Executive Secretary)

Standing from left:
Mr David Lam Mun Wah, Mr Hari Prasad, Mr Lim  Beng Jin (Chairman),
Ms Amuthambigai Tharmarajah (Deputy Chairman), Dr Junid Abu Saham,
Ms S Sivaneswary

Not in picture:
Mr Chua Kwang Khim, Mr Michael Nathan Arul 

The year began with the Sub-Committee being given a 
modified terms of reference – to include the review of Audit 
Committee and Special House Committee; to identify and 
assist Management to implement recommendations; and, 
to review and address monetary loss or leakage in areas 
with no specific sub-committee oversight.

With particular focus on monetary loss / leakage, the sub-
committee investigated a number of events and cases as 
assigned by the General Committee. Management and 
staff assisted the Sub-Committee in locating and retrieving 
relevant documents and material related to the events 
and cases being investigated. Based on the findings and 
evidence collated, recommendations were made to the 
General Committee to address the issues. 

Briefly, the cases included:

1.  Invoices and payments for alleged work performed 
without any contract or proof of work completion. 

 It was established that there were actually no official 
engagement agreement between the company and RLC 
in effect; at the time the invoices were presented to RLC 
for payment and even up to the time when payment was 
processed. There was also no proof or verification by 
any RLC staff of the work allegedly performed for RLC 
Finance Department. 

 In addition, it was found that the company was 
registered with the Registrar of Companies only after 
it had presented its first invoice to RLC for payment. 

Owing to these findings, it was deemed that the invoices 
were fraudulent. 

 It was recommended that the GC should make a police 
report on the alleged fraud.

2. Non-compliance to catering contract terms and 
conditions resulting in inadequate recovery of costs 
from the caterer.

 It was found that the caterer’s obligations particularly 
in bearing the cost of utilities and providing supervisory 
staff were not duly and consistently enforced through 
the years although there had been no changes to the 
relevant clauses in the catering agreements.

 This inconsistency may have given rise to different 
expectations on and by the caterer.

 We recommended to the GC to have the management, 
relevant Sub-Committee(s) and the caterer meet and 
affirm procedures (including tasks to be performed and 
records to be maintained/kept and by whom) to achieve 
full compliance and adherence to all the Clauses in the 
existing Catering Agreement.

3.  Police reports made in 2015 regarding alleged missing 
monies.

 The reports of alleged missing monies were premised 
on the differences/discrepancies between the Cash 
Collected (as recorded in the Cash Collection record 
book) and the Cash Deposit transactions made to RLC 
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Bank account for each month. However, there are no 
proper documented records of the cash amount being 
handed by whom, to whom and when, after it was 
collected. Existence of a discrepancy between the Cash 
Collection record book and the bank account does not 
conclusively confirm that there is misappropriation.

 It was found that there was no clear and proper record 
of what was done to the cash collected each day, which 
should include all hand-offs between all persons involved 
in handling the cash, from collection until deposit into 
the bank account. Without such a document trail and 
record, there cannot be conclusive determination of any 
cash misappropriation.

 Also, a request by the police investigating the matter in 
2017 for the Audit findings and documentary evidence 
of all cash movements / hand-offs was not responded 
to by the Club to date.

 The GC was recommended to write to the police to 
inform of the lack of documentary evidence of the cash 
handling during that period.

4.  Legal fees billed in 2017 for work performed since 
2011 through 2016.

 The review involved two legal matters.

a.  A change of custodian trustee for the land parcels 
owned by RLC

 It was found that the an incorrect credit amount (of 
RM2,000) was given by the lawyer for a RM3,000 
payment made on the onset. Also, the lawyer had 
valued the RLC land parcels at RM10,000,000 
(without any evidence of how this amount was arrived 
at) and used the amount to compute his legal fees 
on the premise that the change of custodian trustee 
agreement was a conveyance transaction thereby 
imposing a legal fee of RM48,000 (actual invoice 
was RM58,770.80 including reimbursements) 
based on a property sale and ownership transfer.

 SFSC opined that the work should be more equitably 
billed on a time-and-material basis as the change 
of custodian trustee was not a property sale and 
ownership transfer. Using a RM200 per hour 
and RM50 per hour rate for a lawyer and clerical 
resource respectively, and the work tasks provided 
by the lawyer, the estimated cost (including 
reimbursements stipulated by the lawyer) would 
total about RM7,000 only.

b.  Legal suits against an event promoter 

 In 2011, an event promoter absconded with 
MYR30,000 which the RLC Events Manager released 

to the promoter prior to the event. A legal suit was 
initiated in August 2012 and a Judgement in Default 
of Defence was obtained in August 2013. 

 Bankruptcy proceedings were initiated two years 
later, in August 2015 and an Adjudication Order and 
Receiving Order obtained in March 2016.

 In August 2017, the lawyer presented invoices 
for all the work performed since 2012 until March 
2016. No reason was provided as to why the billing 
for work done in 2012 to 2013 was only invoiced in 
2017.

 It was found that 
i)  Professional Fees were stated as lump sums in 

the invoices usually meant for lawyer’s fees for 
work performed by the lawyer.

ii)  Additional court attendance fees of RM12,500 
comprising RM1,500 for 3 occasions and 
RM1,000 for 8 occasions) were also levied 
under Disbursements. 

iii)  In normal commercial practice, Disbursements 
would only include out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred on behalf of the client and being claimed 
on a reimbursement basis and, would not include 
professional fees or court attendance fees. 
Normally court attendance is considered and 
included under a lawyer’s Professional Fees.

iv) The Professional Fees were stated as lump 
sums only thereby lacking transparency and 
substantiation of an equitable basis.

 Using a RM200 per hour and RM50 per hour rate for 
a lawyer and clerical resource respectively, and the 
work tasks provided by the lawyer, the estimated 
cost (including reimbursements stipulated by the 
lawyer) would total about RM14,125 only (compared 
to the invoiced total of RM37,649).

 Owing to the significant difference between the 
estimated costs and the actual invoiced, SFSC 
recommended that RLC opt for taxation by the court 
(or other independent party) to determine, in an 
independent manner, the equitable fees applicable 
for the work performed and billed by the lawyer for 
both legal cases.

5.  Irregular purchasing of management services.

 In 2017, the HR Manager requested to purchase an 
Outpatient Management Service (OMS) which was 
approved by the HRSC Chairman but without the 
knowledge or approval of the General Committee. The 
service enables RLC staff to seek outpatient care at 
clinics without having to make payment. The service 

Special Functions (continued)
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provider then invoices RLC for the reimbursement of all 
the outpatient care cost incurred by RLC staff.

 The services were started even though the engagement 
contract was not vetted and endorsed by both RLC 
and the service provider. After receiving the draft 
agreement in August 2017, the HR Manager did not act 
on the agreement untill the date of her departure from 
RLC employment in March 2018 and, despite email 
reminders from the service provider.

 As the OMS costs MYR8,596 per annum, this amount 
essentially increased the RLC outpatient costs for the 
year without any savings to RLC by at least 14 percent. 
In addition, it was found that the incurred outpatient 

costs increased significantly during the period the OMS 
was in operation, peaking above MYR11,000 compared 
to MYR3000 prior to the OMS operation.

 It was recommended that:

 RLC settles all outpatient care billings with the OMS 
as we have actually incurred the various outpatient 
treatment costs (albeit without a formal contract); and 

 Require the various staff and HRSC Chairman to explain 
in writing their actions in incurring this additional OMS 
cost and for displaying a lack of fiduciary care.

Special Functions (continued)
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Membership

Members of the Membership 
Sub-Committee

Chairman
Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel 

Deputy Chairman 
Dato’ Nik Gee Siew Yee

Members
Mr Michael S N Godfrey 
Mr William F C Loong
YBhg Dato’ Mohamed Amir Abas bin Zainal Azim
Mr Yap Yok Foo
Mr David Wee Kim Peng 

Management 
Pn Nurzuraida S Abdullah (Membership Manager)

Sitting from left:
YBhg Dato’ Mohamed Amir Abas bin Zainal Azim, Mr Michael Godfrey, 
Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel (Chairman), Mr William F C Loong

Standing from left: 
Mr David Wee Kim Peng, Pn Nurzuraida S Abdullah, Mr Yap Yok Foo

Not in picture:
Dato’ Nik Gee Siew Yee

Lady Membership by Children of Members 25 34 13
Voting Membership by Children of Members 33 27 42
Voting Membership by Senior Government Officers 2 – 1
Voting Membership by Spouse of Member 2 – 1
Voting Membership by Former Member – – 1
Temporary Membership 84 90 104
Provisional to Voting Membership 91 87 84
Corporate Membership 2 – 1

TOTAL 239 238 247

Number of 
Candidates 

Admitted during 
FY2016

Number of 
Candidates 

Admitted during 
FY2017

Number of 
Candidates 

Admitted during 
FY2018Category

The Membership Sub-Committee (MSC) operates within the 
ambit of its Terms of Reference which included, but not 
limited to, the following:

1.  Ensure compliance with the membership provisions 
of the Constitutional Rules and Policies of the Royal 
Lake Club on the admission of new members, their 
resignation or termination, or reinstatement.

2. Propose to the General Committee changes or 
amendments to the Membership Rules.

3.  Plan and propose to the General Committee the number 
of regular intake of new members.

4. Undertake the process of vetting prospective members, 

their interview, induction and formal introduction as full-
fledged members.

5. Propose the establishment or termination of reciprocal 
relationships with other recreational clubs in Malaysia 
and overseas.

During the financial year 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018, the 
Club re-opened application for Temporary Membership in 
the months of August and December 2017 and June 2018.

Four main Membership Interviews were held.  The Club 
also accommodated and held several Special Membership 
Interviews for children of members who returned home 
during their semester breaks.  Details of all candidates 
interviewed are as follows:
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Membership (continued)

Lady Membership by Children of Members 15 30 15

Voting Membership by Children of Members 24 39 34

Voting Membership by Senior Government Officers 5 2 1

Provisional converting to Voting Membership 98 94 75

Corporate Membership 2 – 1

TOTAL 144 165 126

Number of 
Candidates 

Introduced during 
FY2016

Number of 
Candidates 

Introduced during 
FY2017

Number of 
Candidates 

Introduced during 
FY2018Category

Voting Resident 3,110 3,098 2,985

Voting Resident (reduced subscriptions) 2,334 2,223 2,134

Voting Resident (subscriptions-free) 1,911 2,165 2,341

Voting Absent 967 975 937

Voting Outstation 44 39 30

Provisional 85 72 79

Lady Resident 305 320 308

Lady Resident (reduced subscriptions) 64 66 66

Lady Absent 225 236 206

Lady Outstation 6 5 4

Lady Provisional 14 12 10

Temporary 182 164 180

Corporate 3 2 2

Honorary 24 24 25

Life 33 37 36

Invited 28 24 25

TOTAL 9,335 9,462 9,368

Number of 
Members during 

FY2016

Number of 
Members during 

FY2017

Number of 
Members during 

FY2018Category

The Club continues to extend Invited Membership status 
to the High Commissioners and Ambassadors who are 
currently domiciled in Malaysia in keeping with our tradition 
in maintaining cordial relationships with these foreign 
missions. During the course of the year under review, the 
Club welcomed the following incoming Ambassadors and 
High Commissioners from Brunei Darussalam, Bangladesh, 
India and the Republic of Egypt as well as the UN Resident 
Coordinator.

To ensure our new Temporary Members are fully informed of the facilities in the Club as well as their obligations in respect 
of the provisions of the Club’s Constitutional Rules and Policies, the Club organized four Temporary Membership Inductions 
during the year and a total of 126 were elected as Resident Members, the breakdown being as follows:

A comparison of our membership tally at the close of financial years 2016 up to 2018 is as follows:

During this period, the Club had reviewed and established 
new reciprocal ties with the MIG Cricket Club located in 
Mumbai, India.

Ageing Membership

The demography of membership of the two most senior age 
groups, as at August 2018, revealed that 25% of members 



Annual Report 2018

Kelab Taman Perdana DiRaja Kuala Lumpur  |  111

Membership (continued)

are aged over 70 and therefore exempted from paying 
any subscription. Another 24% are over the age of 60 and 
therefore paying a nominal RM40 per month subscription 
and the numbers moving into these two age groups are 
growing by the day. The participation in club activities and 
usage of amenities by these two age groups are no less 
involved than younger members of the Club.

The rules governing the preferential treatment of these two 
age groups were made more than 100 years ago when 

life expectancy was lower. Since then, with better medical 
advances and a higher standard of living, life expectancy 
has risen, resulting in half the membership of the Club not 
contributing their equitable share of the expenses.

This parlous state of affairs has been reported to the GC 
and the Constitutional Review Committee for their further 
action such as amending the Constitutional Rules to ensure 
the future financial viability of the Club.



Annual Report 2018

112  |  Kelab Taman Perdana DiRaja Kuala Lumpur

Investigation Committee

Members of the Investigation 
Committee

Acting Chairperson
Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong 

Deputy Chairman 
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev

Members
YBhg Tan Sri Lt Jen (B) Mohd Yunus Tasi 
Mr Gurubachan S Johal 
Mr Paul Chong
Ir Aldrin Wong 
YBhg Ir Dato’ George George 
Mr Ranmit Singh
Mr Vijay Raj Balasupramaniam 

Management
Pn Nurzuraida S Abdullah (Membership Manager)

Sitting from left:
YBhg Ir Dato’ George George, Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong (ActingChairman), 
Mr Paul Chong 

Standing from left: 
Mr Ranmit Singh, Pn Nurzuraida S Abdullah, Mr Gurubachan S Johal

Not in picture:
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev, YBhg Tan Sri Lt Jen (B) Mohd Yunus Tasi, 
Ir Aldrin Wong, Mr Vijay Raj Balasupramaniam

The Investigation Committee considers all written complaints 
referred to it and following an investigation, decides on the 
appropriate action required under Rule 18.3 of the Club’s 
Constitutional Rules.

Rule 18.3 of the Club’s Constitutional Rules reads as follows:

Rule 18.3.1 Where a written complaint is made pursuant 
to Rule 18.2, the Investigation Committee 
may, if it considers that:

a) no cause exist which justifies any discipli-
nary action and advise the complainant 
accordingly, or

b) the complaint is of a minor nature, 
summarily deals with the complaint and in 
so doing may either counsel the member 

concerned as to his future conduct, or 
censure or impose a fine in a sum not 
exceeding RM100 upon such member.

Rule 18.3.2 If it considers that there are sufficient grounds 
to merit investigation into the complaint the 
Chairman of the Investigation Committee shall 
forthwith constitute a Disciplinary Committee 
(“DC”) comprising of not less than three (3) 
and not more than five (5) members from the 
Disciplinary Panel.

Since December 2016, the Investigation Committee 
continued its reconciliatory approach to resolve disputes 
wherever possible. We hope that this spirit of esprit de 
corps in our club membership continues.

At the close of 30 June 2018, there were four (4) cases pending deliberation by the IC.

Bringing body guards/maids – – –
Non-registration of guests 1 – –
Unbecoming conduct/behavior by Members 22 12 14
General – teenagers bringing guests, failing to carry 
membership cards, bringing guests on non-guest 
day / hour, etc. 1 – 1
TOTAL 24 12 15

July 2015
to

June 2016

July 2016 
to

June 2017

July 2017
to

June 2018Breaches

A summary of the complaints heard over the last three years by the Investigation Committee is as follows:
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Disciplinary Panel

Members of the Disciplinary Committee

Acting Chairperson
Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong

Deputy Chairman
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev

Members
YBhg Dato’ Abd Shukor Ahmad (Head of Disciplinary Panel)
Mr Allan Anthony Kronenburg 
Ir G Balachandran
En Mohamed Yusoff Mahmood
Mr Periasamy Sinnappan
Mr Anand Ponnudurai
Mr Ravindran Navaratnam
Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li
Mr K Karunamoorthy
Mr Wong Loke Kwang
En Arif Adnan Zain
YBhg Datuk Merlyn Kasimir
Mr Remi Christy Pereira
Mr Ruthen Theodore Bowman
YBhg Datuk Baljit Singh Sidhu
Mr K Jeyaraj M Kunasingam

Management
Pn Nurzuraida S Abdullah (Membership Manager)

The Disciplinary Panel comprised of sixteen Members of various 
backgrounds and professions and from this Panel of Members, 
a Disciplinary Committee is formed whenever the Investigation 
Committee refers disciplinary cases to be heard by it.

Pursuant to Rule 18.3 of the Club’s Constitutional Rules, the Chairman 
of the Investigation Committee, and on the advice of the Head of the 
Disciplinary Panel, is required to establish a Disciplinary Committee 
comprising of not less than three and not more than five  Members 
from the Disciplinary Panel to look into complaints which warrant a 
hearing.

In hearing the complaints, the Disciplinary Committee shall:

i)  Consider all evidence submitted;
ii)  Determine whether the allegation relating to the offence was 

substantiated and/or corroborated; and
iii)  Determine the outcome and penalty to be imposed.

During the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018, a total of three 
disciplinary cases were heard.  The summary and the outcome for 
the cases were as follows:

No Type of Outcome of Disciplinary Hearing

 
Breaches

 No of  Punishment Imposed
  Cases

1 Conduct  1 Censured
 Unbecoming  2 Amicable resolution and
 of A Member   complaints withdrawn.

At the close of 30 June 2018, there were three (3) cases pending.
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Information Technology

Members of the Information Technology 
Sub-Committee

Chairman
Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah

Deputy Chairman
Mr Lim Beng Jin

Member
Dr Mark Chia Poh Chuan

Management
Mr Puspanathan Kathiravelu  (Senior Executive)
En Noorhisham Suib  (IT Support)
En Sabri Mohd Hashim  (IT Support)

Sitting From the left:
Dr Mark Chia Poh Chuan, Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah (Chairman), 
Mr Lim Beng Jin (Deputy Chairman)

Standing from the left:
En Noorhisham Suib, Mr Puspanathan Kathiravelu

Not in picture:
En Sabri Mohd Hashim

IT Section for Royal Lake Club Annual 
Report 2018

This year we have been fortunate that 2 ITSC Chairman 
from previous years sit on the committee as Chairman and 
Deputy Chairman. This has pushed the IT Department to 
become more proactive rather than reactive, that has been 
the case in the past.

The Dept’s HOD started the year by restructuring the dept to 
better meet its goals to improve support, the “experience”, 
of members and staff by focusing on communication, SOP 
and SLA for the RLC.

In the 2nd and 3rd quarter of the year, the ITSC began 
developing a 2+3 year roadmap that will focus on 4 core 
areas – Hardware, Networking, Resource and Software. The 
core of the roadmap will be to introduce more automation 
for operations, allowing members to manage their 
accounts, book events, venues and facilities in the club and 
to ensure that servers are redundant, better managed and 
the network is upgraded to support future needs.

IT department is looking forward to working with members 
and management staff to meet and exceed expectations. 

Following are the achievement that has been accomplished 
throughout the year.

1)  POS upgrades – Replacement units were purchased 
and replaced units at the Pavilion and Batek Bar. The 
new units replaced machines that date back to 2005 

and this showed better. This allowed the staff at the 
outlets to process orders faster.

2)  POS Tablet device – The objective is to have a hot-swop 
unit that can be deployed anywhere in the club in the 
event of a POS failure. The unit can also be used as an 
additional mobile unit for events.

3)  Weekly email – SendinBlue is the tool selected for the 
task for the email blast tool. As this service requires 
multiple stakeholders, a structured approached was 
introduced and is practiced now. The IT Dept does not 
create the content that is sent out, it only manages the 
provided content and layout for sending out.

4)  Website upgrade – This requirement is currently WIP 
as the requirements are being compiled. Currently the 
focus of the upgrade will cover:

a.  members portal to manage their accounts, billing 
and payments

b.  online booking of club facilities
c. online reservation, selection of options and auto 

billing for all events in the club
d.  complete revamp of RLC website + mobile friendly

5) Central data storage – To ensure that all operational 
teams data and files are stored on a central data 
storage to prevent data loss. A NAS Storage has been 
purchased to archive departments files, user email 
accounts and back up data from all PCs. Furthermore, 
the NAS will have each departments’ shared folders to 
ensure business continuity with staff movement. 
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Information Technology (continued)

6) Road Map was initiated by the subcommittee and IT 
department is closely working along to achieve its 
objective. In progress is the scoping of:

a.  Hardware – compiling the requirements for the next 
2 years and coming up with a timeline to procure the 
hardware. 

b.  Software – introducing automation to the operations 
team will reduce staffing, errors and more control. 
Key focus areas that are in progress are integrating 
Finance dept to the POS, CMS and accounting 
system and HR dept needs a complete revamp 
to reduce the current dependency on manual 
operations.

c.  Network – currently the club’s network will sustain 

for a few more years therefore this section will be 
addressed in the 2nd part of the 5 year plan.

d.  Resource – The current IT Dept is geared to be 
reactive support. It will need transformation that 
will include training, governance and structure. This 
needs to be inline with the timeline for each of the 
above.

7)  Taxation – Our IT Dept did well in executing the removal 
of GST & implementing SST. The finance department 
was the project director whilst the IT Dept was the 
implementor. These activities were well planned and 
executed as per schedule. The IT Dept was key in 
managing all stakeholder depts and the vendor.
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Human Resources

Members of the Human Resources 
Sub-Committee

Chairperson 
Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong 

Deputy Chairman
Lt Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel 

Members
Mrs Dhamayanthi Muthucumaru
En Abdul Rahim Abd Rahman 
En Abdul Rashid Abdul Majid 
Dr Balan L Dass 
Mr Alvin Lim Kim Leng
 
Management
Pn Norfazilah Binti Mohd Zaini  (HR Senior Executive)

Sitting from the left:
Dr Balan L Dass, Mrs Dhamayanthi Muthucumaru, 
Lt Col (R) Johan Van Geyzel (Deputy Chairman), En Abdul Rashid Abdul Majid

Standing from the left:
Mr Alvin Lim Kim Leng, Pn Norfazilah Mohd Zaini

Not in the pictures:
Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong (Chairperson), En Abdul Rahim Abdul Rahman 

Manpower

As at 30 June 2018, the Club had a total of 130 Employees, 
of whom 21 were Management Staff. The total Staff cost 
for the period ending June 2018 was RM5,043,176. The 
total budget was RM5,333,381. 

Industrial Relations

There was one (1) Industrial Relation case reported in the 
year.

Domestic Inquiries

There was one (1) Domestic Inquiry (DI) held during the 
year, and the services of the said staff was terminated.

Collective Agreement 2018-2020

The Collective Agreement 2018-2020 between the 
Club and the Employees’ Union was successfully agreed 
and approved by the GC 31 October 2018. The signing 
ceremony for the new CA 2018-2020 will be held sometime 
in early November 2018. In view of the current financial 
state of the Club, the Union was receptive to reasonable 
terms offered by the club. 

Staff Fund

The total staff fund collected for this financial year was 
RM414,350. From this fund, RM284,213 was distributed 
to all eligible staff and was based on individual staff 
performance. The payout to each staff ranged between 
RM800 to RM2,500. A total of RM80,000 from this fund 
was allocated for the Annual Staff Dinner (held on April 30, 
2018) and the balance of this fund was put into a Staff 
Welfare account for miscellaneous expenses.

Annual Staff Dinner

The Annual Staff Dinner was successfully held in Kinrara 
Resort, Puchong on 30 April 2018. It was attended by 237 
people comprising staffs and their family members. The 
function was also attended by the President, Mr Patrick 
Chiam Tow Loon and the GC members, Ms Lee Mew 
Kwan and Mr Loke Wai Mun. At that event, appreciation 
certificates of award were given out for: 

• 15 Years’ Service 
1.  Parameswary a/p Ragavalu Chetty
2.  Takiudin Bin Nazri
3.  Mohd Amin Bin Abdullah

• Sportsman of the year
 Prathaban A/L Palanisamy

• Sportswoman of the year
Nur ili Nadirah Binti Md. Shoid
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Publications

Members of the Publications 
Sub-Committee

Chairman 
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram 

Deputy Chairman 
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev

Members
Ms Jacqueline Sue-Ann Toyad (Editor)
Mr Ramanan Vijayaraghavan 
En Khairil Ahmad 

Management
Pn Rozita Bt Teh  (Events & Communication 
 Manager)
Pn Rosmaya Izdayu (Events & Communication 
 Executive) Sitting from left:

Pn Rosmaya Izdayu, Pn Rozita Bt Teh 

Standing From the left:
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram (Chairman), Mr Ramanan Vijayaraghavan

Not in Picture: 
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev (Deputy Chairman), Ms Jacqueline Sue-Ann Toyad (Editor), 
En Khairil Ahmad

The Publications Sub-Committee is tasked with managing 
and delivering six newsletters and the annual report 
which is published at the end of the year to coincide with 
the club’s Annual General Meeting. The committee had 
introduced several new measures which has enhanced the 
sophistication and readability of the magazine.

First, as a move towards promoting digital readership and 
reducing operating costs, we have decreased the order 
size of the printed version of the newsletter from 8,000 
to 1,000 copies. Members can now collect the limited 
print edition at the club reception on “first-come-first-serve” 
basis.

Second, we ceased outsourcing the design works for the 
magazine to recognise the talents of our staff who have 
worked towards giving the magazine a refreshed look and 
feel. The intention was to give the publication a feel of a 
western lifestyle magazine. In addition, this initiative has 
also saved the club approximately RM75,500.

Third, we introduced several new sections in the magazine 
to reflect the diverse interest range of the members. 
The new columns include – “Social Fairground”, “Arena”, 
“Wellness”, “Behind the bottles”, “Travel” and “One for the 
road” which has been well received by many
members.

Fourth, we also tapped into key companies such as Air Asia 
for branded travel related content.

The committee has also taken small steps to pay tribute 
to the rich history of the club by featuring articles on 
The Orchid bands of yesteryears and placing the “Young 
People’s Disco” article which ran from 1985 to 2003 on the 
front cover of the magazine in September.

The Committee sincerely hopes that its initiatives to 
rejuvenate the magazine by giving members more 
interesting content was well received in 2018.
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Members of the Food & Beverage 
Task Force 2018 Sub-Committee

Chairman
Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon

Deputy Chairman
Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah

Members
Mr Loke Wai Mun
Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan

Sitting from left:
Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah (Deputy Chairmn), Mr Loke Wai Mun, 
Mr Patrick Chiam Tow Loon (Chairman), Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan

Members of the Wine Panel 
Sub-Committee

Chairman
YBhg Dato’ Derrick Chan Teck Chee

Members
YBhg Datin Jeannie Lim
Mr Stanley Ho Chin Cheo W
Mr Ivan Lee Heng Cho
Mr Sharman Matin Gasper

By Invitation
Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah (Deputy Chairman FBTF)

Sitting from left:
Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah (Deputy Chairman FBTF), 
YBhg Dato’ Derrick Chan Teck Chee (Chairman), YBhg Datin Jeannie Lim

Standing from left:
Mr Stanley Ho Chin Cheo W, Mr Ivan Lee Heng Cho

Not in picture:
Mr Sharman Matin Gasper

Food & Beverage
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Food & Beverage (continued)

Food & Beverage

The Food and Beverage Operations continue to be the 
biggest challenge as it is no longer easy to find and maintain 
good Operators for the Poolside Stalls and Caterers who 
are willing to abide by our Rules and our requirements on 
pricing which would be acceptable to the members, now 
that there are an abundance of opportunities for them 
to find a place to operate in the Klang Valley. When this 
General Committee took Office in Mid-December last year, 
a few Poolside stalls were without Operators. The F&B 
department that was inherited from 2017 was lacking in 
many ways. From the F&B manager position being vacant, 
poolside operators leaving, beverage prices unchecked and 
contracts with the operators that needed to be resolved.

Nevertheless, we have managed to fill all the stalls including 
the Japanese Food Corner and shown an improved net 
earnings from the Food & Beverages operations of 
RM3,800,521 (2017 : RM3,493,128).

The Food and Beverage Department had a slight increase 
in gross revenue over the following year as shown by the 
table below:

OUTLETS Gross Revenue in RM  Gross Revenue in RM
 July 2016 to June 2017 July 2017 to June 2018
 
BANQUET 1,170,228.97  1,392,674.41 

BATEK BAR  1,703,671.53  1,879,952.36 

BUTTERY  1,565,300.23  1,621,052.74 

THE ORCHID  1,145,115.68  1,197,791.92 

POOLSIDE  1,364,174.00  1,305,505.40 

BUNGA RAYA  2,839,064.72  3,222,479.83 

GARDEN CAFÉ 640,366.16  632,863.82 

PAVILION  1,247,235.64  1,210,189.44 

BILLIARD 70,126.07  65,720.93 

TOTAL 11,745,283.00  12,528,230.85 

THE BATEK BAR
The Batek Bar remains a favourite watering hole and an 
entertainment centre for the members and their guests. 
The Bar recorded the third highest increase of gross sale in 
revenue by comparison. 

PAVILION SPORTS BAR
The popularity of the Pavilion is obvious particularly on 
Friday, Saturday and Sunday for private events. We had a 
number of events from as little as thirty (30) persons to two 
hundred (200) persons maximum. 

Unfortunately, the operator has moved on as their contract 

has been in abeyance since last year when it almost did not 
get renewed and due to the lack of operational people in 
the club, there was no bandwidth to review their contract as 
new contracts had been prepared last year.

THE ORCHID ROOM
The Orchid Room shows an increment in revenue and has 
always been a popular venue for our Wine and Cheese 
Party ,Wine-Makers dinner and private dining. Even with the 
closure for lunch, sales had increased. The Orchid Room is 
also closed on Sundays but will only be opened if there is 
a private event. On an average, there is at least two events 
a month.

THE BUNGA RAYA
Overall, the Bunga Raya restaurant always receives good 
customer feedback on it’s food and beverage. This is 
actually reflected in its revenue which had an increase over 
the previous year. 

Sad to say that the key operator had passed on. However his 
wife has taken the helm and there has been no operational 
impact.

BUTTERY
The Buttery, our popular priced restaurant, has seen an 
increase in revenue, compared to last year. A favourite 
among members, the Buttery is a busiest outlet for every 
lunch and dinner operation hours. On some days, there may 
be a visible queue for some members who have to stay in 
line waiting for an empty table. The challenges at Buttery is 
to ensure that every customer gets a clean table and being 
served promptly.

GARDEN CAFE
The Garden Cafe offers a wide variety of cakes, pastry, 
kuih, nasi lemak, mee hoon as well as coffee, tea and fruit 
juices. The Garden Cafe should be consistent in providing 
quality products every time. The location of the Garden 
Cafe appeal to many of our members and their guests, 
particularly at breakfast and afternoon tea hours.

Unfortunately as the only food outlet that is operated by the 
club, Year on Year we see products being introduced and/
or removed which impacts sales consistency.

BANQUETING
The Banquet hall is a popular venue for Weddings and Annual 
Dinners usually on weekends. The revenue generation has 
had the second largest increase of RM222,445.44. The 
year has seen a comfortable average of 80% bookings over 
the year.
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Food & Beverage (continued)

POOLSIDE TERRACE
The Poolside Terrace is another popular venue for Hawker 
Style Food. Currently, there are eight (8) food stalls for our 
members and guests to choose for their dining pleasure. 
Usually the Poolside Terrace is busy at lunch hours and 
the most sort after is the Indian food stall (stall number 
1). Although this year, we were able to get operators for 
all stalls, including the Japanese Food Corner, with the 
change in operator for Stall 1, patronage to the Poolside 
has dropped which resulted in a drop of RM58,668.60 
compared to the previous years.
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Events & Entertainment

Members of the 
Events & Entertainment Sub-Committee 

Chairman
Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah 

Deputy Chairman 
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram

Members 
Ms Jennifer Kuan
Pn Emiza Merican
Mr K Sivashankar

Management
Pn Rozita Bt Teh  (Events & Communication 
 Manager)
Rosmaya Izdayu (Events & Communication 
 Executive)

Sitting from left:
Mr K Sivashankar, Mr Daniel A Thuraiappah (Chairman), Ms Jennifer Kuan

Standing from left:
Pn Rozita Bt Teh, Pn Rosmaya Izdayu

Not in picture:
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram (Deputy Chairman), Pn Emiza Merican

Events and Activities 2018

It has been a real challenge trying to live up to our 
adopted motto “We make things happen”. However, with 
perseverance and the co-operation of all, we managed a 
respectable programme during the year under review.

Valentine’s Dinner and Dance 
The traditional Valentine’s Dinner at The Orchid on 14 
February 2018 was well-patronised with 132 members, 
their spouses and/or partners as well as friends and 
families enjoying an evening with a three-course candle-lit 
dinner and groovy music amidst a romantic ambience. 

Mother’s Day Luncheon 
The luncheon event held on Sunday, 13 May 2018 at The 
Orchid gave members a chance to show their appreciation 
to their mothers. Each mother received a mug as a gift. 
A delightful lunch was served to the accompaniment of a 
fantastic band, “Ben and Ice”. 

Johnny and Jane Wild Wild West 
The event held on Saturday, 30 June 2018 at The Orchid 
was overwhelmingly successful with a sold-out crowd in 
attendance, all dressed and decked out in true Western 
attire. City Rhythm comprising Ahmad, Mercy and Yati 
played their brand of rock n roll music while people dined on 
a sumptuous buffet spread. Then Louisa, a former Dancing 
Queen stepped on to the dance floor and conducted a line-
dancing clinic much to our delightful surprise.

Special Event – Ramadhan Buffet 
The Events & Entertainment SC stepped in to organise the 
Ramadhan buffet with food from our main kitchen (Edric 
Caterer) for the breaking of fast with a sumptuous buffet 
spread during the Ramadhan month at the Banquet Hall for 
23 days. 

Festive Events
With the multi-racial and multi-cultural make-up of our 
membership, we ensure that all important cultural events 
are celebrated with open houses. The open houses are also 
a way for our in-house food caterers to show appreciation 
to members for patronising them the whole year round.

Chinese New Year Open House 
This annual CNY event was held on Sunday, 25 February 
2018 with a huge attendance, all eagerly looking forward to 
the lion dances, the angpows and the mandarin oranges. As 
usual, the lion dance troupe visited all the outlets to bring 
prosperity and good luck.

Hari Raya Open House 
The Raya Open House was held on Sunday, 24 June 2018 
at the Pavilion. Members and their families were treated 
to some exquisite traditional dances before partaking of a 
sumptuous buffet lunch spread.

Deepavali Open House 
The Deepavali Open House was held on Saturday, 10 
November 2018. Prior to this, members have been treated 
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Events & Entertainment (continued)

to the sight of a kolam or rangoli, a traditional Hindu form 
of decoration on floors, forming patterns of coloured sand 
and rice. 

FIFA World Cup Final 
The World Cup final between France and Croatia was 
telecast live on a huge screen at the Lawn on Saturday, 
15 July 2018. Before the match, Mr Sivashankar from 
the EESC conducted a trivia game for football fans with 
prizes sponsored by Carlsberg. The French team, in a 
pulsating match with upsets and own goal triumphed over 
the gallant Croatian team, winning 4-2 in a very entertaining 
match. The large crowd which attended this event created 
an unforgettable atmosphere making the night a great 
success.

Merdeka Eve Celebration 
The 61th Merdeka Eve celebration was held on Thursday, 
30 August 2018 at the Lawn starting at 9.00pm follow 
by “Big Band” performance until 12.30am. As the clock 
struck 12 at midnight, there was a spectacular display 
of fireworks, amidst shouts of “Merdeka Merdeka” by the 
crowd.  Vice President, Col Johan Van Geyzel then led the 
crowd in singing the national anthem, Negara Ku.

Stand-Up Comedy featuring Kavin Jay
The dinner show was held on Friday, 14 September 2018 
at the Banquet Hall. Kavin Jay is undoubtedly one of the 
top comedians in Malaysian right now. His unique brand 
of humour has tickled ribs and charmed audiences of all 
shapes and backgrounds. 

Family Carnival 
This year the event was held on Saturday, 29 September 
2018 from 9.00am to 5.00pm. The carnival has become 

an occasion where members can enjoy the fun and games 
as a family as most of the activities were geared for family 
participation especially the younger ones. There were a 
variety of stalls featuring various activities, games, flea 
market and food. The mini petting zoo received the most 
attention from the children who took the opportunity to 
pose with and hold the animals. The carnival ended with a 
karaoke session until 5.00pm. 

Children’s activities:
• Recycling Arts & Craft Competition 
 – Saturday, 28 July2 018

• Halloween Kids’ Party 
 – Sunday, 21 October 2018 

• Children’s Christmas Party 
 – Sunday, 16 December 2018 

Other Events
• Friends of Friends 
 – every 3rd Thursday of the month 

• Oktoberfest 
 – Friday, 26 October 2018 

• Christmas Eve Dinner 
 – Monday, 24 December 2018

• Christmas Day Lunch 
 – Tuesday, 25 December 2018 

• New Year’s Eve Dinner & Dance 
 – Monday, 31 December 2018 

Mini Theatre 
The DVDs movie screening at the Mini Theatre was held 
every first and third Sunday of the month with the 11.00am 
show for children and 3.00pm for adults.



CLUB
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House & Grounds

Members of the House & Grounds 
Sub-Committee

Chairperson
Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan

Deputy Chairman
Mr Lim Beng Jin

Members
Mr Daniel Liew Siak Kien
Mr Sandesh Singh Bhatt

Management
Mr Ong Eng Nam (Building Consulting Manager)

Sitting from the left:
Mr Sandesh Singh Bhatt, Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan (Chairperson), 
Mr Daniel Liew Siak Kien

Standing from the left:
Mr Lim Beng Jin (Deputy Chairman), Mr Ong Eng Nam

The terms of reference of the House and Ground 
subcommittee include the maintenance of the Clubhouse, 
its plant and equipment, machinery, building, furniture and 
fixtures together with upkeep of the grounds including 
landscaping. Operations of the Changing Rooms are also 
under the purview of this Sub-Committee.

Our main Clubhouse was completed in 1990. It is no longer 
new as it is now close to 30 years old. For a building of that 
age which has to serve some ten thousand members and 
innumerable guests, there would be plenty of wear and tear.

This year the Sub-Committee had to make certain structural 
repairs to the Club’s infrastructure facilities, some of which 
could have dire consequences if not rectified in a timely 
manner. 

First, there was a major leak in the water pipes serving the 
Bunga Raya kitchen. We had to cut and seal off the existing 
pipe and relay an entirely new line for the kitchen.

The next eventful incident was the underground Main Incoming 
Pipe from the Syabas line which sprang a leak at the entrance 
of the carpark. Water was oozing out onto the surface of the 
road. We had to urgently excavate to remove and replace the 
broken pipe to avoid underground soil erosion.

The servicing and maintenance of the Imhoff tank was 
awarded to Aman Flora Sdn Bhd in 2016 for a sum of 
RM70,490.00 for 4 half yearly services, meaning it was 
RM17,622.50 per service. The third service of the Imhoff 

tank by Aman Flora was performed in January 2018. When 
their invoice was submitted to the Club for payment it was 
discovered that the Club has been billed RM24,380.00 
(instead of RM17,622.50) for each of the three services. 
The Sub-Committee recommended that the 4th service be 
cancelled. 

Arising from the above, another company was engaged to 
service the Imhoff tank and upon draining off the sludge, it 
was discovered that the plastering of the Imhoff tank wall 
have fallen off, exposing many bricks which can have dire 
effect for the foundation of the tank.

In addition, it was found that the sewer pipe from the 
Administration Office were connected incorrectly to the exit 
end of the filtration tank thereby causing blockages and 
backflow of waste to the toilets.

A sum of RM39,000 was spent on this entire exercise which 
include the unclogging of the sewer lines in the Ladies 
Changing Room. 

There were some minor complaints on the cleanliness of 
the Men Changing Room. Members should be mindful to 
pick up after themselves and treat the MCR like their own 
showers and toilets at home.

710 new towels were purchased to replace the worn out and 
torn towels. As a little contribution to the environment we 
purchased white towels as coloured towels are chemically 
dyed.
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A portion of the timber eaves in the Main Building fell off 
after a heavy thunder storm. We had to hire a sky lift to 
remove the timber strips which were dangling from the 
truss. That portion of timber eaves were replaced with 
aluminium strips. 

The façade of the Main Building was given a fresh coat of 
paint from white to ivory. The car parks were also painted 
with a different colour for each floor for easy identification.

The Club has been operating without the benefit of 
a Chargeman/Competent Person. The two previous 
Facilities and Maintenance managers lacked the correct 
qualifications. As for our Club, a competent person with 
an A4 Chargeman Certificate is the requirement from JKKP 
and the Energy Commission. 

In September this year, Mr Ong Eng Nam was given a short 
term contract as he is a qualified Chargeman with an A4 
certificate. He is now the registered competent person with 
JKKP and the Energy Commission. With the registration in 
place we proceeded with the application to JKKP to certify 
our lifts; after which we would proceed with the Bomba 
inspection. 

JKKP conducted an inspection on our lifts on 5th September 
2018 and they had mandated a car locking device to be 
installed. This will be carried out by the Club with Otis, the 
original supplier.

The service lift is still in good condition except for the lift 
landing doors which are corroded and rusty. This was the 
main cause of break-downs to the service lift. The GC has 
agreed to replace the rusted doors. The dumb-waiters 
brake pads will be replaced at Otis’s cost in accordance to 
our comprehensive maintenance package.

Security is one of the areas which this committee had 
looked into. There are 93 existing cameras around our 
Club’s premise. 70 of these are analogue cameras and the 
recorders to these cameras are not recording. The Security 
Department had made recommendation to streamline the 
positions of these cameras. Improved digital cameras were 
purchased to be added to our existing system and presently 
this is still work in progress.

The previous HGSC had recommended commissioning 
another water tank for the Club. Due to the lack of structural 
drawings and technical specifications of the old building 
and after having inspected the roof of the old building this 
committee recommended that if another tank has to be 
installed it should be positioned on the ground level and the 
water to be pumped to the existing tank on the roof.

The total amount expended for Repairs & Upkeep for the 
financial year ended 30th June 2018 was RM545,254.00 
(RM811,246.00 – 2017) Water and electricity costs 
for the same period was RM1,659,356.00 compared to 
RM1,874,995.00 for the previous corresponding period .

House & Grounds (continued)
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Library

Members of the Library 
Sub-Committee

Chairman 
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram 

Deputy Chairman 
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev 

Members
Mr M K Nagaraj 
Mr Adrian Yeo Jui Yang 
Ms Camilla A Alim 
Madam Tan Lee Hoon 

Management 
Pn Rozita Bt Teh  (Events & Communication 
 Manager)

Sitting from left:
Mr M K Nagaraj, Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram (Chairman), Ms Camilla A Alim 

Standing from left:
Mr Adrian Yeo Jui Yang, Puan Rozita Teh 

Not in Picture:
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev, Madam Tan Lee Hoon 

The Library Sub-Committee (“LSC”) oversees the running of 
the Main Library and Children’s Library. This year the LSC 
2018 organised the following activities for year of 2018:

Story Telling:
• Saturday, 3 February 2018 by Mrs Soong 
• Saturday, 7 April 2018 by Mrs Soong 
• Saturday, 5 May 2018 by Alison & Indi Nadarajah 
• Saturday, 9 June 2018 by Uncle Prith 
• Saturday, 7 July 2018 by Ms Siaw Lean Sin 
• Saturday, 18 August 2018 by Mrs Soong 

Other exciting activities:
• Bricks4Kidz 
 – Tuesday, 20 March 2018 

• The Jumping Jelly Beans Workshop 
 – Thursday, 22 March 2018 

• The Blockchain
 – Saturday, 24 March 2018 

• Music and Art Jamming 
 – 21 April 2018

• Batik Painting 
 – Saturday, 19 May 2018 

• Vanishing Tribe 
 – Saturday, 23 June 2018

• Cryptic Crossword Workshop 
 – Saturday 6 October 2018.
• Movie Party 
 – Saturday, 24 November 2018 

The book donation drive was held from 1st August 2018 to 
30th September 2018. The LSC decided on which books 
were suitable for the Main and Children’s Library. The LSC 
also decided that the balance of the books will be donated 
to a Children’s Homes of choice. 

The Club also boasts an impressive subscription of 42 
magazine titles, updated monthly and 21 newspaper 
publications, both local and foreign, which are updated on a 
weekly and daily basis. Library also is collection of sources 
of information and similar resources, made accessible to a 
defined community for reference and borrowing.



SPORTS &
RECREATION
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Badminton

Members of the Badminton 
Sub-Committee

Chairman     
Mr Loke Wai Mun 

Deputy Chairman
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram

Convenor 
Mr V T Selvam 

Members
Mr Loong Chee Meng 
Mr Teh Ah Huat 
Mr Chan Tow Chai 
Mr Wong Tee Fatt 
  
Management 
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)
Mr V Subramaniam (Senior Executive)

Section members 35

Sitting from left:
Mr Loong Chee Meng, Mr Loke Wai Mun (Chairman), Mr V T Selvam
Mr Chan Tow Chai

Standing from left:
En Halim Mohd Said, Mr V Subramaniam

Absent with apologies:
Mr Wong Tee Fatt, Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram (Deputy Chairman), Mr Teh Ah Huat

President’s Team vs Chairman’s Team

The Badminton Section Traditional Season opener of the 
year was the President’s Team vs Chairman’s Team held on 
Tuesday, 31 March at the Badminton Hall.

22 players participated in the event with a great spirit of 
camaraderie the fun continued with a dinner at the Bunga 
Raya restaurant.

Inter-club Friendly with Raintree Club

Badminton Section of RLC hosted a friendly inter-club 
badminton tournament with The Raintree Club of Kuala 
Lumpur on 21 April 2018. Out of six doubles games played, 
RLC won with five wins and a draw.

Inter-club Friendly with 
Kelab Shah Alam, Selangor

Raquet Games Committee organised a series of inter-club 
games on Saturday, 14 July 2018.

The Badminton Section hosted Kelab Shah Alam, Selangor 
(KSAS). The game began at 5.30pm after a welcome tea 
reception for the guests. A total of six doubles games 
played, many games ended in a draw.

Royal Lake Club then hosted the players from KSAS together 
with members from other clubs namely The Raintree Club 
and Royal Klang Club to a dinner at the Banquet Hall, which 
was officiated by our President Patrick Chiam. Post dinner 
was followed by karaoke sessions to end a good and 
memorable evening.

Badminton Inter-club Friendly Match

On 13 October 2018, the Badminton Section’s members of 
Royal Lake Club were invited to have a friendly badminton 
tournament with The Raintree Club. A total of 10 badminton 
players from Royal Lake Club participated in this friendly 
games. The Chairman, Mr Loke Wai Mun arrived early at 
The Raintree Club to give the players moral support.

A total of 9 doubles, 2 sets each, were played. Royal Lake 
Club was down by 2 sets after 8 doubles were played and 
managed to clinch 2 winning sets from the last doubles to 
pull the overall results to a draw.

The Raintree Club then hosted all players to a dinner with 
free flow of beer. We bid farewell to our hosts at around 10 
pm and it was indeed an enjoyable evening. 
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Darts

Members of the Darts 
Sub-Committee

Chairman 
Dr Surinder Singh Jeswant

Deputy Chairperson 
Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan

Convenor
Mr P Sivan 

Members 
En Osman Khan
Mr Tham Kok Peng
Mr Robert Low
Dr Heenie Lee  (co-opted)

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)

Sitting from the left:
Mr P Sivan, Dr Surinder Singh Jeswant (Chairman), Mr Robert Low

Standing from the left:
En Osman Khan, Dr Heenie Lee, Mr Tham Kok Peng, En Halim Mohd Said

Not in picture:
Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan (Deputy Chairperson)

President Team vs Chairman Team

The President’s Team beat the Chairman’s Team by 11-2. 
Both sides fought tooth and nail but the President’s Team 
prevailed.

6th Malacca Club 
Inter-club Invitational Darts

Mens team went into the Plate Pool and lost to Royal 
Selangor Club by 2-8

Ladies Team (RLC Darty Warriors)
Ten teams participated in the Ladies 3Some Event which 
was well support. This was our Ladies’ Inaugural Team 
tournament, and although they lost their group matches, 
credit must be given to them for their gritty determination 
as they lost by the narrowest of margins.

Our ladies fared much better in the Dart Warrior category. 
Congratulations to Ms Asvika Maheswary – Joint 3rd /4th in 
the Winners Pool and Ms Rena Low – 2nd in the Plate Pool

ABC Trophy Match

On 1 July 2018, after a nice lunch, both sides settled down 
for a serious session of darts. Darts Section Team A lost 
narrowly to their opponents in the first encounter when the 
Staff Foursomes managed to check out first.

Darts Section Team B too, had a memorable game. They 
lost the Foursomes and in the 1st Singles Tham lost 1-2, but 
managed to snatch one point with his never-to- die attitude. 
Screams of ecstasy and delight echoed throughout Batek 
Bar when Dr Surindar miraculously checked out twice! The 
score was a heart-stopping 5-6, still in the Staff’s favour 
with just the deciding 3rd Singles left. Asvika, our last Team 
B player had to win 2 points straight to win overall 7-6.

Darts Section’s Raya 
and Inter-club Friendly Match

On 6 July, RLC Section celebrated Hari Raya with a friendly 
darts match with Rahman Putra Club. Rahman Putra Club 
narrowly won with a score of 13-10.

Series of Games RLC with Raintree Club

The Darts Section hosted a series of games with Raintree 
Club on 14 July 2018. The game ended with a draw with 
both teams scoring 11 points each.

Royal Ipoh Annual Trophy Match

On the 27th July, 2018, Royal Ipoh Club (RIC) was host 
to RLC and gave us a splendid dinner and drinks before 
settling down to serious business. Both Teams A and 
B played simultaneously as there were only two boards 
available.
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Our Team A drew first blood by winning the Foursome, but 
RIC fought back and was leading 7-5 with the last and 3rd 
Singles yet to be played. Newton played a good match 
and won 2-0. With the score tied at 7-7, the decider was 
a repeat of the Foursome match. This tiebreaker was 
anyone’s game, as both sides had chances to check out. 
However, RIC held their nerves and checked out first, thus 
winning the trophy match by a hair’s breath.

It was just the opposite in the “friendly” Team B games. RLC 
was leading 4-3 midway but lost the remaining two singles 
and one doubles to RIC and the final score was 9-6 in RIC’s 
favour. Credit must be given to our all-ladies doubles team, 
Asvika and Farrah managed to salvage one point before 
losing 1-2.

RLC Merdeka Invitational Darts 
Tournament 2018

On 31 August, we played host to nine other clubs from 
various part pf the country. A total of sixteen teams 
participated with two teams from RLC, namely Cobra and 
Viper.

In the final match PJ Hawks beat Kelab Aman to emerge 
Champions.

Eighteen ladies took part in the Ladies Singles event. 
Congratulations to Rena Low for securing Runner Up in the 
plate pool.

RLC Annual Darts Championship 2018

The Darts Section Annual Championship event was held at 
the Batek Bar over 2 days, on Saturday 6th and Sunday 
7th October. A total of 10 darters participated in the Open 

Singles category. Preliminary round robin matches in 4 
groups, were held to eliminate 2 participants so that 8 can 
go through to the knockout stage. Robert Newton eventually 
emerged as the champion with Farouk as the runner up whilst 
the joint 3rd and 4th placings went to Johan and Palani. 

Sixteen players registered for the Doubles Blind Draw 
category. In an attempt to even out the playing field, the 
seeded players were paired with the others through a blind 
draw to form 8 teams. In order to save time, round robin 
matches, split into 2 groups of 4 teams each, were held 
to select 2 teams from each group to go through to the 
semi-final knockout stage. The eventual winner were Johan 
and Robert Low, with husband and wife team, Farouk and 
Farrah, as runner up. Osman and Tham, jointly with Jai and 
James Liew, took 3rd and 4th places.

RSC 9th Inter-club Invitational Darts 
Tournament 2018

The Royal Selangor Club held its 9th Inter-club Invitational 
Darts tournament on 13th & 14th October. A total of 25 
teams from various clubs participated in the tournament, 
including 1 team from our Club.

Our Club’s team was grouped with New Club Taiping and 
SAFTEA and we lost to both of them in the round robin stage 
thus eliminating our chance to proceed to the Winners’ Pool. 
In the Plate Pool for the knockout round where we were 
eliminated in the first round by Selangor Recreation Club.

In the Ladies Single tournament, a total of 33 ladies took 
part, with Rena Low being our Club’s sole representative. 
Rena managed to get to the quarter finals stage in the Plate 
Pool Knockout round but unfortunately did not manage to 
progress any further.
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Golf

Members of the Golf 
Sub-Committee

Chairperson
Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong 

Convenor 
Dato’ Mustafa Mohd Ali 

Members 
Mr John Cheang Yow Wai 
Dato Tan Seng Chee 
Dato’ Prof Dr Lian Chin Boon 
En Che Roslan Abdul Ghani 
En Abdul Jalil Darus  (co-opted)

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)
Mr V Subramaniam (Senior Executive) Sitting from the left:

Dato Tan Seng Chee, Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong (Chairperson), 
Dato’ Mustafa Mohd Ali (Convenor), Dato’ Prof Dr Lian Chin Boon

Standing from the left:
Mr V Subramaniam, Mr John Cheang Yow Wai, En Abdul Jalil Darus, 
En Che Roslan Abdul Ghani, En Halim Mohd Said

President Team vs Chairperson Team

We had our 1st game at Kelab Golf Sultan Abdul Aziz Shah 
in Shah Alam on Thursday 8 March 2018 morning. Some 
36 players took part. 

The president Team beat the Chairperson Team by the 
narrowest margin of one point.

Triangular Golf Competition 2018

The competition was formerly known as the Quadrangular 
Golf competition. It is an annual Golf Competition held 
within four Clubs, namely Royal Lake Club, Kelab Shah Alam 
Selangor, Raintree Club and Royal Selangor Club. The name 
was changed when Royal Selangor Club withdrew from the 
competition.

Kelab Shah Alam Selangor came out as Champion for year 
2018 and RLC came in third while second place went to 
Raintree Club.

Golfers’ Getaway to Thailand

Twenty-seven Royal Lake Club golfers and 12 non-golfers 
went on a happy golfing holiday to the idyllic life of Rayong 
and Pattaya in Thailand from July 2 to 6.

The golfers truly enjoyed the championship layout at the 
Saint Andrews 2000 course and all came away with good 
scores.

The non-golfers had a wonderful time sightseeing, shopping 
and indulging in the gastronomic cuisines the country had 
to offer.

Royal Lake Club vs Bentong Golf Club 
Annual Competition

In the wee hours of the morning at 6.15am on July 29, 
a troop of 28 Royal Lake Club golfing warriors went to 
Bentong to defend the Championship Trophy we brought 
home in the preceding year.

We were entering the lion’s den, Bentong Golf Course. Even 
though we did our best, with very good scores individually 
and collectively we did not succeed. Our opponents 
managed to pull off a home-victory. 

After lunch and good fellowship we left for home at 3.00pm. 
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Gymnasium

Members of the Gymnasium 
Sub-Committee

Chairman
Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap 

Deputy Chairman
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev 

Members
Mr Michael Kwan Teng Kooi   
Mr Lim Boon Hiong 
Ms Ho Sey Chen 

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)

Sitting from the left:
Ms Ho Sey Chen, Mr Michael Kwan Teng Kooi, 
Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap (Chairman), Mr Lim Boon Hiong

Standing from left:
En Halim Mohd Said

Not in picture:
Mr Prithviraj Singh Sachdev (Deputy Chairman)

Annual Night Dinner

Unlike most other annual nights where there would be dancing and drinking, 
the highlight at the Gym Annual Night Dinner was a health talk by Professor 
Dato Sri Steve Yap held at the Perdana Room on 20 April. Professor 
presented a talk on “Preventing diabetes and heart diseases through 
exercise, dieting and food choices.”

The evening was certainly filled with health revelations information sprinkled 
with pearls of wisdom pertaining to our health, the way we live and how 
best to take care of our body through our choices of food and lifestyle.

By the time dinner ended, the Professor was surrounded by RLC members 
wanted to continue with the talk session and refuse to let him go.
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Hash

Members of the Hash 
Sub-Committee

Chairman     
Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap   

Convenor 
Mr Balakrishnan Pillai       

Members
Dr Yap Chung Mui            
Mr Peter Leong Yue Sek    
Ms Ann Choo Foong Har  
Ms Irene Cheong Moi Choo 
  
Management 
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)
Mr K V Baskar (Senior Executive)

Sitting from the left:
Mr Balakrishnan Pillai (Convenor), Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap (Chairman), 
Ms Ann Choo Foong Har  

Standing from the left:
Dr. Yap Chung Mui, Mr Peter Leong Yue Sek, En Halim Mohd Said  
           
Not in picture:
Ms Irene Cheong Moi Choo

Hashing into The Four Digit Milestone

It seemed like yesterday when the then-RLC President David 
Yap flagged off the inaugural run of the RLC Harriers. In 
a flash, we were starting Run #1000 after 19 years of 
continuous Tuesday evening runs. How time flies when you 
are having a good time.

The Circle was quite an elaborate affair even though 
we were quite eager to get washed and changed into 
our fineries for the grand event at The Orchid. It was an 
agreeable sight to see hashers, normally in shorts, now 
togged up in suits and fine batik shirts and the ladies in 
gowns reflecting the Christmassy colours of red and green. 
As usual, the celebration of the 19th anniversary of the 
founding of RLC Harriers started with a cake cut by all 
the past GrandMasters. Then a sketch was presented by 
a motley crew with GM Tarzan, Alka, Bala, Peter, Afif and 
Sue Ng.

The bar at the Orchid was a hive of activities as hashers 
lined up for beer and whisky while others kept the dance 
floor occupied ... and so the hashers of RLC Harriers wined 
and they dined and they danced and had a jolly good time.

Hashing in A Sea of Red

Royal Lake Club Harriers Run #1011 fell on 12 day of the 
Lunar year of the Dog. The 152 runners were put through 
a series of warm up exercises led by Wendy Lum and Sue 

Ng. RLC President Patrick Chiam was on hand to light the 
string of fire-crackers to start the runner off.

The prancing lions completed their routine and presented 
a tableau of oranges and pineapple to the RLC President 
Patrick Chiam, Hash Chairman Tommy Chin, Vice President 
Col Johan and Grand Master Bala.

It was indeed a joyous celebration that had everybody 
having a good time.

Pirates Pub Attack 

The RLC Harriers have earned an enviable reputation as 
the most innovative organiser for pub crawls and the latest 
version further added to the claim. After weeks of meeting 
and palnning, the Pirates Pub Attack rolled off with more 
than 230 hashers from many chapters in Klang Valley.

The day had been such roaring success as the RLC Hashing 
Pirates and their guests dined, wined and partied into the 
night.

Cuti Cuti Hash

On the appointed Saturday morning, 49 RLC Harriers 
boarded the bus to on the journey to Port Dickson. 
Upon arrival at the Port Dickson Golf & Country Club, we 
partook a generous spread called brunch. We adjourned 
to PD EXtreme Park, where we went go-karting. After that, 
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we headed for the Army Museum which showcased the 
progress of the country to Merdeka and the Emergency - 
most educational.

After check in, soon it was time to start the main event, a 
run through the sandy beach, rocks, coastal jungle to the 
lighthouse before a descent to Blue Lagoon. The uncles 
were busy trying to fire up the barbecue pit and Col. Johan 
ready to cook the various marinated meat. 

The next day after the recovery walk, lunch was held at the 
PD most famous chicken rice, Yit Hin Hainan Chicken Rice 
reputedly the best chicken rice in the world. It had been an 
evenful and tiring outing and we all enjoyed it to the hilt.

President Run

President Run with a 1960s-70s theme centralised on 
Woodstock and also to raise fund for United Voice (UV) and 
to showcase the talent of a special son of a RLC member.

Over 160 participants with 12 from United Voice (UV), 
an NGO that promoted Self-Advocacy for Persons with 
Learning Disabilities arrived around 4pm onwards, they 
were given their run tee shirts with a colourful running man 
creation by the special child of a RLC members. 

The RLC President Patrick Chiam planted a bottle brush tree 
to replaced the dead Eco Run hasher palm planted in 2000 
by the then President David Yap, who also inaugurated the 
RLC Hash Chapter.

The Banquet Hall decked with the Woodstock theme 
transported the participants into the 1960-70s era of Love 
Peace and Not War. Dinner was served at 9.00pm by the 
Bunga Raya restaurant after the President speech and 
presented a mock up donation cheque of RM4,290. It was 
indeed a joyous celebration that had everybody having a 
good time.

Quadrangular Run

29 diehard RLC Harriers left RLC to particulate in the 20th 
Quadrangular Run hosted by Melaka Club. The other clubs 
are Royal Klang Club and Royal Selangor Club.

We reached the Klebang Beach, under blasting hot sun. 
Some brave souls ventured to put their marks on these 
sand dunes, which were literally under the Strait of Malacca, 
if you referred to Google map. It was a 2km walk to and 
from the Sand Dunes and ready worth it for first timers.

About 200 Harriers from Royal Klang Club, Royal Selangor 
Club, Royal Lake Club and Melaka Club were milling around 
and trying to get out from the hot sun. Thereon, it was 
undulating run amongst the oil palm and uncovered ground 
with a few hashers watering and fertilising the oil palms 
as we struggled on. Out of 29 RLCers, 13 completed the 
10km. Even Pauline Wong Po Leng did the 5km in her new 
white anti-UV body suit. Salute her!

Melaka Club Rotunda fronting the Malacca Strait, was 
decked with palm leaves with an African feel. The solo 
singer belted up popular songs with African twists. The GMs 
of the 4 participating clubs exchanged gifts and souvenirs 
before dinner was served for over 200 pax.

Soon the eagerly awaited club performance started, the 
first time in hash history, a classic has being adapted for a 
hash performance with self made lion masks and flamingo 
hats. The performers were Tommy Chin, David Wee, Sue 
Ng, Bala, Peter Leong, Molly, Lilian Wong, Ann Choo, Johan 
Van Geyzel , Afifuddin Hafifi and Gwendoline Cheong. For 
Afif and Peter, opportunity to flex off their six packs and 
Johan, his hunting skill.

Then it was all night dancing until +11pm, where we bid 
a reluctant goodbye. Reached RLC around 1.30am. What 
a great day of travelling, food, adventure, hashing, bird 
watching, dance performance and company!
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Karaoke

Members of the Karaoke 
Sub-Committee

Chairperson 
Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan

Convenor 
Mr Bob Yong Lin Tang 

Members 
Mr Philip Soo Hing Lin 
Mr David Wong Tsun Khow 
Mr Lau Chun Tho 
En Tarmizi Abu Hanipah  (resigned) 
Ms Pamela Khoo  (resigned)

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)
Mr K V Baskar (Senior Executive) Sitting from the left:

Mr Bob Yong Lin Tang (Convenor), Ms Pansy Lee Mew Kwan (Chairperson), 
Mr Philip Soo Hing Lin 

Standing from the left:
En Halim Mohd Said, Mr David Wong Tsun Khow 

Not in picture:
Mr Lau Chun Tho, Mr K V Baskar

Roaring into Chinese New Year

Members of the karaoke section celebrated Chinese New 
Year with a blast, starting with the tossing of Yee Sang and 
six-course Chinese dinner at the Bunga Raya. The evening 
culminated in a riotous singing and dancing – The Teratai 
Karaoke Lounge.

The evening was filled with melodious string of Chinese New 
Year favorites, followed by, a medley of yesteryear hits; 
all belted out with gusto by those present. A memorable 
evening.

President vs Chairman

Karaoke Section kicked off with the first singing competition 
of the year on Friday, 20 April 2018, the President’s Team 
against the Chairman’s Team.

A total of 16 karaoke enthusiasts participated in the 
competition, consisting of 8 soloists and 2 duet pairs on 
each team. The final result the President’s Team won by a 
narrow margin of 8 points over their opponent.

Karaoke Section’s Raya Night

The karaoke Section celebrated Hari Raya Festive Night 
on ---- Members and their guests thronged the Teratai 

Lounge for an evening of songs and dances after teasing 
themselves with a Raya Feast at the Poolside Café’.

The celebration included a crowning of the Best-dressed 
Male and Female of the evening. 

In-House Karaoke Competition Final

A total of 110 Karaoke enthusiasts were at the Banquet 
Hall watched the 15 soloists and 5 pairs of duet pairs 
competing in the RLC In-House Karaoke Competition. The 
top three soloists and a champion duet would represent our 
club in the 26th Inter Club Karaoke Competition 2018 held 
on Saturday, August 11, 2018 at the Kelab Golf Negara 
Subang.

The results were as follows:

Solo Category 
Champion – Mr Christopher Lee
2nd Placing – Mr Wan Ban Ong
3rd Placing – Ms May Liew
4th Placing – Mr Adam Teo (Reserve)

Duet Category
Champion – Ms Pamela Khoo & Ms Kimberly Kok
2nd Placing – Mr Wan Ban Ong & Irene Ch’ng (Reserve)
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Karaoke (continued)

26th Inter-club Karaoke Competition

On the evening of 11 August 2018, a team of singers from 
RLC battled for karaoke honour at the Kelab Golf Negara 
Subang in the 26th Interclub Karaoke Competition. 

In the solo category, our representative, Wan Ban 
Ong emerged 3rd place behind singers from Royal 
Commonwealth Society and Royal Selangor Club. In the 
duet category, our pair was not placed but won the best-
dressed duet for that evening.
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Squash

Members of the Squash 
Sub-Committee

Chairman 
Mr Loke Wai Mun

Deputy Chairman 
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram 

Members 
En Shamsudin Mustafa 
Mr Peter Wong 
Mr Victor Mok Kum Seng 
Mr Jimmy Chen

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)
Mr K V Baskar (Senior Executive)

Sitting from the left:
Mr Peter Wong, Mr Loke Wai Mun (Chairman), Mr Victor Mok Kum Seng

Standing:
En Halim Mohd Said

Not in picture:
Mr K V Baskar, Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram (Deputy Chairman), 
En Shamsudin Mustafa, Mr Jimmy Chen

ANNUAL SQUASH CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP

The Squash section held its Annual Club Championship from 
27 to 27 April. A total of 19 competitors entered this year’s 
event which was divided into three categories, the Men’s 
Open, the Men’s 50 and above and the Men’s 60 and above. 
The results were as follows;

Men’s Open:
Mark Low beat Nicholas Lee 3-0

Men’s 50 and above: 
Huang Ying How beat Sham Mustafa 3-0

Men’s 60 and above: 
Ting Ing Sien beat Heng Yang Teck 2-0

A high tea was held afterwards where the above winners 
received their prizes.

The squash subcommittee would like to thank the Sports 
department for organising the event and for the support 
given to the squash players.

National Squash Championship

The Ohana National Squash Championship was held at the 
National Squash Centre at Bukit Jalil from 4 to 8 July and 
the Royal Lake Club was represented by eight members.

Mary Lee, the resident RLC coach, emerged as the National 
Champion in the Squash 57 Women’s over 40s event while 
Ting Ing Sien was the runner up in the Squash 57 Men’s 
Over 60 event. Jimmy Chen ended up 3rd in the Squash 57 
over 50 events. This was indeed a successful outing for our 
Squash 57 members. Well done!

Royal Lake Club (RLC) vs 
Royal Klang Club (RKC)

Despite being represented by only two players instead of 
the original intended four, the RKC provided stiff opposition 
and gave us a demonstration of fitness as they played eight 
matches between them.

Final score: RLC 4 RKC 4

Later at the dinner held at the Banquet Hall, our opponents 
kindly presented us with a souvenir plaque. We in turn 
presented them with the RLC 125th anniversary book.
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Swimming

Members of the Swimming 
Sub-Committee

Chairman 
Mr Loke Wai Mun

Deputy Chairman 
Dr Surindar Singh 

Members 
En Ahmed Zakki Abdul Jabbar 
Mrs Caroline Lee
Mr Wong Chee Seng 

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)
Mr V Subramaniam (Senior Executive)

Sitting from the left:
Mrs Caroline Lee, Mr Loke Wai Mun (Chairman), Mr Wong Chee Seng 

Standing from the left:
Mr V Subramaniam, En Ahmed Zakki Abdul Jabbar, En Halim Mohd Said

Not in picture:
Dr Surindar Singh (Deputy Chairman)

1st Age Group and 
Master Swimming Championship

Date : Sunday 29 April 2018
Number of Participants : 67 Swimmers 

Winners of 5 Gold Medals 
Boys Girls Veteran

Neevaj Divesh Seith Cheah Dong Xuan Ir Aldrin Wong
Devaj Divesh Seith  Nathasah Sophea
 Loo Seal Cade

2nd Age Group and 
Master Swimming Championship

The Swimming section held its second Age Group & Master 
Championship on Sunday 5 August 2018.

Participants came from 23 Boys and 16 Girls in all four 
strokes events and 4 adults in the Master category. The 
meet was slightly delayed due to rain.

Winners of 5 Gold Medals 
Boys Girls 

Neevaj Divesh Seth Cheah Dong Xuan
Devaj Divesh Seth  Nathasah Sophea
 Loo Seal Cade

It is gratifying to see the participants especially the children 
enjoying and trying their best to win.

Special thanks to the Sub-Committee members, Coaches, 
Puan Nuraina Tajuddin for the sponsorship of packet Milo 
drinks and our Staff for helping in organising the events. 

The forth coming Swimming Gala meet will be held on 4 
November 2018.

Swimming Fun 
Water Games for Children’s

The Swimming Fun water game was held on Sunday 1st 
July 2018 at 8.30am at the Children’s pool and Main pool.

The response was very good. 70 participants from age of 
4 to 12 years took part. The participants were divided into 
five (5) teams according to their age and height.

Games played:

1. Filling Water in the bucket 
2. Spoon & Egg Relay
3. Treasure Hunt
4. Board Relay
5. Feeding Baby  

The top three teams were awarded MPH vouchers worth RM 
25.00, RM 20.00 and RM 15.00 given to each swimmer in 
the team.

Goodies like pencils and Jigsaw Puzzles were also given 
away.
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Table Tennis

Members of the Table Tennis 
Sub-Committee

Chairman 
Mr Loke Wai Mun

Deputy Chairman 
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram 

Members 
Mr Terry Goh Keng Tiang 
Mr Loke Yoon Hoe 
Mr Phang Chee Tat 
Mr Adrian Chong Wai Zhen 

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)

Sitting from the left:
En Halim Mohd Said, Mr Terry Goh Keng Tiang, Mr Loke Wai Mun (Chairman),
Mr Phang Chee Tat

Not in picture:
Mr Loke Yoon Hoe, Mr Adrian Chong Wai Zhen, 
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram (Deputy Chairman)  

Friendly Competition

The annual friendly match between RLC and Royal Klang 
Club was hosted in rotation and this year was held in our 
turf on 19 May.

We were pleasantly surprised that RKC brought their lower 
ranked players to play against us. It would’ve been harder 
for us to earn our 12 wins against RKC’s 11 wins. The 
evening ended with a buffet dinner by the poolside.

RLC vs Royal Sungei Ujong Club

Our inaugural friendly match with the Royal Sungei Ujong 
Club was held on 9 June at the Royal Lake Club. It was a 
hot afternoon but the heat did not dampen the enthusiasm 
of the players.

RLC won 24 matches and RSUC won two matches. After 
the matches, our guests were treated to a buffet dinner by 
the poolside. RSUC Captain, Mr Lee announced that they 
will invite us to their club next year.

RLC vs Raintree Club

RLC invited the Raintree Club members to play series of 
games on 14 July with Table Tennis being one them.

In the 6 men singles matches, RLC won 4 matches and 
Raintree won 2. In the men doubles, Raintree won 2 
matches and RLC won 1 match. RLC men’s team played 
well and won 5-4 Congratulations!

Raintree won all the 4 women singles and 2 women doubles 
matches. The Raintree Club women’s team had very good 
players.

After the matches, our guests gathered at the Banquet Hall 
for a Chinese dinner follow by a karaoke session.
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Tennis

Members of the Tennis 
Sub-Committee

Chairman 
Mr Loke Wai Mun

Deputy Chairman 
Mr Sailendra Kanagasundram 

Convenor 
En Shahizan Hasnan     
 
Members 

Management 
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)

Inter-club Friendly with Raintree Club

This year, it is our turn to play host to The Raintree Club of Kuala 
Lumpur for tennis as well as table tennis, squash and badminton. After 
the matches, all the players and officials gathered at the Banquet Hall 
for a scrumptious Chinese dinner. During dinner, the members of the 
two club enjoyed a joint karaoke session to further foster the close 
relationship between the two Clubs.

RSGC Tennis Invitation Tournament

RLC was invited to take part in the RSGC Tennis Invitational Tournament 
along with The Raintree Club KL, Royal Selangor Club and Royal Perak 
Golf Club on the 4 - 5 August 2018. We enjoyed excellent weather and 
true sportsmanship prevailed as the tournament progressed. The RLC 
team managed to complete all the games and emerged Champions for 
the year 2018.

Tennis League

The tennis league was initiated by the 5 premier Clubs in the Klang 
Valley namely The Royal Lake Club, The Royal Selangor Club, The Royal 
Selangor Golf Club, Kelab Darul Ehsan and The Raintree Club of KL with 
the idea of having a sustained quality set of ties between the players 
from the respective Clubs on a home and away basis.

Since all the matches are being held on a home and away basis, 
both players and supporters from the host and the visiting club had 
an enjoyable time socializing during and after the games. For the 
first edition, the finals will be held on the 10th of November between 
Raintree and RSGC. RLC completed the league in 3rd position followed 
by KDE and RSC.

Asia Pacific Masters Games 2018

The 1st APMG 2018 was held in Penang for a week from the 7th-
15th September 2018. Our sole representative from the RLC, Shahizan 
Hasnan competed in the tennis event and returned with 2 Golds and 1 
Bronze medal. He won Gold in the Mens Doubles Open 50s category 
and the Mixed Doubles Open 40s category. In the Mens Singles Open 
50s category, he collected the Bronze medal. The Games attracted 
competitors from 47 countries. The next games will be held in Seoul 
Korea in 2022.
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Members of the Indoor Recreation I 
Sub-Committee

Chairman
Mr Lim Beng Jin

Deputy Chairman
Mr Loke Wai Mun

Members
En Maharedza Mahadzir 
Mr Leong Kok Chuen 
Mr Soh Chee Gee 
Ms Christine Chew 

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)
Mr V Subramaniam (Senior Executive)

Sitting from the left:
Mr Leong Kok Chuen, Mr Loke Wai Mun (Deputy Chairman), 
Mr Lim Beng Jin (Chairman), Ms Christine Chew

Standing from the left:
Mr V Subramaniam, Mr Soh Chee Gee, En Halim Mohd Said 

Not in picture:
En Maharedza Mahadzir

Indoor Recreation I
(Aikido, Fencing, Tae Kwan Do, Tai Chi, Qigong, Sun Wushu)

Tai Chi 

Started in 1975 the section continues to attract a large 
following and through the years, thousands of RLC members 
have benefited from the healthy exercise provided by Tai 
Chi, and, our current instructors all commenced their 
learning of Tai Chi at RLC. 

Student numbers consistently ranged around 90 with many 
having been Section members for over 20 years. The 
camaraderie among the Section member is evident from 
the many social activities, including outstation trips and 
monthly food, drink and song gatherings that fosters great 
fellowship amongst Section members. 

RLC Wu Tai Chi Dinner 
5 May 2018 
The 2018 Fellowship Dinner with the theme Tai Chi Goes 
Latin was held at the Banquet Hall and had a full attendance 
of 25 tables. Section members performed a sketch, 
dances and singing for a most memorable and entertaining 
evening.

Aikido 

Aikido (the way of harmonizing the energy of the universe) 
is a Japanese martial art using the most basic system of 
throwing, joint-locking, striking and pinning techniques, 
coupled with training in the use of wooden sword 
(“bokken”), staff (“jo”) and knife “tanto”) techniques. Aikido 

instills mental concentration and discipline and is suitable 
for children, men and women of all ages. 

Yoshinkan Aikido was introduced in the Club in 1998. 
The section conducts its training classes every Sunday 
afternoon from 4.15pm to 6.00pm in the Aerobic Room 
under the guidance of Chief Instructor Sensei Sunny Loke 
and his team of instructors. 

Tae Kwon Do

The Korean martial art seeks to instill in its proponents, 
fitness, balance, strength, power and technique for self-
defense and has been widely acknowledged as an excellent 
way to inculcate discipline, self-control, respect, confidence 
and dedication. 

The Tae Kwan Do has been in the Club for about four 
decades and is one of the most active sections in the Club 
with a sizable student population.

As of October 2018 there is a total of 113 Tae Kwan Do 
students: 

White – White to Yellow Belt : 27 students 
Yellow – Yellow to Green Belt : 17 students 
Green – Green to Blue Belt : 20 students 
Blue – Blue to Blue Red Belt : 16 students 
Red – Red to Black Belt : 14 students 
Black Belt : 19 students 
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Indoor Recreation I (continued)
(Aikido, Fencing, Tae Kwan Do, Tai Chi, Qigong, Sun Wushu)

RLC Tae Kwan Do Annual Championship and Luncheon 
13 May 2018 
The 2018 RLC Tae Kwan Do Annual Championship attracted 
a total of 88 participants, a 10% increase over the previous 
year. After a quick photography session, the participants 
were divided into two teams. 

The tournament began with demonstration by the 
participants from Red Belt to Black Belt in Basic Movement 
and Kick Breaking. 

The younger children had fun competing in the “Jump, Kick 
& Run” as championship exposure for them. 

The participants, together with their parents and guests 
were then treated to a spread of good food at the Banquet 
Hall. Each participant of the Annual Tournament was 
presented a custom-made medal by the Deputy Chairman 
of Indoor Recreation I. 

Qigong 

Qigong is an internal Chinese meditative practice that 
uses slow graceful movements and breathing techniques 
to promote the circulation of “qi’ in the body to enhance 
overall health. It is generally practiced to increase strength, 
improve health and arrest a disease, working with qi and 
to become more connected with “Tao, God, True Source, 
Great Spirit” for a more meaningful connection with nature 
and the universe. 

The lessons are conducted in English and are held every 
Wednesday from 7.00pm to 8.30pm at the Pool Side 
Gazebo. 

Sun Wushu

Sun Wushu is a combination of Qigong, Quan (fist) and 
Gun (stick). Qigong primarily focuses on internal exercise 
to develop and to boost the immune system. The Quan 
and Gun exercise primarily focus on developing physical 
strength such as muscle and body part for defense and 
attack purpose. 

The Sun Wushu was reintroduced in the Club in 2010 after a 
lapse of 7 years break. The training sessions are conducted 
every Tuesday and Friday from 7.30am to 8.30am in the 
Multi-Purpose Hall. The training is conducted by Master Sun 
Yamin, the founder of Sun Wushu, from China. 

Fencing
 
Fencing was first introduced in the Club in 1962 by coach 
Professor Ronnie I Theseira. The basic focus is on three 
weapons: foil, epee and sabre. Fencing helps to improve 
one’s coordination, reflexes, discipline, focus, health and 
mental agility. Fencing can be taken up as a competitive 
sport or as a hobby and it is suitable for all ages. Fencing 
classes are conducted on Saturdays from 4.30pm to 
5.30pm at the Recreation Hall. As of October 2018 there 
are 8 students.
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Indoor Recreation II
(Aerobic/Belly Dance, Dancesport, Pilates, Yoga, Bollywood Fitness)

Members of the Indoor Recreation II 
Sub-Committee

Chairperson 
Ms Amuthambigai Tharmarajah

Members
Aerobics / Belly Dance 
Pn Nina Halim Rasip

Pilates 
Ms Indrarani Balaratnam 

Yoga
Ms Nishi Pyara Lall
Ms Rachel Chua Poi Lang 

Dancesport 
Ms Janet Lim

Bollywood Fitness
Ms Nishi Pyara Lall 

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)
Mr K V Baskar (Senior Executive)

Standing from the left:
En Halim Mohd Said, Pn Nina Halim Rasip, 
Ms Amuthambigai Tharmarajah (Chairperson), Ms Nishi Pyara Lall, 
Ms Indrarani Balaratnam 

Not in picture:
Ms Rachel Chua Poi Lang, Ms Janet Lim

Introduction

In 2018, the Club saw the addition of BOLLYWOOD FITNESS classes into the Club’s list of activities offered to members. 
Also, this year, besides the yearly planned Luncheons, the HEALING YOGA Section organised the first YOGA RETREAT at 
our Club.

BOLLYWOOD FITNESS SECTION
Started in July, 2018, each Sunday from 4.00pm - 5.00pm, 
some 25 – 30 Club members assemble at the Recreation 
Hall for their Bollywood dance. Under the able leadership 
of Club Member Ms Sonia Shah Datuk Bhupat Rai, highly 
trained and accomplished Bollywood / Bhangra dance 
artiste. The classes included both stretching exercises as 
well as intricate dance moves geared to render complete 
fitness. The Section is now working towards their inaugural 
BOLLYWOOD NITE, to be held at the Banquet Hall on 
Sunday, March 3, 2019. 

HEALING YOGA SECTION: YOGA RETREAT
YBhg. Datin Suleiha Merican and Aman Merican, our 
Instructors for our Club’s Healing Yoga Classes (*Tuesday, 
10.30am – 11.30am / Friday 6.30am – 7.30am*) 
organised the Club’s first YOGA RETREAT, which was held at 
the Recreation Hall spread over 2 full Saturdays 24 and 31 
March 2018. Those who attend were charged at a minimal 
cost as compare to retreat held outside the Club.

Club Members who attended came away with a better 
understanding of the underlying philosophies behind, and 
the specific health benefits arising from, the Yoga *Asanas*. 

The Instructors imparted several focused Lecture- Demos 
to help the participants to go into the finer points in Yoga 
practice, learn tips on how to adopt a flexible approach to 
each *Asana*. They were also taught body limitations to 
perform some of the *Asanas,*. To have a healthy body 
members were advised to add coconut oil to their regular 
diet.

INDOOR RECREATION II ANNUAL LUNCHEON
As in previous years, Members from the 3 Yoga Sections, 
the Pilates Section, the Aerobics / Belly Dance / Zumba 
Section attended the Annual Fellowship Luncheon at the 
Bunga Raya Restaurant on May 12, 2018.

DANCESPORT SECTION EVENT
The Dancesport Section organised its Annual Ball, primarily 
to showcase classic dance movements by experts, both 
from within the Club, as well as by well-known non- Members 
in the field of Ballroom/ Latin / Freestyle dance. Held on 14 
October 2018 at the Banquet Hall, with the theme of “Shall 
We Dance”, some 120 attendees were served a Chinese 
Dinner, while enjoying performances by William & Isabella.
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Indoor Recreation III
(Billiards & Snooker, Bridge)

Members of the Indoor Recreation III 
(Billiard & Snooker) Sub-Committee

Chairman     
Dr Surinder Singh

Deputy Chairman 
Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap 

Members 
Mr Lai Wai Kun 
Mr Sunny Lee Wai Thong 

Management
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)

Members of the Indoor Recreation III 
(Bridge) Sub-Committee

Chairperson     
Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong 

Convenor 
Mrs Renate Hashim Hamid 

Members
YBhg Puan Sri Datin Ling Lee Hung
Mr Dalbir Singh 
Mr Eugene Ong
Mrs Violet Mary Fernando 
  
Management 
En Halim Mohd Said (Sports Manager)

Sitting from the left:
Mr Lai Wai Kun, Dr Surinder Singh (Chairman), Mr Sunny Lee Wai Thong 

Standing:
En Halim Mohd Said

Not in picture:
Mr Tommy Chin Kean Neap (Deputy Chairman)

Standing from the left:
Mr Dalbir Singh, Mrs Violet Mary Fernando, Ms Hildah Lee Hung Fong (Chairperson), 
Mrs Renate Hashim Hamid (Convenor), En Halim Mohd Said

Not in picture:
YBhg Puan Sri Datin Ling Lee Hung, Mr Eugene Ong
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Indoor Recreation III (continued)
(Billiards & Snooker, Bridge)

Billiard & Snooker Section

The Snooker section has a very busy schedule for the year.

We have 7 tournaments and matches for the year. The main 
event held was the Merdeka Snooker Invitation Tournament 
where a total of 14 teams including 3 from RLC and teams 
from Bangkok, Singapore, Penang, East Malaysia and 
Seremban. 

The event ended up with a dinner at The Orchid where 
the President graced the event and gave away the winner 
prizes. A well organised event.

It is a known fact that the Royal Lake Club Billiards section 
is capable of organizing prestigious tournaments. This was 
evident when the billiards section organized the Club’s 100 
and 125 years Anniversary. 

We refurbished our tables and installed new lights and 
received very good comments on the standard of our 
snooker room, the damaged carpet at the bar area was 
also changed.

We have started to get young and new players in our 
program to popularize the game. We must thank the Club, 
the President, the Chairman, the Sub-Committee and the 
staff for their dedication and commitment to achieving this.

The tournaments results:
1.  Merdeka Invitational – of the 11 teams and 3 RLC teams, 

Negeri Sembilan Chinese Recreation Club emerged 
champion.

2.  Bangkok 6 Red Tournament – 8 teams participated 
from Bangkok, Singapore and all over Malaysia.

3.  10th PSC Invitational Snooker Tournament – 16 teams 
participated and Raintree club emerged champion.

4.  Friendly tournament with The Raintree Club, our players 
did very well to beat them narrowly.

5.  We were thoroughly thrashed by the visiting Negeri 
Sembilan Chinese Recreation Club team. 

Bridge Section

Bridge
We hosted one session of World Wide Bridge in June 2018. 
On 20 to 31 August, 2018 David Law and Hildah Lee, 
represented Malaysia in Bridge for the Jakarta Palembang 
Asian Games 2018. It was the first time Bridge was included 
in tha Asian Games.

2018 Royal Lake Club Bridge Congress 
The Royal Lake Club Bridge Congress was held on Saturday 
and Sunday, 22 and 23 October 2018 at the Banquet Hall. 
Participants came from Indonesia, Singapore, Penang, 
Kuching and Kuala Lumpur. 120 Bridge players took part 
and all who particpated had a great time. 

Bridge Section Annual Night 
The Bridge Section held their 4th Annual Dinner at The 
Orchid on 23 June 2018. President, Patrick Chiam joined 
the Bridge Section members and all of them were treated 
to dinner served in the President Room.

Chinese Brush Painting
The students of the Chinese Brush Painting / Calligraphy 
sections exhibited their works at the lobby of the Royal Lake 
Club. The show comprised of 24 pieces of art by member 
students. The launch was held followed by lunch at Bunga 
Raya restaurant.

A big thank to our member students for their participation 
and support.
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Legal Committee Report

Legal Committee

Chairman
Dato’ Y Sivaloganathan 

Suit No.: Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. WA-17D-29-09/2017: Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 
v. Chan Kok Choong.

Description: Recovery action under s. 118 of the Legal Profession Act 1976 against Messrs. K C Chan & Partners 
pertaining to the sum of RM150,591.00 paid arising from the Tax Invoices No. 800/16 and 802/16 
(Dato’ Gee Siew Yee).

Status:  Matter has been fixed for case management on 14.11.2018 for parties to update the Court on the 
outcome of Mr. K C Chan’s appeal to the Court of Appeal.

Suit No.: Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. WA-17D-30-09/2017: Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 
v. Chan Kok Choong.

Description: Recovery action under s. 118 of the Legal Profession Act 1976 against Messrs. K C Chan & Partners 
pertaining to the sum of RM81,129.36 paid arising from the Tax Invoices No. 801/16 and 803/16 (4 
Club Staff).

Status: Matter has been fixed for case management on 14.11.2018 for parties to update the Court on the 
outcome of Mr K C Chan’s appeal to the Court of Appeal.

Suit No.: Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. WA-17D-33-11/2017: Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 
v. Chan Kok Choong.

Description: Recovery action under s. 118 of the Legal Profession Act 1976 against Messrs. K C Chan & Partners 
pertaining to the sum of RM60,000.00 paid arising from the Tax Invoice No. 804/16 (Dr. Molly Cheah)

Status: Matter has been fixed for case management on 14.11.2018 for parties to update the Court on the 
outcome of Mr K C Chan’s appeal to the Court of Appeal.

Suit No.: Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. WA-17D-34-11/2017: Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 
v. Chan Kok Choong.

Description: Recovery action under s. 118 of the Legal Profession Act 1976 against Messrs. K C Chan & Partners 
pertaining to the sum of RM80,000.00 paid arising from the Firm’s letter dated 27.10.2016 (Tan Sri 
Salleh & K J John)

Status: Matter has been fixed for case management on 14.11.2018 for parties to update the Court on the 
outcome of Mr K C Chan’s appeal to the Court of Appeal.

Members
Dato’ Philip Chan Hon Keong
Mr Stanley Augustin
Encik Yusuf Khan
Mr R Ganavathy Naidu
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Suit No.: (1) Court of Appeal Civil Appeal No. W-02(IM)-222-02/2018: Chan Kok Choong v. Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff 
Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 

 (2) Court of Appeal Civil Appeal No. W-02(IM)-223-02/2018: Chan Kok Choong v. Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff 
Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 

 (3) Court of Appeal Civil Appeal No. W-02(IM)-229-02/2018: Chan Kok Choong v. Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff 
Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 

 (4) Court of Appeal Civil Appeal No. W-02(IM)-230-02/2018: Chan Kok Choong v. Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff 
Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 

 (5) Court of Appeal Civil Appeal No. W-02(IM)-231-02/2018: Chan Kok Choong v. Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff 
Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff 

Description: An appeal was filed by Mr K C Chan against the decision of the High Court in (1) Kuala Lumpur High 
Court Civil Suit No. WA-17D-29-09/2017 : Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff; (2) Kuala Lumpur 
High Court Civil Suit No. WA-17D-30-09/2017 : Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff; (3) Kuala 
Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. WA-17D-33-09/2017 : Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil Mushir Ariff; 
and (4) Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. WA_17D-29-09/2017 : Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil 
Mushir Ariff (collectively referred to as ‘the High Court Civil Suits’), wherein the High Court, amongst 
others, dismissed (1) Mr K C Chan’s application to strike out the High Court Civil Suits (Encl. 6) ; and (2) 
consolidate the High Court Civil Suits (Encl. 11). 

Status: Matter has been fixed for hearing on 31.11.2018.

Suit No.: Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. WA-22NCVC-460-09/2017: Chan Kok Choong v. Kamil Noor Ariff 
Bin Kamir Mushir Ariff & 5 Ors. 

Description: A suit by Mr. K C Chan against the Club for, amongst others, a discontinuance/suspension of the 
disciplinary proceedings by the Club against Mr K C Chan and preservation of the audio recordings of (1) 
the Annual General Meeting held on 27.11.2016 and 04.12.2016; (2) the Joint Constitutional Review Sub 
Committee and Past Members of the Investigation Committee Meeting pending the full and final disposal 
of the Writ of Summons; and (3) the Investigation Committee Meeting in connection with the Complaint 
against Mr K C Chan by the complainant.

Status:  Matter has been fixed for pre-trial case management on 28.11.2018. 

Suit No. : Kuala Lumpur High Court Civil Suit No. WA-22NCVC-729-11/2016: Nurzuraida Soon Binti Abdullah v. 
 Dr Molly Cheah Bee Li

Description : A suit brought by Messrs. K C Chan & Partners, for and on behalf of the Club, to – amongst others -–
prevent Dr. Molly Cheah from taking out an injunction to prevent the holding of the Club’s 2016 AGM. Suit 
was commenced by General Committee headed by Mr Jon Azman.

 Club withdrew the suit.
 Dr Molly wanted RM100,000.00 as costs from the Club. 
 Legal Committee offered RM20,000.00 towards costs and towards ‘pain and suffering’ endured by 
 Dr Molly.
 Matter of costs could not be resolved and was taxed by Court.
 Dr Molly was awarded RM5,000.00 as costs by Court.

Status : Concluded.
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Suit No.:  Advocates & Solicitors Disciplinary Board Complaint No. DB/17/0195: Dato’ Kamil Noor Ariff Bin Kamil 
Mushir Ariff v. Chan Kok Choong of Messrs. K C Chan & Partners 

Description: A complaint lodged by the Club to the Advocates & Solicitors Disciplinary Board for, amongst others, 
refusing to comply with the Club’s instructions to discontinue the suit against Dato’ Gee Siew Yee.

Status: Still under investigation by the Disciplinary Board, and pending further update as to the status of the 
Complaint.

 

 

Legal Committee Report (continued)



Design & Layout by: SP-Muda Printing Services Sdn Bhd
Printed by: Percetakan Sri Raya Sdn. Bhd

No 82 & 83, Jalan KIP 9, Taman Perindustrian KIP Kepong, 52200 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.  Tel: (60-3) 6274 2463 Fax: (60-3) 6277 2863



Kelab Taman Perdana DiRaja Kuala Lumpur
Royal Lake Club

Peti Surat 10642
50720 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Tel: 03-2698 7878
Fax: 03-2698 9889

Email: inquire@royallakeclub.org.my

www.royallakeclub.org.my


	00 Cover
	02 01-10
	03 AGM 2017 (11-52)
	04 AGM 2018 (53-76)
	05 Finance (77-80)
	06 Financial Statement (81-104)
	07 Club Management (105-118)
	08 Event, F&B (119-124)
	09 Club Facilities (125-128)
	10 S&R (129-148)
	11 Legal Committee Report (149-152)
	20 Cover

